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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

Dear Stockholders:

Once again your bank had a very impressive year of growth. Our numbers continue to grow both
organically and inorganically. | was satisfied with the results in 2006 considering the challenges
that we faced in the banking industry. No community bank likes to see an inverted yield curve
and it certainly has made our goal of growth and earnings a more difficult task. We have managed
our balance sheet in the last half of the year using a strategy of reducing higher cost of funds
which in turn will result in an increase of our net interest margin as we go forward. Our earnings
reflect not only the costs of our recent acquisitions, but also the higher expenses associated with
our aggressive branch expansion strategy and opening of a new 15,000 square feet, state of the art
operations center, in Miami. We are also in the process of remodeling older branches and tearing
down our 27th Avenue branch in Miami and replacing it with a beautiful new building. We have
also increased our staff of professionals and support personnel during the last 12 months in order
to support our infrastructure. In the short term, this strategy generates higher grawth in expenses
relative to revenues, but we expect this relationship to reverse over the next 12 months as the new
branches and sales personnel come on line and generate significant new revenues without adding
incremental costs. We completed the asset purchase of Beach Bank of Miami by year end and due
to the dedication and hard work of our merger team we will complete the convergence by the
end of February 2007. As previously announced we are in the process of acquiring Independent
Community Bank of Tequesta and will complete the transaction by the end of the first quarter of
2007. | believe our team will also complete the convergence as scheduled at the end of the
second quarter. Additionally, we expect Independent Community Bank to be accretive to our
earnings immediately. We opened two new branches during the year; one in the downtown area
of Fort Lauderdale and the other on PGA Boulevard in Palm Beach County, Florida.

As a result of this investment spending, we believe we have the infrastructure in place to support a
$1.0 billion plus bank, and that our branch network is the premier community bank franchise in
the fast growing attractive South Florida market.

Goals for 2006: Results for 2006:
Assets $450 million $503 million
Loans $331 million $351 million
Net Income $3.1 million $3.2 million
Return On Equity 6% 5.1%

Other significant goals achieved during 2006 include:

* Acquired the assets of Beach Bank.

* Assets increased 82% to $503.1 million.

» Revenues increased 30% to $16.1 million.

+ Net interest income before provision for loan losses grew 35% to $15.2 million.

» Net interest margin for the year was 5.01%.

* Loans grew 66% to $350.7 million.

» Tota) deposits increased 108% to $403 million.

« Credit quality remained stable with nonperforming assets representing 0.2% of total assets

* Increased branch network from 7 to 13 branch locations
{official opening was January 2007 for 3 branches).

* Signed definitive merger agreement with Independent Community Bank which was closed
March 30, 2007.

« Continued to upgrade branch facilities.

» Added to our infrastructure of employees from 74 to 122,

¢ Book value grew to $3.65 from $3.22.




Stuart Branch
Officiat Ground Breaking
March 2007

| Martin Stein and Michael Golden
~ admire comfortable design at new West Boca Branch.

Py

Martin Stein and Michael Golden
give their seal-of-approval for the
new bank's customer-friendly design.

Miracle Mile Branch In Coral Gables
Grand Opening September 2006

Goals for 2007

Qur goal for 2007 is to continue to grow our infrastructure in order to meet
our next objective of becoming a bank in excess of one billion dollars. We
will open three new branches in 2007 in Stuart, West Delray and West
Boca Raton, Florida.

In conclusion we will continue to focus on business opportunities that
resent themselves in the current market environment that will enhance the
ranchise value.

Sincerely,

T Ate_

Michael E. Golden
President and CEQ

COMPANY NEWS AND HEADLINES

M April 24, 2007 - Sun American Bancorp Q1 Earnings:
Revenues Increase 39 Percent, Loans Grow 81 Percent, and Deposits Grow 95 Percent

& March 30, 2007 - Sun American Bancorp Acquired Independent Community Bank
& March 21, 2007 - Sun American Bancorp Begins Trading on the Nasdaq Global Market
under the New Symbol “SAMB”

M February 8, 2007 - Sun American Bancorp Earns $3.2 Million in 2006,
Revenues Increase 30 Percent and Loans Grow 66 Percent

& January 4, 2007 - Sun American Bancorp completes acquisition of Beach Bank
& November 1, 2006 - Sun American announces Financial Services Division
- Sun American Wealth Management
/—,-'——'_-_\\
& November 1, 2006 -.5uii American announces Moftgage Lending Company
— Sun American.Financial Services
& October 237 2006 - Sun American rates 5 Stars from BauerFinancial

& August 31, 2006 - Sun American opens new branch in Coral Gables

& January 20, 2006 - PanAmerican Bank changes its name to Sun American\Bank
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PERSONAL BANKING

Sun American Bank offers a wide range of personal checking, savings and money market
accounts. To keep in step with the competition we offer free checking with lots of extras
along with some of the most competitive rates on interest bearing accounts. Two of our star
%(_elrformers this year were the Freedom Advantage and Liberty Advantage Checking accounts.
" ese ulr:ique checking accounts consistently paid higher interest rates than other banks in
the market.

BUSINESS BANKING

Sun American Bank realizes that providing appropriate banking solutions can help businesses
row. We offer checking accounts that help manage cash flow, with 24/7 enline banking and
ill payment. We have designed checking options that simplify financial management while

saving time and money.

PERSONAL LOANS

Sun American Bank is committed to providing loan decisions quickly and easily. Our loan
Froducts feature competitive interest rates, flexible terms, affordable monthly payments and
ocal service. We are able to structure a variety of personal loans including:

¢ Home Equity Lines of Credit + Boat Loans
= Auto Loans * Installment Loans
» Unsecured Lines of Credit * Over Draft Safeguards

At Sun American Bank loan requests receive personal attention from an experienced lender.
Our local management team makes all the decisions for the approval of financing needs.

Sun American Bank is an Equal Credit Opportunity and Equal Housing Lender.

COMMERCIAL LOANS

Sun American Bank's commercial real estate loans are idea! for long-term
financing of investment, development and owner-occupied commercial property.
These loans can be used for purchase money, construction or to refinance an
existing mortﬁage. We have options for long-term permanent financing, interim
construction financing or a combination of the two. -

* Lines of Credit
¢ Term Loans
» Commercial Mortgage Loans

ONLINE BANKING

Sun American Bank's Online Banking is a convenient way to access
accounts 24 hours per day, 7 days a week. And this service is FREE!

SUN AMERICAN WEALTH MANAGEMENT

Your professional financial advisor at Sun American Wealth Management is a Registered
Representative with UVEST Financial Services and works with Sun American Bank and
its customers to provide access to a wide variety of products and services.

SUN AMERICAN FINANCIAL

Sun American Financial makes it easier to get a mortgage with programs that fit individual
needs or tailor made programs to meet specific requirements,
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements included in this document, or incorporated herein by reference, that do not relate to present or
historical conditions are “forward looking statements” within the meaning of that term in Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
Additional oral or written forward looking statements may be made by Sun American Bancorp (“the Company)
from time to time, and such statements may be included in documents that are filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that could cause results or
outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in the forward looking statements. Forward looking statements
may include, without limitation, statements relating to the Company’s plans, strategies, objectives, expectations and
intentions and are intended to be made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Words such as “believes,” “forecasts,” “intends,” “possible,” “estimates,” “anticipates,” and
*“plans” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward looking statements. The Company’s ability to
predict projected results or the effect of events on the Company’s operating results is inherently uncertain. Forward-
looking statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those discussed in this document. Factors that could affect the Company’s assumptions and
predictions include, but are not limited to, the risk that (i) loan losses would have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition and operating results; (ii) a decling in the value of the collateral securing the
Company’s loans could result in an increase in losses on foreclosure; (iii) the Company’s growth strategy may not
be successful and risk related to acquisitions and integration of target operations; (iv) the geographical concentration
of the Company’s business in Florida makes the Company highly susceptible to local economic and business
conditions; (v) changes in interest rates may adversely affect the Company’s financial condition; (vi) competition
from other financial institutions could adversely affect the Company’s profitability and growth; (vii) the adequacy of
our loan loss allowance; {viii) risks related to compliance with environmental laws and regulations and other
government regulations; (ix) litigation risks; (x} lack of active market for our common stock; and (xi) lack of
dividends, dilution and anti-take over provisions in our articles and by laws. You should not place undue reliance on
the Company’s forward-looking statements. Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on
which it is made, and the Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.

LI ELIETY




PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

1w

Throughout this section, unless the contexf indicates otherwise, when we use the terms “we,” “our” or

us, " we are referring to Sun American Bancorp and its subsidiary, Sun American Bank.

‘

General

History

We are a single bank holding company headquartered in Boca Raton, Florida and organized under the laws
of the State of Delaware. The corporate office is located at 1200 N, Federal Highway, Suite 111-A in Boca Raton,
Florida 33432. Our telephone number is (561} 826-0464. We are a reporting company and file annual, quarterly, and
current reports and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any reports, statements and other
information we file at the SEC’s public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, DC. 20549, Please
call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operations of the Public Reference Room. Our SEC
filings are also available on the SEC’s Internet site (http://www.sec.gov). The information on this web site is not and
should not be considered part of this document and is not incorporated into this document by reference, This web
address is, and is only intended to be, an inactive textual reference.

Sun American Bancorp was originally incorporated in 1992 under the name of PCM Acquisition Group,
Inc., for the sole purpose of acquiring Florida First International which was renamed Southern Security Bank
Corporation. In 2000, while under a cease and desist order from Federal bank regulators, Southern Security Bank
was reorganized and infused with new capital by a group of investors. In 2001, Southemn Security Bank Corporation
acquired the assets and assumed deposits and certain liabilities of PanAmerican Bank. As part of the transaction,
Southern Security Bank adopted the name PanAmerican Bank and the Holding Company was renamed
PanAmerican Bancorp. In 2004, PanAmerican Bancorp acquired the assets and assumed deposits and certain
liabilities of Gulf Bank and entered into an assigmment and sublease agreements for the lease of the three Gulf
Bank’s branches in Miami-Dade County, Florida. On January 12, 2006, the Company changed its name from
PanAmerican Bancorp to Sun American Bancorp. The Company’s board of directors and stockholders approved the
name change. In addition, the trading symbol for the Company’s common stock was changed from “PNB” to
“SBK.” On January 20, 2006, we also changed the name of our bank subsidiary from PanAmerican Bank to Sun
American Bank (the “Bank™).

On December 29, 2006, the Company acquired in exchange for approximately 3.7 million shares (subject
to adjustment as provided in the acquisition agreement) of the Company’s common stock substantially all of the
assets and assumed substantially all of the liabilities, of Beach Bank, which operated two branches in Miami-Dade
County, Florida. This transaction is referred to as the acquisition transaction in this document. At December 31,
2006, the Company operated ten branches in South Florida, including the two acquired from Beach Bank. Three
new branches were opened in January 2006 bringing the total to 13 branches.

Recent Developments

On November 17, 2006, we, the bank and Independent Community Bank, a Florida chartered commercial
bank, entered into the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement™), pursuant to which Independent
Community Bank will merge with and into the bank (the “Merger Transaction™).

Independent Community Bank commenced operations in October 1998 and offers commercial and
consumer loans to borrowers through its branch in Tequesta, Florida. Independent Community Bank also offers
checking and savings accounts and certificates of deposit to its customers. Independent Community Bank’s market
area is North Palm Beach County located in southeastern Florida. At December 31, 2006, Independent Community
Bank had total assets of $136.5 million. Independent Community Bank is regulated by the FDIC and the Florida
Department of Financial Services and its deposits are insured up to the applicable limits by the FDIC. There can be
no assurances that the Merger Transaction will be completed as the respective obligations of each party to effect the
Merger Transaction are subject to the satisfaction, at or prior to closing, of several conditions.

The Merger Agreement provides that each Independent Community Bank sharcholder may elect to receive
6.4463 shares of our common stock, or a cash payment of $34.81, or a combination of our common stock and cash,
for each share of Independent Community Bank common stock owned. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the
merger consideration for 42% of the outstanding shares of Independent Community Bank common stock must be
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paid in cash, and there may be allocations of cash or stock made to Independent Community Bank shareholders to
ensure that this requirement is satisfied. Based on a $5.40 per share price of our common stock, assuming the cash
out of all outstanding options to purchase Independent Community Bank common stock (“Independent Options™),
the value of the Merger Transaction is approximately $40.9 million. We expect to issue approximately 4.2 million
shares of common stock in connection with the Merger Transaction and to convert 22,046 options to purchase shares
of Independent Community Bank stock into options to purchase 142,115 shares of the Company’s common stock.

On March 9, 2007, we announced that our common stock listing application for the Nasdaq Global Market
has been approved. On March 22, 2007, Sun American Bancorp began trading on the Nasdaq Global Market under
the new symbol “SAMB”,

During the first quarter of 2007, we have reduced interest rates on select deposit products through normal
operations in order to realign our rates with our business plan. This has resulted in a decrease of client deposit
balances in the period of approximately 10%.

Sun American Bank

The Company owns 99.9% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Bank. The Bank is
chartered by the State of Florida and is engaged in general commercial banking providing a wide range of loan and
deposit services. Its deposit accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and it is a member of
the Federal Reserve System and the Federal Home Loan Bank. The Bank’s primary market areas are Miami-Dade,
Broward, and Palm Beach County in Florida, at the following locations: 3400 Coral Way, Miami, Florida; 3475
Sheridan Street, Hollywood, Florida; 1200 N. Federal Highway, Boca Raton, Florida, 3501 West Boynton Beach
Boulevard, Boynton Beach, Florida; 2500 NW 97" Avenue, Miami, Florida; 2770 S.W. 27th Avenue, Miami
Florida; 2000 PGA Boulevard, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida; and 221 Miracle Mile, Coral Gables, Florida. On
December 29, 2006, the Bank added two more locations at 555 Arthur Godfrey Road, Miami Beach, Florida 33140,
and at 8099 South Dixie Highway, Miami, F1 33143 as a result of the Beach Bank acquisition. On January 22, 2007,
the Bank opened three additional branches located at 350 SE 2™ Street, Fort Lauderdale, Florida; 2160 West
Atlantic Avenue, Delray Beach, Florida; and 11381 Prosperity Farms Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida. All
locations are full-service branches with the exception of the location at 11381 Prosperity Farms Road which is a
limited service branch.

Deposit services for personal and business customers include a variety of checking accounts which include
interest-earning, low-cost checking, and senior checking. Savings, money market accounts, and certificates of
deposit with a wide variety of terms and rates are also offered. Consumers have access to ATMs, safe deposit boxes,
direct deposit and on-line banking services. Management does not believe that the deposits or the business of the
Bank in general are seasonal in nature. Deposit levels may, however, vary with local and national economic
conditions and may also vary based upon the interest rate paid to clients.

Mortgage lending activities include commercial, industrial, and residential loans secured by real estate. The
Bank’s customers are predominantly small to medium sized businesses, individual investors and consumers.
Commercial lending activities include originating secured and unsecured loans and lines of credit, and providing
cash management services to a variety of businesses. The Bank also provides a merchant credit card program. The
Bank’s consumer loan department makes direct auto, home equity, home improvement, and personal loans to
individuals.

In 2006, the Bank entered into a joint venture with two individuals to create Sun American Financial LLC
which provides residential mortgages to our clients. The Bank owns 51% of Sun American Financial LLC.

Wealth Management services are provided through Sun American Wealth Management, a new financial
services division of Sun American Bank created in 2006. Sun American Wealth Management, in partnership with
UVEST Financial Services, an NASD registered broker-dealer, provides bank customers with access to a wide
variety of investment and insurance products and services.




Financial Highlights

The Company has experienced significant growth in recent years through select acquisitions and internal
generation of new business. Management has focused on growing the loan portfolio by concentrating on origination
of high-quality real estate loans, and by competitively pricing deposit products to maintain our interest rate spread.
Management has also closely monitored operating expenses in an effort to enhance the financial resutts. Highlights
are noted below:

e  Total assets have grown from $277.2 million at December 31, 2005 to $503.9 million at December 31,
2006, an increase of 82 percent.

s  Loans, net have grown from $210.7 million at December 31, 2005 to $350.7 million at December 31,
2006, an increase of 60 percent.

¢  Total deposits have grown from $193.5 million at December 31, 2005 to $403.0 million at
December 31, 2006, an increase of 108 percent.

s  Sharcholders’ equity has grown from $59.6 million at December 31, 2005 to $84.5 million at
December 31, 2006, an increase of 42 percent.

Growth Strategy

The Company intends to continue to expand its business through internal growth as well as through the
select acquisition of the assets and assumption of deposits of other banks as opportunities are identified. The
Company will aiso seek to acquire other community banks in South Florida subject to favorable pricing
considerations although none are currently contemplated other than the previously described Independent
Community Bank acquisition. The Company intends to grow internally by opening new branches, adding to its loan
pottfolio and bringing in new deposits. The Company also intends to grow its capital base on a continuing basis as it
is part of the Company’s business strategy of maintaining a “well” capitalized position. The Company intends to
pursue this business strategy while managing asset quality.

Operating Strategy

Focus on increasing net loans. The Company’s lending activities focus primarily on providing local
businesses with commercial business loans and loans secured by real estate. The Company is increasing its ¢fforts to
develop new business relationships and has increased its marketing efforts. Typicaily, the Company seeks
commercial lending relationships with customers borrowing up to $12.0 million. The Bank’s legal lending limit for
secured and unsecured loans was $15.4 million and $9.2 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2006. In addition,
the Company shares participation in loans with other banks for loans generated that exceed its or the other bank’s
legal lending limit. The Company plans to increase its contribution from consumer lending, focusing on provision of
home equity and other loan products to individuals.

Attract and retain highly qualified and productive staff across all levels of the organization and
focusing on low net overhead. Key to the Company’s growth and profitability is management’s experience in
providing communify banking services and the ability to create a culture committed to both proactive sales and
disciplined credit quality. The Company’s practice of employing highly qualified and productive individuals at all
levels of the organization is key to meeting business goals and maintaining lower costs.

Enhance and upgrade our business platform to support business growth. The Company will continue
to invest in systems, technology and people to facilitate an administrative infrastructure that is efficient and
maintains a satisfactory level of internal control and regulatory compliance.

Maintain the level of earning assets as they relate to operating expenses in order to improve
profitability. The Company is pursuing a growth strategy by increasing the level of earning assets, primarily
through increases in the loan portfolio, and by increasing the level of capital in support of this growth, At the same
time, we are continually analyzing our operating expenses to find areas where costs can be reduced through greater
efficiency.

Increase the Company’s capital base to support business growth. The periodic addition of new capital
to suppert business growth is a core component required to permit the Company to achieve growth plans,




Maintain High Asset Quality. The Company seeks to maintain high asset quality through a program that
includes sound underwriting, diversification of collateral and prompt and strict adherence to established credit
policies combined with training and supervision of lending officers. Additionally, the Company uses incentives to
maintain high asset quality, by connecting a portion of its loan officers” compensation to the quality of the loans
they originate and evaluated by the post closing performance of the loan.

Market Area

The Company’s primary market areas for loan and deposit growth are Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm
Beach counties in southeast Florida where the Company now operates twelve full-service branches and one limited
service banking office. This metropolitan area has a large and diverse population. Southeast Florida traditionally has
strong tourism and taxable sales. The area experiences high tourism and housing demand both of which benefit from
the influx of visitors and residents migrating from the northern states, Canada, other Florida counties, Latin
America, the Caribbean, and Europe. The Company has also experienced a growing demand for commercial loans
throughout the Company’s market areas.

The diverse South Florida region includes a large population of retirees. In addition, many of the Bank’s
customers, due to their Hispanic backgrounds, speak Spanish. In Miami-Dade County, the Bank has six full service
banking offices, two of which were acquired from Beach Bank. In Broward County, the Bank has two full service
branches one located in the city of Fort Lauderdale and the other in the city of Hollywood. In Palm Beach County,
the Bank has four full service branches located in the cities of Boca Raton, Delray Beach, Boynton Beach and Palm
Beach Gardens. A limited service branch is located within the campus of a retirement community in the city of Palm
Beach Gardens.

Competition

The Company faces substantial competition in all phases of operations from a variety of different
competitors. Competition for depasits, loans, and other financial services come from numerous Florida-based and
out-of-state banks, savings banks, thrifts, credit unions and other financial institutions as well as other entities that
provide financial services, many of which are much larger than the Bank. Most of these competitors, some of which
are affiliated with bank holding companies, have substantially greater resources and lending limits, and may offer
certain services that the Bank does not currently provide. In addition, many of the Bank’s non-bank competitors are
not subject to the same extensive federal regulations that govern bank holding companies and federally insured
banks. The Bank competes by offering high levels of attention to its customers, providing personalized services that
its larger competitors may not match. In instances where the Bank is unable to provide services a customer needs, it
seeks to arrange for those services to be provided by other banks with which it has business relationships.

The Company maintains a strong community orientation by, among other things, supporting active
participation of its employees in local business, charitable, civic, school and church activities.

Supervision and Regulation

We and Sun American Bank are highly regulated entities, which are governed by various federal, state and
governmental authorities. As explained more fully below, federal and Florida banking laws and regulations govern
all areas of our and Sun American Bank’s operations, including reserves, loans, capital, payment of dividends,
establishment and closing of branches, the granting of credit under equal and fair conditions, and the disclosure of
the cost and terms of such credit. As our primary federal regulator, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, referred to as the Federal Reserve Board in this report, has authority to initiate civil and administrative
actions and take other measures against Sun American Bank and its institution-affiliated parties, which include its
officers, directors, employees, 10%-or-greater shareholders and (under certain circumstances) its professionals, for
any violation of law or any action that constitutes an unsafe or unsound banking practice. Such enforcement actions
include the issuance of cease and desist orders, civil money penalties, and the removal of and prohibition against its
institution-affiliated parties from actively participating in the conduct of its affairs.

Bank Holding Company Regulation and Supervision

We are a single-bank holding company, registered with the Federal Reserve Board under the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended, referred to as the BHC Act in this report. As such, we and Sun American Bank
are subject to the supervision, examination, and reporting requirements of the BHC Act, and the regulations of the
Federal Reserve Bank. We are required to file periodic reports with the Federal Reserve Bank and such additional
information as the Federal Reserve Bank may require pursuant to the BHC Act. The Federal Reserve Bank may
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conduct examinations of us and Sun American Bank. Under Federal Reserve Bank regulations and other Federal
Reserve Bank authority, we are required to serve as a source of financial and managerial strength to Sun American
Bank and may not conduct its operations in an unsafe or unsound manner. In addition, it is the Federal Reserve
Bank’s policy that in serving as a source of strength to its subsidiary banks, a bank holding company should stand
ready to use available resources to provide adequate capital funds to its subsidiary banks during periods of financial
stress or adversity and should maintain the financial flexibility and capital-raising capacity to obtain additional
resources for assisting its subsidiary banks. A bank holding company’s failure to meet its obligations to serve as a
source of strength to its subsidiary banks may be considered by the Federal Reserve Bank to be an unsafe and
unsound banking practice or a violation of the Federal Reserve Bank’s regulations or both.

The BHC Act, generally prohibits us from engaging in activities other than banking or managing or
controlling banks or other permissible subsidiaries and from acquiring or retaining direct or indirect control of any
company engaged in any activities other than those activities determined by the Federal Reserve Bank to be so
closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. In determining
whether a particular activity is permissible, the Federal Reserve Bank must consider whether the performance of
such an activity reasonably can be expected to produce benefits to the public, such as greater convenience, increased
competition, or gains in efficiency, that outweigh possible adverse effects, such as undue concentration of resources,
decreased or unfair competition, conflicts of interests, or unsound banking practices, For example, factoring
accounts receivable, acquiring or servicing loans, leasing personal property, conducting discount securities
brokerage activities, performing certain data processing services, acting as agent or broker in selling credit life
insurance and certain other types of insurance in connection with credit transactions, all have been determined by
the Federal Reserve Bank to be permissible activities of bank holding companies. Despite prior approval, the
Federal Reserve Bank has the power to order a bank holding company or its subsidiaries to terminate any activity or
to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary when it has reasonable cause to believe that continuation of
such activity or such ownership or control constitutes a serious risk to the financial safety, soundness, or stability of
any bank subsidiary of that bank holding company.

Change of Holding Company Control, With regard to bank holding companigs, the BHC Act requires that
every bank holding company obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Bank before it may acquire all or
substantially all of the assets of any bank, or ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank, if after such
acquisition it would own or control, directly or indirectly, more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank. In
approving bank acquisitions by bank holding companies, the Federal Reserve Bank is required to consider the
financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the bank holding company and the banks concerned, the
convenience and needs of the communities to be served and various competitive factors.

The BHC Act further prohibits a person or group of persons from acquiring “controt” of a bank holding
company unless the Federal Reserve Bank has been notified and has not objected to the transaction. Under a
rebuttable presumption established by the Federal Reserve Bank, the acquisition of 10% or more of a class of voting
stock of a bank holding company with a class of securities registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act would,
under the circumstances set forth in the presumption, constitute acquisition of control of the bank holding company.
In addition, any person or group of persons must obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve Bank under the BHC
Act, before acquiring 25% (5% in the case of an acquirer that is already a bank holding company) or more of the
outstanding common stock of a bank holding company, or otherwise obtaining control or a “controlling influence”
over the bank holding company.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999, referred to as the GLB Act in this report,
significantly changed the regulatory structure and oversight of the financial services industry. Effective March 12,
2000, the GLB Act repealed the provisions of the Depression-era Glass-Steagall Act that restricted banks and
securities firms from affiliating with one another. It also revised the BHC Act to permit a qualifying bank holding
company, called a financial holding company, to engage in a full range of financial activities, including banking,
insurance, securities, and merchant banking activities. It also permits qualifying bank holding companies to acquire
many types of financial firms without the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Bank.

Management does not belicve that the GLB Act has or will have an immediate positive or negative material
effect on operations. In addition, we have not elected to become a financial holding company for purposes of the
GLB Act and, therefore, cannot engage in the expanded range of activities afforded to financial holding companies.
However, the GLB Act may have the result of increasing the amount of competition that Sun American Bank faces
from larger financial service companies, many of which have substantially more financial resources than Sun
American Bank, which may now offer banking services in addition to insurance and brokerage services.




Bank Regulation and Supervision

As a Federal Reserve Bank member state bank, the principal federal regulator of Sun American Bank is the
Federal Reserve Bank and, therefore, Sun American Bank is subject to the regulations and administrative practices
of the Federal Reserve Bank. In addition, as a state bank chartered by the State of Florida, Sun American Bank is
subject to the Florida Banking Code, which is administered by the Office of Financial Regulation as well as the rules
and regulations of the Office of Financial Regulation. The deposit obligations of Sun American Bank are insured by
the FDIC in the maximum individual amounts of $100,000 each. The Florida Department of Financial Services
supervises and regulates all areas of Sun American Bank’s operations, including, without limitation, its loans,
mortgages, issuance of securities, annual shareholders meeting, capital adequacy requirements, payment of
dividends and the establishment or termination of branches. As a state-chartered banking institution in the State of
Florida, Sun American Bank is empowered by statute, subject to limitations expressed therein, to take savings and
time deposits, to accept checking accounts, to pay interest on such deposits, to make loans on residential and other
real estate, to make consumer and commercial loans, to invest, with certain limitations, in equity securities and in
debt obligations of companies and to undertake other various banking services on behalf of its customers.

As a state-chartered member of the Federal Reserve System, the bank is subject to capital requirements
imposed by the Federal Reserve Bank. The Federal Reserve Bank requires state-chartered member banks to comply
with risk-based capital standards and to maintain a minimum leverage ratio. As of December 31, 2006, Sun
American Bank was in comptiance with both the risk-based capital guidelines and the minimum leverage capital
ratio.

In 2005, we agreed with the federal and state regulators to remain well capitalized and improve our policies
and procedures in administrative areas affecting internal audit, asset and liability management and compliance and
agreed to periodically report to the regulatory authorities on our progress in these areas. These agreements ended in
2006.

Change of Bank Control. Florida and federal law restrict the amount of voting stock of a bank that a person
may acquire without the prior approval of banking regulators. The overall effect of such laws is to make it more
difficult to acquire a bank by tender offer or similar means than it might be to acquire control of another type of
corporation. Consequently, stockholders of financial institutions are less likely to benefit from the rapid increases in
stock prices that often result from tender offers or similar efforts to acquire control of other companies.

Under Florida law, no person or group of persons may, directly or indirectly or acting by or through one or
more persons, purchase or acquire a controlling interest in any bank that would result in the change in control of that
bank unless the Florida Department of Financial Services first shall have approved such proposed acquisition. A
person or group will be deemed to have acquired “control” of a bank: (i) if the person or group, directly or indirectly
or acting by or through one or more other persons, owns, controls, or has power to vote 25% or more of any class of
voting securities of the bank, or controls in any manner the election of a majority of the directors of the bank; or (ii)
if the Florida Department of Financial Services determines that such person exercises a controlling influence over
the management or policies of the bank. In any case where a proposed purchase of voting securities would give rise
to a presumption of control, the person or group who proposes to purchase the securities must first file written notice
of the proposal to the Florida Department of Financial Services for its review and approval. Subsections
658.27(2)(c) and 658.28(3), Florida Statutes, refer to a potential change of control of a financial institution at a 10%
or more threshold and rebuttable presumption of control. Accordingly, the name of any subscriber acquiring more
than 10% of the voting securities of Sun American Bank must be submitted to the Florida Department of Financial
Services for prior approval.

Federal law imposes additional restrictions on acquisitions of stock in banks that are members of the
Federal Reserve System. Under the federal Change in Bank Control Act of 1978, as amended, and the regulations
thereunder, a person or group must give advance notice to the Federal Reserve Bank before acquiring control of any
state member bank. Upon receipt of such notice, the Federal Reserve Bank either may approve or disapprove the
acquisition. That statute creates a rebuttable presumption of control if a member or group acquires 10% or more of a
bank’s voting stock and if one or more other “control factors™ as set forth in that statute are present,

Interstate Banking and Branching

Florida banks are permitted by Florida statute to branch statewide. Such branch banking, however, is
subject to prior approval by the Office of Financial Regulation, and agreement by the Federal Reserve Bank and the
FDIC. Any approval by the Office of Financial Regulation, Federal Reserve Bank and the FDIC of branching by
Sun American Bank would take into consideration several factors, including our level of capital, the prospects and
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economics of the proposed branch office, and other considerations deemed relevant by the Office of Financial
Regulation, Federal Reserve Bank and the FDIC for purposes of determining whether approval should be granted to
open a branch office.

Affiliate and Insider Restrictions

Sun American Bank’s authority to engage in transactions with “affiliates” (e.g., any company that controls
ot is under commeon control with an institution, including us and our non-bank subsidiaries) is limited by federal
law. The aggregate amount of covered transactions with any individual affiliate is limited to 10% of the capital and
surplus of Sun American Bank. The aggregate amount of covered transactions with all affiliates is limited to 20% of
Sun American Bank’s capital and surplus. Certain transactions with affiliates are required to be secured by collateral
in an amount and of a type described in federal law. The purchase of low quality assets from affiliates is generally
prohibited. The transactions with affiliates must be on terms and under circumstances that are at least as favorable to
the institution as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-affiliated companies. In addition,
we are prohibited from lending to any affiliate that is engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding
companies, and we may not purchase the securities of any affiliate other than a subsidiary.

Sun American Bank’s authority to extend credit to insiders, such as executive officers, directors and 10%
shareholders, as well as entities controlled by insiders, is also govemned by federal law. Loans to insiders are
required to be made on terms substantially the same as those offered to unaffiliated individuals and must not involve
more than the normal risk of repayment. An exception exists for loans made to a benefit or compensation program
that is widely available to all employees of the institution and does not give preference to insiders over other
employees. The law limits both the individual and aggregate amount of loans Sun American Bank may make to
insiders based, in part, on its capital position and requires certain board approval procedures to be followed.

Investment Activities

Sun American Bank is permitted under federal and state law to invest in various types of liquid assets,
including U.S. Treasury obligations, securities of various federal agencies and of state and municipal governments,
certificates of deposit of other federally insured institutions, certain bankers’ acceptances and federal finds. Subject
to various restrictions, Sun American Bank may also invest a portion of its assets in commercial paper and corporate
debt securities. As a Federal Reserve Bank member bank, Sun American Bank is required to maintain an investment
in Federal Reserve Bank stock. In addition, Sun American Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta and is required to maintain an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock. Sun American Bank is
required under state and federal regulations to maintain a minimmum amount of liquid assets.

A committee consisting of Sun American Bank officers and directors determines appropriate investments in
accordance with the board of directors’ approved investment policies and procedures. Our investment policies
generally limit investments to U.S. Government and U.S. Government agency securities, municipal bonds,
certificates of deposits, marketable corporate debt obligations, mortgage-backed securities and certain types of
mutual funds. Our investment policy does not permit engaging directly in hedging activities or purchasing high risk
mortgage derivative products. Investments are made based on certain considerations, which include the interest rate,
credit quality, yield, settlement date and maturity of the investment, Sun American Bank’s liquidity pesition, and
anticipated cash nceds and sources (which in turn include outstanding commitments, upcoming maturities, estimated
deposit maturities and anticipated loan amortization and repayments). The effect that the proposed investment would
have on Sun American Bank’s credit and interest rate risk, and risk-based capital is also given consideration during
the evaluation.

Lending Activities

Community Reinvestment Act; Fair Lending. Sun American Bank is subject to a variety of fair iending laws
and reporting obligations involving home mortgage lending operations and Community Reinvestment Act activities,
referred to as the CRA in this report. The CRA generally requires the federal banking agencies to evaluate the record
of a bank in meeting the credit needs of its local communities, including low-and moderate-income neighborhoods.
Each financial institution’s efforts in meeting community credit needs are evaluated as part of the examination
process pursuant to twelve assessment factors. A bank can also become subject to substantial penalties and
corrective measures for a viglation of certain fair lending laws. The federal banking agencies may take compliance
with such laws and CRA obligations into account when regulating and supervising other activities or assessing
whether to approve certain applications such as mergers, acquisitions and applications to open a branch or facility.
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At Sun American Bank’s most recent evaluation during 2003, the Federal Reserve Bank rated Sun American Bank
“Satisfactory” in complying with its CRA obligations,

Under federal law, federally insured banks are subject, with certain exceptions, to certain restrictions on
any extension of credit to affiliates, on investment in the stock or other securities of affiliates, and on the taking of
such stock or securities as collateral from any borrower. In addition, such banks are prohibited from engaging in
certain tie-in arrangements in connection with the extension of credit or the providing of any property or service.

Federal and Florida law further provide loans-to-one borrower limits. A bank may extend credit to any
person, including any related interest of that person, up to an amount of 15% of its capital for loans and lines of
credit, which are unsecured. A bank may extend credit to any person, including any related interest of that person,
up to an amount of 25% of its capital for loans and lines of credit, which are amply and entirely secured. When
outstanding loans consist of both secured and unsecured portions, the secured and unsecured portions may not
exceed 25% of the capital of the lending bank, and the unsecured portion may not exceed 15% of the capital of the
lending bank.

Allowance for Loan Losses. Management believes it has established the existing allowance for loan losses
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. However, there can be
no assurance that regulators, in reviewing Sun American Bank’s loan portfolio, will not request us to increase
significantly the allowance for loan losses. Additionally, because future events affecting borrowers and collateral
cannot be predicted with certainty, there can be no assurance that the existing allowance for loan losses is adequate
or that a substantial increase will not be necessary should the quality of any loans deteriorate as a result of the
factors discussed above. Any material increase in the allowance for loan losses may adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations.

Deposit Activities and Other Sources of Funds

Deposit Insurance Assessments. Deposit accounts in Sun American Bank are insured by the FDIC,
generally up to a maximum of $100,000 per separately insured depositor, and up to a maximum of $250,000 on
certain retirement accounts, including traditional and Roth individual retirement accounts. The FDIC maintains a
risk-based deposit insurance assessment system by which institutions are assigned to one of four categories based on
their capitalization and other supervisory information. An institution’s assessment rate depends upon the category to
which it is assigned. Assessment rates for member institutions are determined semi-annually by the FDIC.

The FDIC has the authority to increase deposit insurance assessments if it determines such increases are
appropriate to maintain the reserves of the deposit insurance fund or to fund the administration of the FDIC. In
addition, the FDIC is authorized to levy emergency special assessments on fund members.

In addition to assessments for deposit insurance, all FDIC-insured institutions are required to pay
assessments to the FDIC to fund payments on bonds issued in the late 1980’s by a federal agency to recapitalize the
predecessor to the Savings Association Insurance Fund. These assessments will continue until the Financing
Corporation bonds mature in 2017.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005, referred to as the Reform Act in this report, was
enacted on February 8, 2006 as a part of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, Effective March 31, 2006, the Bank
Insurance Fund and the Savings Association Insurance Fund were merged into a new combined fund, called the
Deposit Insurance Fund. The Reform Act: (i) increases deposit insurance coverage for retirement accounts to
$250,000; (ii) indexes the current $100,000 insurance coverage limit for standard accounts and the new $250,000
limit for retirement accounts to reflect inflation (with adjustments for inflation every five years, commencing
January 1, 2011); (iii) requires the FDIC to assess annual deposit insurance premiums on 2ll banks and savings
institutions; (iv) gives a one-time insurance assessment credit totaling $4.7 billion to banks and savings institutions
in existence on December 31, 1996 that can be used to offset premiums otherwise due; (v) imposes a cap on the
level of the Deposit Insurance Fund and provides for dividends or rebates when the fund grows beyond specified
levels; (vi) adopts a historical basis concept for distributing the aforementioned one-time credit and dividends (with
each institution’s historical basis to be determined by a formula that looks back to the institution’s assessment base
in 1996 and adds premiums paid since that time); and (vii) authorizes revisions to the current risk-based system for
assessing premiums, including setting the fixed designated reserve ratio requirement within a range between 1.15%
and 1.5% of insured deposits.

The increase in insurance coverage for retirement accounts was effective as of April 1, 2006. The one-time
insurance assessment credit to banks and savings institutions was effective as of November 17, 2006. As of
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January 1, 2007, the fixed designated reserve ratio for the Deposit Insurance Fund will be set at 1.25%. In addition,
as of January 1, 2007, the cap imposed on the Deposit Insurance Fund level and the payment of dividends when the
fund grows beyond specified levels becomes effective. The FDIC is required to adopt final rules for the rest of the
provisions no later than 270 days after enactment,

Based upon the FDIC’s final rule on the one-time assessment credit, all institutions in existence on
December 31, 1996 (including successor institutions as defined in the new rule) who paid assessments prior to said
time will be notified by the FDIC of the amount of such institution’s one-time credit based on the institution’s 1996
assessment base. The credit may be used to offset deposit insurance assessments comnmencing in 2007 and 90% of
such assessments in years 2008, 2009 and 2010 to the extent the institution has sufficient credits available. The
institution may request a review of the FDIC’s determined credit if the institution disagrees with the calculation, its
eligibility or its assessment base.

As a result of the FDIC’s final rule in connection with the Deposit Insurance Fund cap and the dividend and
rebate determination, the FDIC will determine annually whether the reserve ratio at the end of the prior year equals
or exceeds 1.35% of estimated insured deposits or exceeds 1.5%, thereby triggering a dividend requirement. The
FDIC will pay eligible institutions a dividend of 50% of the amount in the Deposit Insurance Fund when the reserve
ratio is above 1.35%. When the reserve ratio exceeds 1.5%, the FDIC is generally required to pay eligible
institutions a dividend of 100% of the amount in the Deposit Insurance Fund. While the assessment method has not
been fully determined yet, Sun American Bank will face deposit insurance premium expenses.

Deposit Accounts. Most of Sun American Bank’s depositors are residents of the State of Florida, Deposits
are attracted from within Sun American Bank’s market area through the offering of a broad selection of deposit
instruments, including NOW accounts, money market deposit accounts, regular checking accounts, regular savings
accounts, certificates of deposit and retirement savings plans. Deposit account terms vary according to the minimum
balance required, the time periods the funds must remain on deposit and the interest rate, among other factors. In
determining the terms of its deposit accounts, Sun American Bank considers current market interest rates,
profitability to the bank, matching deposit and loan products and its customer preferences and concerns. Sun
American Bank reviews its deposit mix and pricing weekly.

Borrowings. Sun American Bank has the ability to borrow from correspondent banks to supplement its
supply of lendable funds and to meet deposit withdrawal requirements. Advances are made pursuant to limitations
on the amount of advances and are based on the financial condition of the member institution as well as the value
and acceptability of collateral pledged. We have established a correspondent relationship with Independent Bankers
Bank of Lake Mary, Florida with respect to the foregoing services. At December 31, 2006, Sun American Bank
maintained an unsecured line of credit of $5.0 million and we maintained a $2.0 million revolving credit line, each
with Independent Bankers Bank, to meet interim liquidity needs. There were no borrowings outstanding under these
unsecured lines of credit as of December 31, 2006.

Equity and Capital Resources. Sun American Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by federal and state banking authorities. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate
certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on our financial statements and operations. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, we must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures
of Sun American Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting policies.

Sun American Bank’s capital accounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgment by the
regulators about components, risk weighting, and other factors. Quantitative and qualitative measures established by
regulation to ensure capitat adequacy require us to maintain minimum amounts and ratios, set forth in the table later
in this report of Total and Tier-1 capital, as defined by federal banking regulations, to risk weighted assets, and of
Tier-1 capital to average assets. Management believes that as of December 31, 2006, we have met the capital
adequacy requirements as defined by these definitions, and were well capitalized.

Dividends. There are various limitations under law on the ability of Sun American Bank to pay dividends.
The Federal Reserve Bank and the Florida Department of Financial Services also have the general authority to limit
the dividends paid by insured banks if such payment may be deemed to constitute an unsafe and unsound practice.
Under Florida law applicable to banks and subject to certain limitations, after charging off bad debts, depreciation
and other worthless assets, if any, and making provisions for reasonably anticipated future losses on loans and other
assets, the board of directors of a bank may declare a dividend of so much of the bank’s aggregate net profits for the
current year combined with its retained earnings (if any) for the preceding two years as the board shall deem to be
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appropriate and, with the approval of the Florida Department of Financial Services, may declare a dividend from
retained earnings for prior years. Before declaring a dividend, a bank must carry 20% of its net profits for any
preceding period as is covered by the dividend to its surplus fund, until the surplus fund is at least equal to the
amount of its common stock then issued and outstanding. No dividends may be paid at any time when a bank’s net
income from the preceding two years is a loss or which would cause the capital accounts of the bank to fall below
the minimum amount required by law or any written statement with the Florida Department of Financial Services or
a federal regulatory agency.

Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-Terrorism Legisiation. On October 26, 2001, the President of the United
States signed the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and
Obstruct Terrorism (USA PATRIOT) Act of 2001. Under the USA PATRIOT Act, financial institutions are subject
to prohibitions against specified financial transactions and account relationships as well as enhanced due diligence
and “know your customer” standards in their dealings with foreign financial institutions and domestic and foreign
customers. For example, the enhanced due diligence policies, procedures and controls generally require financial
institutions to take reasonable steps:

e to conduct enhanced scrutiny of certain account relationships to guard against money laundering and
report any suspicious transaction;

e 1o ascertain the identity of the nominal and beneficial owners of, and the source of funds deposited
into, certain accounts as needed to guard against money laundering and report any suspicious
transactions;

e to ascertain with respect to any foreign correspondent bank customer, the shares of which are not
publicly traded, the identity of the owners of the foreign bank and the nature and extent of the
ownership interest of each such owner; and

e to ascertain whether any foreign bank provides correspondent accounts to other foreign banks and, if
so, the identity of those foreign banks and related due diligence information.

On September 26, 2002, the United States Department of the Treasury adopted final rules pursuant to
Sections 314(a) and (b) of the USA PATRIOT Act designed to increase the cooperation and information sharing
between financial institutions, regulators and law enforcement authorities regarding individuals, entities and
organizations engaged in, or reasonably suspected based on credible evidence of engaging in, terrorist acts or money
laundering activities. Under the new rules, a financial institution is required to:

e expeditiously search its records to determine whether it maintains or has maintained accounts, or
engaged in transactions with individuals or entities, listed in an information request submitted by the
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network;

 notify the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network if an account or transaction is identified;
e designate a contact person to receive information requests;

e limit use of information provided by the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network to: (i) reporting to the
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network; (ii) determining whether to establish or maintain an account
or engage in a transaction; and (iii) assisting the financial instittion in complying with the Bank
Secrecy Act; and

+ maintain adequate procedures to protect the security and confidentiality of Financial Crimes
Enforcement Network requests.

Under the new rules, a financial institution under certain circumstances may also share with other financial
institutions, information regarding individuals, entities, organizations and countries for purposes of identifying and,
where appropriate, reporting activities that it suspects may involve possible terrorist activity or money laundering.

On September 26, 2002, the United States Department of the Treasury also adopted a new rule under the
authority of Sections 313 and 319(b) of the USA PATRIOT Act intended to prevent money laundering and terrorist
financing through correspondent accounts maintained by U.S. financial institutions on behalf of foreign banks.
Under the new rule, financial institutions;

«  are prohibited from providing correspondent accounts to foreign shell banks;
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» are required to obtain a certification from forcign banks for which they maintain a correspondent
account stating the foreign bank is not a shell bank and that it will not permit a foreign shell bank to
have access to the U.S. account;

¢ must maintain records identifying the owner of the foreign bank for which they may maintain a
correspondent account and its agent in the Unites States designated to accept service of legal process;
and

¢ must terminate correspondent accounts of foreign banks that fail to comply with or fail to contest a
lawful request of the Secretary of the Treasury or the Attorney General of the United States, afier being
notified by the Secretary or Attorney General.

At December 31, 2006, Sun American Bank did not maintain any correspondent accounts for non-U.S.
banking institutions.

On April 30, 2003, the United States Department of the Treasury issued final regulations under Section 326
of the USA PATRIOT Act that require banks to adopt written customer identification programs that will require
them to:

e verify the identify of any person secking to open an account;
s maintain records of the information used to verify identity; and

e consult government known or suspected terrorist lists to determine whether the customer appears on
any such list,

The foregoing requirements were included in Sun American Bank’s anti-money laundering program as of
ecember 31, 2006 as required by the USA PATRIOT Act.

Proposed Legislation and Regulatory Action. New regulations and statutes are regularly proposed that
contain wide-ranging proposals for altering the structures, regulations and competitive relationships of the nation’s
financial institutions. Management cannot predict whether or in what form any proposed regulation or statute will be
adopted or the extent to which our business may be affected by any new regulation or statute.

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies. Our earnings will be affected by the monetary and fiscal
policies of the United States government and its agencies, as well as general domestic economic conditions. The
Federal Reserve Board’s power to implement national monetary policy has had, and is likely to continue to have, an
important impact on the operating results of commercial banks. The Federal Reserve Board affects the levels of
bank loans, investments and deposits through its control over the issuance of United States government securities
and through its regulation of the discount rate on borrowings of member banks and the reserve requirements against
member bank deposits. It is not possible to predict the nature or impact of future changes in monetary and fiscal
policies.

Employees

At December 31, 2006, there were 122 full time employees of the Company. The employees are provided
with group life, health, major medical, dental and vision insurance, and long term disability, None of our or Sun
American Bank's employees is represented by any collective bargaining units. We consider our employee relations
to be good.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us, or that we currently see as immaterial, may also harm our business. If any of
the risks or uncertainties described below or any such additional risks and uncertainties actually occur, our business,
results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

You should consider the following risk factors as well as the other information contained in this report,
including, but not limited to, the financial statements and the related notes.

Risks Related to QOur Business

Loan losses would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results and could
cause our insolvency, which would negatively impact the value of our commeon stock.

As a lender, we are exposed to the risk that our customers will be unable to repay their loans according to
their terms and that the value of the collateral securing the payment of their loans, if any, may not be sufficient to
assure repayment.

Our loan portfolio includes: (i) commercial and residential mortgage loans principally secured by real
estate; (ii) other commercial loans; and (iii) consumer and home equity loans. Our credit risk with respect to our
consumer and commercial loan portfolios relates principally to the general creditworthiness of individuals and
businesses within our local market area and the value of the collateral held as security for the repayment of the loan.
Our credit risk with respect to our residential and commercial real estate mortgage portfolio relates principally to the
general creditworthiness of individuals and businesses and the value of real estate serving as security for the
repayment of the loans. Loan losses could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating
results and could cause our insolvency, which may negatively impact the value of our common stock.

A decline in the value of the collateral securing our loans could result in an increase in losses on foreclosure,
which could adversely affect our financial condition and negatively impact the value of our common stock.

Declining real estate values increase the loan-to-value ratios of loans we previously made, which, in turn,
increases the probability of a loss in the event the borrower defaults and we have to sell the mortgaged property. In
addition, delinquencies, foreclosures on loans and losses from delinquent and foreclosed loans generally increase
during economic slowdowns or recessions. As a result, the market value of the real estate or other collateral
underlying our loans may not, at any given time, be sufficient to satisfy the outstanding principal amount of the
loans, which could adversely affect our financial condition and negatively impact the value of our common stock. In
addition, any significant decline in real estate values reduces the ability of borrowers to use home equity as collateral
for borrowings. This reduction in real estate values may reduce the number of loans we are able to make, which
could also adversely affect our operating results and negatively impact the value of our common stock.

Our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover actual loan losses, which could adversely affect our
financial condition and operating results and may negatively impact the value of our common stock.

From time to time, we have to recognize losses resulting from the inability of certain borrowers to repay
loans and the insufficient realizable value of the collateral securing loans. We maintain an allowance for loan losses
in an attempt to cover oan losses inherent in our loan portfolio. Additional loan losses will likely occur in the future
and may occur at a rate greater than we have experienced to date. In determining the size of the allowance, our
management evaluates our past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations
that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay (including the timing of future payments), the estimated value of any
underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other relevant factors.
This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates of material factors, including, but not limited to, the
amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans, that may be susceptible to
significant change. If our assumptions and judgments prove to be incorrect, our current allowance may not be
sufficient and adjustments may be necessary to allow for different economic conditions or adverse developments in
our loan portfolio. Federal and state regulators also periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may
require us to increase our provision for loan losses or recognize further loan charge-offs, based on judgments
different than those of our management. Any increase in our allowance for loan losses or loan charge-offs could
have an adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results, which may negatively impact the value of
our common stock.
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Qur level of growth in recent years may not continue if our growth strategy is not successful.

In recent years, we have experienced significant growth through acquisitions and internal generation of new
business. We intend to continue to expand our business through internal growth by opening new branches, adding to
our loan portfolio and bringing in new deposits as well as through the acquisition of the assets and assumption of
deposits of other banks as opportunities are identified. However, our ability to sustain continued growth depends
upon several factors outside of our control, including economic conditions generally and in Florida in particular, as
well as interest rate trends. We can provide no assurance that we will continue to be successful in increasing the
volume of our loans and deposits at acceptable risk and asset quality levels and upon acceptable terms, while
managing the costs and implementation risks associated with this growth strategy. There can be no assurance that
any further expansion will be profitable or that we will continue to be able to sustain our historical rate of growth,
either through internal growth or through acquisitions,

Acquisitions that we may engage in invelve risks, which could negatively affect our operations and reduce the
value of our common stock.

As part of our growth strategy, we completed, and may engage in the future in, bank or other acquisitions.
Generally, acquisitions involve numerous risks, including, but not limited to:

. difficulties in assimilating operations of the acquired institution and implementing uniform
standards, controls, procedures and policies;

. exposure to asset quality problems of the acquired institution;

. maintaining adequate regulatory capital;

) diversion of management’s attention from other business concermns;

) risks and expenses of entering new geographic markets;

. potentiat significant loss of depositors or loan customers from the acquired institution;
. loss of key employees of the acquired institution; and

. exposure to undisclosed or unknown liabilities of an acquired institution.

Any of these acquisition risks could result in unexpected losses or expenses and thereby reduce the
expected benefits of the acquisition. Moreover, our failure to successfully integrate futire acquisitions and manage
our growth could adversely affect our business, resuits of operations, financial condition and future prospects.

We may be unable to successfully integrate Beach Bank’s operations and the operations of Independent
Community Bank and achieve the projected cash savings and other benefits anticipated.

The acquisition transaction and the proposed merger transaction with Independent Community Bank
involve the integration of Beach Bank and Independent Community Bank. The difficultics of integrating the
operations of Beach Bank and Independent Community Bank with Sun American Bank, at essentially the same time
include, but are not limited to:

» integrating personnel with diverse business backgrounds;
. combining different corporate cultures; and
. retaining key employees.

The process of integrating operations could cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the activities
of one or more of us, our subsidiary bank, Beach Bank and Independent Community Bank, the loss of key
personnel, disruption of each bank’s business or inconsistencies in standard, controls and policies that could
adversely affect our operations or our ability to achieve some of the cost savings or other benefits of these
transactions. The integration of Beach Bank and Independent Community Bank with Sun American Bank will
require the experience and expertise of certain key employees of Sun American Bank and such other banks who are
expected to be retained by us. We cannot be sure, however, that we will be successful in retaining these employees
for the time period necessary to successfully integrate Beach Bank and Independent Community Bank operations.
The diversion of management’s attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in connection with the
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acquisitions, along with the integration of Beach Bank and Independent Community Bank, could have an adverse
effect on our business and results of operation,

We have experienced operating losses in the past, and continued losses may negatively impact our financial
position and the value of our common stock.

We incurred net losses of $228,035 and $442,655 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Although for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, we had net income of
$3.2 mitlion and $2.9 million, respectively, there can be no assurance that we will continue to be profitable in the
future. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, our loss reflected the discontinuance of a loan product known
as “Business Manager” for which we wrote off approximately $582,000, as well as integration costs associated with
the purchase of Gulf Bank of approximately $222,000. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, our loss
reflected loan write-offs of approximately $1.1 million. If we experience losses, our financial position could be
negatively impacted and the value of our common stock may decline,

The geographic concentration af our operations in Florida makes our business highly susceptible to local
economic conditions, and an economic downturn or recession or adverse weather conditions in Floride may
adversely afffect our ability 1o operate profitably, which could reduce the value of our common stock.

Unlike larger banking organizations that are more geographically diversificd, our operations are currently
concentrated in Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties in Florida. As a result of this geographic
concentration in the Florida market, our financial results depend largely upon economic conditions in this market
area. A deterioration or recession in economic conditions in this market could result in one or more of the foltowing:

. an increase in loan delinquencies;

. an increase in problem assets and foreclosures;

. a decrease in the demand for our products and services; and

. a decrease in the value of collateral for loans, especially real estate, and reduction in the

customers’ borrowing power.

In addition, because a large portion of our loan portfolio is secured by properties located in Florida, the
occurrence of a natural disaster, such as a hurricane, could result in a decline in deposits and loan originations, a
decline in the value or destruction of mortgaged properties and an increase in the risk of delinquencies, foreclosures
or loss on loans originated by us in that state.

Environmental laws and regulations and other environmental considerations may restrict our ability to foreclose
on loans secured by real estate or increase costs associated with those loans, which could adversely affect our
JSinancial condition and negatively impact the value of our common stock. If we foreclosed upon a property that
had environmental liabilities, we could face significant liability.

Our ability to foreclose on the real estate collateralizing our loans may be limited by environmental laws
that pertain primarily to commercial properties that require a current or previous owner or operator of real property
to investigate and clean up hazardous or toxic substances or chemical releases on the property. In addition, the
owner or operator may be held liable to a governmental entity or to third parties for property damage, personal
injury, investigation and cleanup costs relating to the contaminated property. While we would not knowingly make a
loan collateralized by real property that was contaminated, we may not discover the environmental contamination
until after we made the loan or after we foreclosed on a loan. If we foreclosed upon a property that had
environmental liabilities, we could face significant Liability,

In addition to federal or state laws, owners or former owners of a contaminated site may be subject to
common law claims, inclueding tort claims, by third parties based on damages and costs resulting from
environmental contamination migrating from the property. Other environmental considerations, such as pervasive
mold infestation of real estate securing our loans, may also restrict our ability to foreclose on delinquent loans. To
the extent that we sustain losses due to the environmental issues that may arise in connection with our loans, such
losses could adversely affect our financial condition and impact the value of our common stock.
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If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to
accurately report our financial results or prevent fraud. As a result, current and potential stockholders and
depositors could lose confidence in our financial reporting, which could adversely affect our business and the
value of our common stock,

Beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2005, we began a process to document and evaluate our internal
control over financial reporting in order to satisfy the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 and SEC rules and regulations, including, among other matters, management’s assessment of the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting, In this regard, management has hired an external consultant, been
dedicating internal resources and adopted a detailed work plan to: (i) assess and document the adequacy of our
internal control over financial reporting; (ii) take steps to improve control processes, where appropriate; (iii) verify
through testing that controls are functioning as documented; and (iv) implement a continuous reporting and
improvement process for internal control over financial reporting.

On a number of occasions, we did not timely furnish a Current Report on Form §-K to report events
required to be reported on such form. We note that failures to timely furnish these forms were due to human
performance error, not a process deficiency.

If we fail to correct any issues in the design or operating effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting or fail to prevent fraud, current and potential stockholders and depositors could lose confidence in our
financial reporting, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and the
value of our common stock.

Government regulation may have an adverse effect on our profitability and growth, which may decrease the
value of our common stock. :

We are subject to extensive federal and state government supervision and regulation. Our ability to
continue to grow profitably could be adversely affected by federal and state banking laws and regulations that limit
the manner in which we accept deposits, make loans, purchase securities, pay dividends and engage in banking and
other businesses. These laws and regulations are subject to change and such changes may adversely impact our
business and profitability due to the costs related to compliance with these requirements or changes that may be
required to our operations. These laws and regulations are intended primarily to protect depositors, not stockholders.
In 2005, we entered into agreements with federal and state regulators to remain well capitalized and improve our
policies and procedures in administrative areas affecting internal audit, asset and liability management and
compliance and agreed to periodically report to the regulatory authorities on our progress in these areas. These
agreements ended in 2006. In addition, the burden imposed by federal and state laws and regulations may place us at
a competitive disadvantage compared to financial institutions that are less regulated and may have an adverse affect
on our profitability, which may decrease the value of our common stock. Future legislation or government policy
may also adversely affect our operations.

Competition from other financial institutions could adversely affect our profitability and growth, which may
reduce the value of our common stock.

As a small commercial bank we face substantial competition in all phases of our operations from a vartety
of different competitors, including many large financial institutions. Competition for deposits, loans, and other
financial services comes from numerous Florida-based and out-of-state banks, savings banks, thrifts, credit unions
and other financial institutions as well as other entities that provide financial services, many of which are much !
larger than Sun American Bank. Most of these competitors, some of which are affiliated with bank holding
companies, have substantially- greater resources and lending limits, and may offer certain services, such as trust,
investment and full service international banking, that Sun American Bank does not currently provide. In addition,
many of our non-bank competitors are not subject to the same extensive federal regulations that govern bank holding
companies and federally insured banks. Competition from various financial institutions could hinder our growth
strategy and ability to attain profitable operations, which may reduce the value of our common stock.

From time to time we are subject to litigation, the impact of which on our financial position is uncertain. The
inherent uncertainty related to litigation makes it difficult to predict the ultimate outcome or potential liability
that we may incur as a result of these matters.

We and Sun American Bank are periodically parties to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings arising in
the normal course of business, such as claims to enforce liens, claims involving the making and servicing of real
property loans, and other issues incident to our business. Management does not believe that there is any pending
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proceeding against us or Sun American Bank, which, if determined adversely, would have a material effect on our
business or financial position.

On June 2, 2006, we, Michael Golden, and Franklin Financial Group, LLC were named as defendants ina
civil suit filed by Sam Caliendo and G. Carlton Marlowe, both former members of our board of directors, Case
No. 502006CA005467XXXXMB, Palm Beach County Circuit Court, The plaintiffs allege that they did not receive
compensation, including options and warrants that were promised to them while they were board members.
Mr. Caliendo further alleges that he was not paid for services provided to Mr. Golden, individually, and to Franklin
Financial Group, LLC. No specific damage amount was alleged in the compiaint. We and Mr. Golden have moved
to dismiss the complaint and deny the allegations.

We believe that we have several defenses to the claims raised by this lawsuit and intend to vigorously
defend the lawsuit. Due to the inherent uncertainties in litigation and because the ultimate resolution of this
proceeding is influenced by factors outside of our control, we are currently unable to predict the ultimate outcome of
this litigation or its impact on our financial condition or results of operations. However, to the extent that our
management will be required to participate in or otherwise devote substantial amounts of time to the defense of this
lawsuit, such activities would result in the diversion of our management resources from our business operations and
the implementation of our growth strategy, which may negatively impact our results of operations.

Risks Related to an Investment in Our Securities

There is not presently an active market for shares of our common stock and, therefore, you may be unable to sell
any shares of common stock in the event that you need a source of liquidity.

Although our common stock is listed on the American Stock Exchange, the trading in our common stock
has substantially less liquidity than the trading in the securities of many other companies listed on that market. A
public trading market in our common stock having the desired characteristics of depth, liquidity and orderliness
depends on the presence in the market of willing buyers and sellers of our common stock at any time. This presence
depends on the individual decisions of investors and general economic and market conditions over which we have
no control. In the event an active market for our common stock does not develop, you may be unable to resell your
shares of common stock at or above the merger consideration price per share or at any price.

Issuance of shares of our common stock upon the exercise or conversion of derivative securities may cause
significant dilution of eguity interests of existing holders of common stock, reduce the proportionate voting power
of existing holders of common stock and reduce the value of our common stock.

As of March 8, 2007, 23,236,043 shares of our common stock were issued and outstanding. We have
reserved approximately an additional 13,254,548 shares of common stock for issuance in connection with previously
issued securities that are exercisable or convertible into common stock, which represents 57% of our outstanding
common stock. We also have reserved 5,915,233 shares of common stock in connection with our benefit plans and
200,000 shares of common stock in connection with our warrant plan. Should existing holders of warrants or other
securities exercisable or convertible into shares of our common stock exercise or convert such derivative securities
into shares of our common stock, it may cause significant dilution of equity interests of existing holders of common
stock, reduce the proportionate voting power of existing holders of common stock and reduce the value of our
common stock and outstanding warrants.

Due to the issuance of up to 4.2 million shares of our common stock and conversion of options to purchase
22,046 shares of Independent Community Bank common stock, into 142,115 options to purchase shares of our
common stock at the effective time of the proposed merger of Independent Community Bank with and into Sun
American Bank, the outstanding shares of our common stock would be subject to further dilution. As of March 8,
2007, we had approximately 7,394,176 shares of our common stock available for future issuances, which issuances
would cause further dilution.

A substantial number of our outstanding shares of commen stock or shares issuable upon the exercise of options
and warrants are eligible for future sale and the sale of onur shares of common stock into the market may depress
our stock price.

Our stock price may be depressed by future sales of our shares of common stock or the perception that
future sales may occur. As of March 8, 2007, 23,236,043 shares of our common stock were issued and outstanding,
of which 14,593,571 shares have previously been registered with the SEC. As of March 8, 2007, 15,563,706 shares
issuable upon the exercise of options or warrants have been registered for resale with the SEC, including 5,826,660
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shares underlying options issued under our Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option Plan, our Amended and
Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan and our Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option and Stock Incentive Plan,
4,862,100 shares underlying Series D common stock purchase warrants, 4,084,358 shares underlying Series F
common stock purchase warrants, 50,000 shares underlying Series G common stock purchase warrants and 740,588
shares underlying common stock purchase warrants issued to placement agents in connection with certain private
placements that occurred between August 2005 and February 2006. We are unable to estimate the amount, timing or
nature of future sales of common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of common stock in the public market, or the
perception that these sales may occur, may lower the common stock’s market price.

Due to the issuance of up to 4.2 million shares of our common stock and conversion of options to purchase
22,046 shares of Independent Community Bank common stock, into 142,115 options to purchase shares of our
common stock at the effective time of the proposed merger of Independent Community Bank with and into Sun
American Bank, an increased number of shares of our common stock will be eligible for future sale, which also may
depress our stock price.

We may issue shares of preferred stock that could be entitled to dividends, liguidation preferences and other
special rights and preferences not shared by holders of our common stock.

We are authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock. We may issue shares of
preferred stock in one or more series as our board of directors may from time to time determine without stockholder
approval. The voting powers, preferences and other special rights and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of
each such series of preferred stock may differ from each other. The issuance of any such series of preferred stock
could materially adversely affect the rights of holders of our common stock and could reduce the value of cur
common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions and the regulations to which we may be subject may make it more difficult for a third
party to acquire control of us, even if the change in control would be beneficial to our stockholders.

Anti-takeover provisions in the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and cur Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws, including the right te issue “blank check” preferred stock, as
well as approvals required under banking laws and regulations, could hinder or delay a change in controt of our
company, including transactions in which holders of commeon stock might otherwise receive a premium over the
market price of their shares at the time of the transaction.

We do not pay cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future.

We are subject to legal limitations under federal and state laws affecting the frequency and amount of
dividends that may be paid to our stockholders. Banking regulators may restrict the ability of any bank holding
company subject to their jurisdiction to pay dividends if the payments would constitute an unsafe or unsound
banking practice. As a Delaware corporation, we may not declare and pay dividends on our capital stock if the
amount paid exceeds an amount equal to the surplus, which represents the excess of our net assets over paid-in-
capital or, if there is no surplus, our net profits for the current and/or immediately preceding fiscal year. Under
applicable Delaware case law, dividends may not be paid on our common stock if we become insolvent or the
payment of dividends will render us insolvent. We do not pay, and we do not anticipate paying, any cash dividends
on the common stock in the foreseeable future.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
The Bank owns two parcels of real property, one which is located at 2770 S.W. 27* Avenue, Miami,
Florida, which houses a branch of the Bank. The other property is a parcel land located in Delray Beach, Florida,
which is expected to be used for a future branch site. Both of these properties are free of encumbrances. All of the
Bank’s branches are full service branches with the exception of the location at 11381 Prosperity Farms Road in
Palm Beach Gardens, which is a limited service branch.
The following sets forth certain information regarding the Bank’s branch facilities. Management believes
that each of our current facilities is adequate and well suited to our current operations.
Square Year Opened Occupancy
Name and County Address Feet or Acquired Status
Coral Way Branch 3400 Coral Way 11,464 2004 Leased
Miami-Dade County (1)
Coral Gables Branch 221 Miracle Mile 4,000 2006 Leased
Miami-Dade County
Grovegate Branch 2770 SW 27" Avenue 5,435 2001 Owned
Miami- Dade County
Doral Branch 2500 NW 97 Avenue 2,986 2004 Leased
Miami-Dade County
Dadeland Branch 8099 South Dixie 2,500 2006 Leased
Miami-Dade County (2) Highway
Miami Beach Branch 555 Arthur Godfrey 4,900 2006 Leased
Miami-Dade County (2) Road
Hollywood Branch 3475 Sheridan Street 4,800 1992 Leased
Broward County
Ft Lauderdale Branch 350 SE 2™ Street 3,500 2007 Leased
Broward County (3)
West Delray Branch 2160 West Atlantic 3,816 2007 Leased
Palm Beach County (3) Avenue
Boca Raton Branch 1200 North Federal 5,388 2002 Leased
Palm Beach County Hwy
Boynton Beach Branch 3501 W Boynton 1,600 2005 Leased
Palm Beach County Beach Blvd
PGA Branch 2000 PGA Blvd Suite 3,648 2006 Leased
Palm Beach County E5506
Prosperity Oaks Branch 11381 Prosperity 200 2007 Leased
Palm Beach County (3)4) Farms Road
East Delray Branch 530 SE 6% Avenue 1,960 2007 Owned
Palmn Beach County (5)
West Boca Branch 9293 Glades Road 5,000 2007 Leased
Palm Beach County (5)
Stuart Branch 2171 SE Federal Hwy 4,000 2007 Leased
Martin County (6)
Other Facilities
Operations Center 7300 NW 19* Street 14,973 2006 Leased

Miami-Dade County

Suite 102

(1) Branch operations are located on the first floor. The second and seventh floors are available for lease to other
parties.

(2) Acquired from Beach Bank.

(3) Branch under construction at December 31, 2006. Opened January 2007.

(4) Limited service branch.

(5) Branch under construction at December 31, 2006. Expected to open during second quarter of 2007,
(6) Branch under construction at December 31, 2006. Expected to open during fourth quarter of 2007.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We and Sun American Bank are periodically parties to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings arising in
the normal course of business, such as claims to enforce liens, claims involving the making and servicing of real
property loans, and other issues incident to our business. Management does not believe that there is any pending
proceeding against us or Sun American Bank, which, if determined adversely, would have a material effect on our
business or financial position.

On May 12, 2004, Fausto Marquez commenced an action against Sun American Bank, Case No. 03-21466
20, Miami-Dade County Circuit Court. Mr. Marquez alleged that Sun American Bank had interfered with his efforts
to purchase Gulf Bank. The trial court has dismissed the claims, with prejudice. On November 29, 2006, the
appellate court affirmed the decision of the trial court which had dismissed the complaint. As of January 15, 2007,
no appeal has been filed. This matter has concluded in favor of Sun American Bank and no further appeals have
been taken and any further appeals are time barred.

On June 2, 2006, Sun American Bancorp, Michael Golden, and Franklin Financial Group, LLC were
named as defendants in a civil suit brought by former board members Sam Caliendo and G. Carlton Marlowe, Case
No. 502006CAQ005467XXXXMB, Palm Beach County Circuit Court. The plaintiffs allege that they did not receive
compensation, including options and warrants that were promised to them while they were board members.

Mr. Caliendo further alleges that he was not paid for services provided to Mr. Golden, individually, and to Franklin
Financial Group, LLC. No specific damage amount was alleged in the complaint. Sun American Bancorp and

Mr. Golden have moved to dismiss the complaint and deny the allegations. Management cannot determine the
outcome of the lawsuit at this time, or estimate the probability of loss, and therefore, no liability has been
established.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

A Special Meeting of Stockholders (the “Special Meeting”) was held on December 27, 2006 at our
operations center located at 7300 NW 19™ Street, Miami, Florida. At the Special Meeting, the stockholders approved
the following proposals by the following votes:

The stockholders approved an amendment and restatement of our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock from 40,000,000 to 50,000,000.

For Agpainst Abstain Broker Non-Votes
10,335,306 67,043 11,375 3,850,114

The stockholders approved the issuance and sale of up to 4,500,000 shares of commoen stock in connection
with our acquisition of substantially all the assets, and assumption of substantially all the liabilities, of Beach Bark.

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Votes
10,278,987 126,802 7,935 3,850,114

The stockholders approved the issuance and sale of up to 4,600,000 shares of common stock in connection
with the merger of Independent Community Bank with and into Sun American Bank and assumption of Independent
options to purchase up to approximately 866,000 shares of common stock.

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Votes
10,275,331 134,898 3,494 3,850,114

The stockholders approved an amendment and restatermnent of our 2005 Stock Option and Stock Incentive
Plan to among other things, increase the number of shares reserved for issuance under the plan from 2,000,000 to
4,000,000,

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Votes
9,935,354 289,072 189,298 3,850,114
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The stockholders approved an amendment and restatement of our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation to effect a 1 share for 2.5 shares reverse stock split to occur after the closing of the acquisition
transaction and prior to December 31, 2007.

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Votes
12,466,756 92,806 42,053 1,662,223

The stockholders approved a proposal to adjourn the special meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to
permit further solicitation of proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the
foregoing proposals.

For Against Abstain Broker Non-Votes
12,418,129 128,661 54,825 1,662,223
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PART II

ITEM 3. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock was traded on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol SBK prior
to March 22, 2007. The Company’s common stock closed trading on December 29, 2006 at a price of $5.22 per
share. Effective March 22, 2007, the Company’s common stock commenced trading on the Nasdaqg stock market
under the symbol “SAMB”.

The following table shows the Company’s quarterly high and low sales prices for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005.

2006 2005
High § Low $ High § Low §
First quarter $5.65 $4.30 $4.25 $3.82
Second guarter 5.55 4.90 425 1.50
Third quarter 5.60 5.00 5.13 3.90
Fourth quarter 5.76 5.00 5.05 3.98

Sun American Bancorp is subject to legal limitations under federal and state laws affecting the frequency
and amount of dividends that may be paid to its stockholders. Banking regulators may restrict the ability of any bank
holding company subject to their jurisdiction to pay dividends if the payments would constitute an unsafe or
unsound banking practice. As a Delaware corporation, Sun American Bancorp may not declare and pay dividends
on its capital stock if the amount paid exceeds an amount equal to the surplus that represents the excess of its net
assets over paid-in-capital or, if there is no surplus, its net profits for the current and/or immediately preceding fiscal
year. Under applicable Delaware case law, dividends may not be paid on Sun American Bancorp common stock if it
becomes insolvent or the payment of dividends will render it insolvent. Sun American Bancorp has never paid, and
does not in the foreseeable future anticipate paying, cash dividends on its common stock.

As of March 8, 2007, 23,236,043 shares were issued and outstanding and were held by approximately 649
sharcholders of record.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

The Company had no sales of unregistered securities during the fourth quarter of 2006.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2006 with respect to compensation plans
under which the Company’s equity securities are authorized for issuance.

Number of securities

Number of securities to remaining available for
be issued upon exercise Weighted-average exercise future issuance under equity
of outstanding options, price of outstanding compensation plans
warrants and rights options, warrants and (excluding securities reflected
Plan category Column (s) rights Column (b) in Column (2)) Column (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 2,997,780 $4.00 2,883,280
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 88,573 $2.19 —_
Total 3,086,353 $3.95 2,883,280

The Company has three equity compensation plans: (i) the Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option
Plan; (ii) the Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan; and (iii) the Amended and Restated 2005 Stock
Option and Stock Incentive Plan.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s stockholders approved a maximum of 1,000,000 shares of
common stock to be issued under the Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option Plan and there were options to
purchase 777,700 shares of common stock outstanding,
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As of December 31, 2006, the Companys stockholders approved a maximum of 1,000,000 shares of
common stock to be issued under the Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan and there were options to
purchase 941,480 shares of common stock outstanding.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s stockholders approved a maximum of 4,000,000 shares of
common stock to be issued under the Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option and Stock Incentive Plan and there
were options to purchase 1,278,100 shares of common stock outstanding.

Stock Price Performance

The following table compares the cumulative total return on a hypothetical investment of $100 in the
Company’s common stock on December 31, 2001 through December 31, 2006, with the hypothetical cumulative
total return on AMEX Composite Index, and the AMEX Banks & Financial Services Index for the comparable
period, including reinvestment of dividends.

~e— AMEX Banks and Financial Senices —&— SBK —g— AMEX Composite
$275.00 -
$250.00 A
$225.00 —
$200.00
g $175.00
S $150.00
X $125.00 -
E $100.00 -
$75.00
$50.00
$25.00
-
I3Y2001 2/3Y2002 /3¥2003 /372004 °/3¥2005 ©/37Y2006
December 31,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Sun American Bancorp $100.00 $138.30 $170.21 $171.49 §$187.23 $222.13
AMEX Composite Index $100.00 $97.26 $13845 $169.22 $207.53 $242.62
AMEX Banks and Financial Services Index $100.00 $108.83 $140.02 $159.24 $154.89 §174.12

25




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the consolidated financial condition,
operating results, and key operating ratios for the Company at the dates and for the periods indicated. This
information does not purport to be complete, and should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company and Notes thereto.

As of and for the Years Ended December 31,

{dollars in thousands except per share data) 2006 2008 2004 2003 2002
Selected Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 56,415 $ 27581 § 6214 % 3,190 § 12,052
Investments 57,418 26,369 22,574 19,572 13,612
Loans, net 350,743 210,665 153,730 66,197 60,036
Total assets 503,883 277,151 191,467 94,100 90,210
Total deposits 402,978 193,465 158,158 80,133 80,086
Total shareholders’ equity 84,514 59,625 20,746 9,847 8,030
Book value per common share 3.65 3.22 2.44 1.73 1.56
Selected Income Statement Data
Net interest income 3 15202 § 1,303 § 6,519 § 3,735 § 3,011
Provision for loan losses 338 475 1,397 978 233
Noninterest income 859 1,075 969 654 630
Noninterest expense 13,779 8,982 6,319 3,854 3917
Income tax benefit (expense) 1,236 — — — —
Minority Interest (1) (2) — — 1
Net income (loss) 5 3,179 § 2919 § (228) (443) (508)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 017 3 024 3 (0.05) $ (0.08) 8 (0.11)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.14 0.21 (0.05) (0.08) (0.11)
Selected Financial Ratios:
Return on average assets 0.97% 1.24% (0.14)% (0.47Y% (0.68)%
Return on average equity 5.12% 8.50% (1.33)% (4.65)% (6.54)%
Ratio of average equity to average
assets 18.92% 14.62% 10.68% 10.16% 10.42%
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Throughout this section, unless the context indicates otherwise, when we use the terms “‘we,” “our” or
“us,” we are referring to Sun American Bancorp and its subsidiary Sun American Bank. Throughout this section,
unless the context indicates otherwise, when we use the term the “Company,”” we are referring to Sun American
Bancorp. Throughout this section, unless the context indicates otherwise, when we use the term the “Bank,” we are
referring to Sun American Bank.

Our primary market and service area is Broward, Miami-Dade and Palm Beach counties where we operated
twelve full service banking offices and one specialty branch office as of January 22, 2007. We have grown
significantly in recent years due to the acquisition of certain assets, and assumption of certain liabilities, of
PanAmerican Bank in December 2001, Gulf Bank in February 2004 and Beach Bank in 2006. Since these
transactions, we have pursued a growth strategy, increasing our level of earning asscts, primarily through increases
in the loan portfolio by concentrating on the origination of commercial loan products, by competitively pricing
deposit products to grow client deposits while maintaining an interest rate spread, and by increasing the level of
capital in support of this growth. The periodic addition of new capital to support business growth is a core
component required to permit us to realize growth plans.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, our capital base was increased by approximately $21.9 million.
The capital base increased by $18.2 million due to the issuance of 3.7 million shares of our common stock upon the
closing of the Beach Bank transaction. The capital base increased a further $3.1 million through the exercise of our
warrants and employee stock options. During 2005 and the first quarter of 2006, we completed several private
offerings to investors which added $35.5 million and $125,000, respectively, of net new capital. The first private
placement in March of 2005 involved the sale of 1,586,000 units at an offering price of $4.00 per unit, each of which
consisted of one share of common stock and one Class E Warrant. Each Class E Warrant has a five year term and
provides the holder with the right to purchase one share of common stock for $4.25. We received net proceeds of
$5.7 million from this offering. The other private placements involved the sale of 8,266,000 units at an offering
price of $4.00 per unit, each of which consisted of one share of common stock and one Class F Warrant. Each
Class F Warrant has a five year term and provides the holder with the right to purchase 0.5 share of common stock
for $4.00 per share. We received net proceeds of $29.9 million from this offering. We are committed to raising
additional capital as required to meet business growth requirements and maintain Sun American Bank’s status as a
well capitalized financial institution. Sun American Bank’s capital exceeded statutory guidelines at December 31,
2006. There were no dividends declared in the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

We intend to continue to expand our business through internal growth as well as through the select
acquisition of the assets and assumption of deposits of other banks if and when opportunities are identified. We will
also seek to acquire other community banks in South Florida subject to favorable pricing considerations although
none are currently contemplated other than the proposed Independent Community Bank acquisition. We intend to
grow internally by opening new branches, adding to our loan portfolio and bringing in new deposits. We also intend
to grow our capital base on a continuing basis as it is part of our business strategy of maintaining a “well”
capitalized position. We intend to pursue this business strategy while managing asset quality.

As of December 31, 2006, we had total assets of $503.9 million, net loans of $350.7 million, deposits of
$403.0 million and stockholders’ equity of $84.5 million. Average total assets increased by $93.7 million during the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 due to management’s efforts to grow Sun American Bank. Capital growth
corresponded with the overall growth of Sun American Bank. The average equity to average assets ratio increased to
18.92% during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 from 14.62% during the fiscal year ended December 31,
2005.

During the first quarter of 2007, we have reduced interest rates on select deposit products through normal
operations in order to realign our rates with our business plan. This has resulted in a decrease of client deposit
balances in the period of approximately 10%.

Our results of operations are primarily dependent upon the results of operations of Sun American Bank.
Sun American Bank conducts a commercial banking business, which generally consists of attracting deposits from
the general public, supplemented by Federal Home Loan Bank advances and capital infusions from us, and applying
a majority of these funds (typically 75% to 90%) to the origination of commercial loans to small businesses,
consumer loans, and secured real estate loans in its local trade area of South Florida. The balance of Sun American
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Bank’s portfolio (approximately 10% to 25%) is generally held in cash and invested in government guaranteed or
sponsored investment grade securities.

Cur profitability depends primarily on generating sufficient net interest income (the difference between
interest income received from loans and investments and the interest expense incurred on deposits and borrowings)
to offset operating expenses. Any excess thereof is pre-tax profit earned by Sun American Bank, The careful balance
sought between the interest rate eared, frequency of rate changes, and interest rate paid to Sun American Bank’s
deposit base, determines the nature and extent to which it may be profitable. For example, if the income generated
by net interest income plus non-interest income is in excess of operating expenses and loan loss reserves, Sun
American Bank should be operating profitably. Non-interest income consists primarily of service charges and fees
on deposit accounts. Non-interest expenses consist primarily of personnel compensation and benefits, occupancy
and related expenses, data processing costs, deposit insurance premiums paid to the FDIC, as well as other operating
¢Xpenses.

One of the strategies to maintain current profits of Sun American Bank is to control operating expenses.
Management’s goal is to control the growth of operating expenses at a slower rate than the rate at which we grow
our revenues. To accomplish this goal, management continues to analyze our operations to find areas where costs
can be reduced through greater efficiency or through renegotiated contracts. In 2006 we incurred higher expenses
than in prior years due to an intended expansion of our branch network and due to other investments in our business
infrastructure. We have continuously improved our profitability since 200¢1. Net income was $3.2 million for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to net income of $2.9 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005 and as compared to a net loss of $228,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.
Earnings in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 were driven by a 35% increase in average net loans resulting in
higher net interest income and loan fees, coupled with an improved historic performance of the loan portfolio, which
resulted in lower provision for loan losses. In addition in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, we recognized a
$1.2 million income tax benefit as a result of a reduction in the valuation allowance against deferred tax assets. This
improvement in revenues and provision for loan losses was partially offset by increases in non-interest expenses.

On November 1, 2006, the Company announced that it had established Sun American Financial, LLC, a
new residential mortgage company formed as a subsidiary of Sun American Bank. Sun American Financial, LLC,
will provide residential mortgage services to Sun American Bank’s customers. In addition, the Company announced
the creation of Sun American Wealth Management, a new financial services division of Sun American Bank. Sun
American Wealth Management, in partnership with UVEST Financial Services, an NASD registered broker-dealer,
will provide bank customers with access to a wide variety of investment and insurance products and services.

On November 17, 2006, the Company signed a definitive agreement to acquire Independent Community
Bank which is located in Palm Beach County in the city of Tequesta, Florida and operates a single branch. At
December 31, 2006, Independent Community Bank had total assets of $136.5 million. The proposed transaction will
result in an expanded presence for the Company in Palm Beach County, serving business and retail financial needs
with local decision-making and serving a greater base of individuals and businesses overall. The transaction is
expected to close by the end of the first quarter of 2007.

Beach Bank Acquisition

On December 29, 2006, the Company acquired in exchange for approximately 3.7 million shares (subject
to adjustment as described in the Agreement) of the Company’s commeon stock substantially all of the assets and
assumed substantially all of the liabilittes, of Beach Bank, which operated two branches in Miami-Dade County,
Florida. The exact number of shares of Sun American Bancorp common stock issued in the Acquisition Transaction
will be determined based upon the book value of Beach Bank as set forth in the final audited closing balance sheet.
Such final balance sheet of Beach Bank was submitted to Sun American Bancorp on February 26, 2007 and was
subject to review by Sun American Bancorp. Sun American Bancorp requested certain adjustments to the final
balance sheet of Beach Bank. The adjustments to the final balance sheet requested by Sun American Bancorp
require the consent of the shareholder representative of Beach Bank, which was not provided. Since a dispute exists
with respect to such final balance sheet between Sun American Bancorp and the Beach Bank shareholder
representative, the resolution will be determined pursuant to a dispute resofution mechanism set forth in the
Agreement and the appropriate adjustments made to the consideration provided in the acquisition transaction, If the
adjustments to the acquisition transaction consideration based on the changes requested by Sun American Bancorp
are accepted as a result of the arbitration proceeding, such adjustments to the final closing balance sheet will result
in a reduction in the common stock issued. There can be no assurance as to whether or in what amount adjustments
will be made to the final closing balance sheet. For more information see Note 19 to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s accounting policies are fundamental to understanding management’s discussion and
analysis of results of operations and financial condition. The Company has identified five policies as being critical
because they require management to make judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain and because of the
likelihood that materially different amounts would be reported under different conditions or using different
assumptions.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The Company’s accounting for the allowance for loan losses is a critical policy
that is discussed in detail in this section (see EARNING ASSETS).

Goodwill and Intangible Assets: The Company tests goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment
annually. The test requires the company to determine the fair value of its reporting unit and compare the reporting
unit’s fair value to its carrying value. The fair value of the reporting unit is estimated using management valuation
models. While management belicves the sources utilized to arrive at the fair value estimates are reliable, different
sources or methods could have yielded different fair value estimates. These fair value estimates require a significant
amount of judgment. Changes in management’s valuation of its reporting unit may affect future earnings through the
recognition of a goodwill impairment charge. At December 31, 2006, (the goodwill impairment testing date) the fair
value of its reporting unit was greater than its carrying value; therefore, goodwill was not impaired. If the fair value
of reporting unit declines below the carrying amount, the Company would have to perform the second step of the
impairment test. This step requires the Company to fair value all assets (recognized and unrecognized) and liabilities
in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation.

Acquisitions: The Company accounts for its business combinations based on the purchase method of
accounting. The purchase method of accounting requires the Company to fair value the tangible net assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired. The fair values are based on available information and current economic
conditions at the date of acquisition. The fair values may be obtained from independent appraisers, discounted cash
flow present value techniques, management valuation models, quoted prices on national markets or quoted market
prices from brokers. These fair values estimates will affect future earnings through the disposition or amortization of
the underlying assets and liabilities. While management believes the sources utilized to arrive at the fair value
estimates are reliable, different sources or methods could have yielded different fair value estimates. Such different
fair value estimates could affect future earnings through different values being utilized for the disposition or
amortization of the underlying assets and liabilities acquired.

Investment Securities: The Company records its securities available for sale in its statement of financial
condition at fair value. The Company uses market price quotes for valuation. Equity securities available for sale
trade daily on various stock exchanges. The fair value of these securities in the Company’s statement of financial
condition was based on the closing price quotations at period end. The closing quotation represents inter-dealer
quotations without retail markups, markdowns or commissions and do not necessarily represent actual transactions.
The number of shares that the Company owns in some of these equity securities may be in excess of the securities
average daily trading volume. As a consequence, the Company may not be able to realize the quoted market price
upon sale. The Company adjusts its equity securities available for sale to fair value monthly with a corresponding
increase or decrease to other comprehensive income. Declines in the fair value of individual securities available for
sale below their cost that are other than temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair
value through the income statement.

Income Taxes: The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. The Company uses the asset
and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax
amounts for the temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. A valuation allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax amounts to the amount expected
to be realized.

The Company’s management, in consultation with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company, has revicwed and approved these critical accounting policies.

Earning Assets

A primary strategy of the Company continues to be to increase the level of earning assets as they relate to
operating expenses in order to improve profitability. The Company is pursuing a growth strategy by increasing the
level of earning assets, primarily through increases in loan origination in the communities the Company serves and
by increasing the level of capital in support of this growth. Interest-earning assets, which consist of loans,
investments, Federal Funds Sold, Federal Home Loan Bank Stock, and Federal Reserve Bank Stock, totaled
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$459.7 million at December 31, 2006, a $198.7 million, or 76%, increase from $261.0 million at December 31,
2005. $108.0 million or 41% of this increase resulted from the acquisition of assets from Beach Bank. Earning assets
of $261.0 million at December 31, 20085, represented an $84.7 million, or 48%, increase from $176.3 million at
December 31, 2004,

Lending Activities

The Company’s principal lending areas have been defined as all census tracts within the tri-county area of
Palm Beach, Broward and Miami-Dade Counties, Florida. The Bank’s customers are predominantly small to
medium-sized businesses and individual consumers. Collateralized loans, the most common of which follow, are
extended on similar terms to all of the Bank’s customers and have an inherent degree of risk:

* (Cash-secured loans as well as loans guaranteed by agencies of the United States Government represent
a nominal level of risk.

*  Loans secured by marketable securities represent a low degree of risk.

* Commercial and residential real estate loans, including construction and land development loans,
represent a moderate degree of risk.

s Loans secured by automobiles, boats and equipment represent a moderate to medium level of risk to
the Bank.

*  Unsecured loans represent a high level of risk to the Bank.

As a significant part of the Company’s growth strategy, it is increasing its efforts to develop new business
relationships and is increasing its marketing efforts. Typically, the Company seeks commercial lending relationships
with customers borrowing up to $12 million. The Bank’s legal lending limit for secured and unsecured loans was
$15.4 million and $9.2 million as of December 31, 2006. The Bank’s legal lending limit for secured and unsecured
loans was $13.1 million and $7.8 millien as of December 31, 2005 and $4.1 million and $2.5 million as of
December 31, 2004, respectively. During 2006 and 2005, the Company raised $21.6 and $35.5 million of net new
capital respectively through the acquisition of Beach Bank, exercise of stock options and warrants and through
several share offerings thus increasing the Bank’s legal lending limit and allowing it to meet the loan needs of larger
customers.

Scheduled contractual principal repayments of loans do not reflect the actual life of such assets. The
average life of a loan is substantially less than its contractual terms because of prepayments. In addition, due-on-sale
clauses on mortgage loans generally give us the right to declare loans immediately due and payable in the event,
among other things, that the borrower sells the real property subject to the mortgage and the loan is not repaid. The
average life of loans tends to increase, however, when current loan market rates are substantially higher than rates
on existing loans and, conversely, decrease when rates on existing loans are substantially higher than current loan
market rates.

The Bank extends credit with terms, rates and fees commensurate with those in its market place for like
types of credit. Loan maturities may positively or negatively impact the Bank’s GAP position and, ultimately, its
profitability,

Loan Solicitation and Processing, Loan applicants come primarily through the efforts of the Bank’s loan
officers who seek out existing customers, referrals by realtors, previous and present customers of the Bank, business
acquaintances, and walk-ins. Upon receipt of a loan application from a prospective borrower, a credit report and
other data are obtained to verify specific information relating to the loan applicant’s employment, income and credit
standing. On mortgage loans, an appraisal of the real estate offered as collateral generally is undertaken by an
independent fee appraiser certified by the State of Florida.

Commercial Real Estate Loans. The Bank’s primary lending focus is making commercial mortgage loans
to finance the purchase of real property, which generally consists of developed real estate. Commercial mortgage
loans are generally secured by first liens on real estate, and typically have variable rates and amortize over a 15 to
25 year period, with balloon payments due at the end of five to ten years. At December 31, 2006 commercial
mortgage loans represented 59% of the total loan portfolio compared to 64% and 70% at December 31, 2005 and
2004 respectively. The average balance of commercial mortgage loans was $162.0 million for 2006, $123.1 million
for 2005 and $79.3 million for 2004. Income from these loans totaled $14.4 million, $9.7 miltion and $5.5 million
for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Residential Real Estate Loans. Another of the Bank’s lending focus is making mortgage loans to finance
the purchase of residential real property, which generally consists of construction and developed housing real estate.
Residential mortgage loans are generally secured by first liens on real estate, and typically have variable rates and
amortize over a 15 to 25 year period. At December 31, 2006 residential real estate loans represented 26% of the total
loan portfolio compared to 23% and 15% at December 31, 2005 and 2004 respectively. The average balance of
residential real estate loans was $62.4 million for 2006, $34.5 million for 2005 and $8.1 million for 2004. Income
from these loans totaled $5.6 million, $2.7 million and $500,000 for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Commercial Loans. A third lending focus of the Bank is to small and medium-sized businesses in a
variety of industries. The Company makes a broad range of short- and medium-term commercial lending products
available to businesses, including working capital lines, purchases of machinery, and business expansion (including
acquisition of real estate and improvements). At December 31, 2006, commercial loans represented 10% of the total
loan portfolio compared to 12% of the portfolio at December 31, 2005 and compared to 13% at December 31, 2004,
The average balance of commercial loans was $25.6 million for 2006, $26.9 million for 2005 and $25.5 million for
2004. Income from these loans totaled $2.4 million for 2006 compared to $2.2 million and $1.6 million for 2005 and
2004, respectively.

Consumer Lending. The Bank offers a variety of loan and deposit products and services to retail
customers through its branch network. Loans to retail customers include residential mortgage loans, home equity
loans and lines of credit, automobile loans, and other personal loans, At December 31, 2006, consumer loans
represented 5% of the total loan portfolio compared to 1% and 2% of the portfolio at December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004 respectively. The average balance of consumer loans was $5 million for 2006 and $3.6 million
and $3.9 for 2004. Income from these loans totaled $386,000 for 2006 and $276,000 and $310,000 for 2005 and
2004, respectively.

Loan Portfolio Summary. Major categories of loans included in the portfolio at December 31 are as
follows (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Commercial $ 34323 $§ 25563 $ 19,509 § 22585 § 17411
Commercial real estate 210,505 136,096 109,145 37,608 31,340
Residential real estate 93,748 48,254 23,623 2,466 8,959
Consumer and home equity 14,060 2,595 3,220 4,283 2,915
Other 1,857 801 269 129 251

354,493 213,309 155,766 67,071 60,876
Deferred loan costs (697) (525) (358) (136) (92)
Allowance for Loan Losses (3,053) (2,119 (1,678) (738) (748)
Net Loans $ 350,743 § 210,665 $ 153,730 § 66,197 § 60,036

Loan Maturity Schedule. The following schedules set forth the time to contractual maturity of our loan
portfolio at December 31, 2006. Loans which have adjustable rates and fixed rates are all shown in the period of
contractual maturity. Demand loans, loans having no contractual maturity and overdrafts are reported as due in one
year or less.

Year ended December 31, 2006

One
through
One Year Five After Five
Total Or Less Years Years
{In Thousands)

Commercial $ 34323 § 21288 $ 9304 § 3,731
Commercial real estate 210,505 76,026 61,042 73,437
Residential real estate 93,748 42218 29,107 22,423
Consumer and home equity 14,060 742 4413 8,905
Other 1,857 1,852 5 —

354,493 § 142,126 § 103,871 § 108,496
Net Deferred Loan Fees (697)

$ 353,796

At December 31, 2006 fixed rate loans due after one year are approximately $55.2 million and adjustable
rate loans due after one year are approximately $157.2 million.
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Asset Quality, Management seeks to maintain a high quality of assets through conservative underwriting
and sound lending practices. The earning asset portfolio (exclusive of investment securities) is generally split into
five categories, four of which are types of loans, and the fifth is other which includes overdrafts. Loan
concentrations are defined as ioans outstanding that are segregated into similar collateral types and/or nature of
cash-flow income generation, which may cause a correspondingly similar impact with a particular economic or other
condition. We routinely monitor these concentrations in order to make necessary adjustments in lending practices
that most clearly reflect the economic conditions and trends, loan ratios, loan covenants, asset valuations, and
industry trends.

The percentage of loans in each category to total gross loans as of December 31, is as follows:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Commercial loans 10% 12% 13% 34% 29%
Commercial real estate loans 59% 64% 70% 56% 51%
Residential real estate loans 26% 23% 15% 4% 15%
Consumer and home equity 5% 1% 2% 6% 3%
Total allowance for loan losses 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

In an effort to maintain the quality of the loan portfolio, management seeks to minimize higher risk loans.
In view of the relative significance of real estate related loans, a downturn in the value of real estate property could
have an adverse impact on profitability. As part of the Bank’s loan policy and loan management strategy, we
typically limit our loan-to-value ratio to a maximum of 60% to 80% depending on the type of real property being
secured. The use of qualified third party state certified appraisers for property valuations, and property inspections
by knowledgeable bank officials helps mitigate real property loan risks.

The Loan and Discount Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank concentrates its efforts and
resources and that of its senior management and lending officers on loan review and underwriting procedures and
standards. Internal controls include ongoing reviews of loans made to monitor documentation and ensure the
existence and valuations of collateral, early detection of loan degradation, property inspections and review of
regional economic conditions.

Regulatory Classification of Assets. Generally, interest on loans is accrued and credited to income based
on the outstanding balance of the contract obligations of each loan or receivable contract. It is the Bank’s policy to
discontinue the accrual of interest income and classify loans or assets as non-accrual when principal or interest is
past due 90 days or more and/or the loan is not properly and/or adequately collateralized, or if in the belief of the
Bank’s management, principal and/or interest is not likely to be paid in accordance with the terms of the obligation
and/or documentation. As of December 31, 2006, and 2005, delinquent loans greater than 30 and less than 90 days
totaled $1.1 million, and $1.3 million, respectively. Impaired loans as at December 31, 2006, and 2005 totaled
$12.0 million, and $2.3 million, respectively. The increase was due to the downgrading of one commercial real
estate construction loan that incurred cost overruns prompting the bank to advance additional funds and obtain
additional collateral, as well as approximately $2.8 million of impaired loans acquired in the Beach Bank
transaction.

Foreclosed Assets. Assets acquired as a result of foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclosure are classified
as other real estate owned, or OREQ, if real estate, or in other assets, if other property, until they are sold. When
property is acquired, it is initially recorded at fair value at date of acquisition. Subsequent to foreclosure, foreclosed
assets are carried at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less estimated selling costs. The Bank held no
other real estate owned and repossessions at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Non-performing Assets. Non-performing assets consist of loans that are past due 90 days or more which
are still accruing interest, loans on nonaccrual status and other real estate owned and other foreclosed assets. The
following table sets forth information with respect to nonperforming assets identified by the Bank for the years
ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in thousands}

Nonaccrual loans
Commercial $ 453 $ 290 $ 121 § — § 28
Commercial real estate — — 20 798 —
Residential real estate — —_ —_ — _

Accrual loans — past due 90 days or more
Commercial 500 — — — _
Commercial real estate — — —_
Residential real estate — — _ —_

Consumer and home equity — — — — 7
Restructured loans — — — 20 —
Total nonperforming assets $ 953 $ 2900 §$ 141 § BI8 § 35

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of probable
losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. Allocation of the allowance is made for analytical
purposes only, and the entire allowance is available to absorb probable and estimable credit losses inherent in the
portfotio. Additions to the allowance may result from recording provision for loan losses or loan recoveries, while
charge-offs are deducted from the allowance. Management estimates the allowance for loan loss balance required by
using past loan loss experience, the nature and volume of the portfolio, information about specific borrower
situations and estimated collateral values, economic conditions, and other factors. For analytical purposes, the
allowance consists of two components, non-specific and specific.

Non-Specific Allowance: The methodology used in establishing non-specific allowances is based on a
broad risk analysis of the portfolio. All significant portfolio segments, including concentrations, are analyzed. The
amount of the non-specific allowance is based upon a statistical analysis that derives appropriate formulas, which
are adjusted by management’s subjective assessment of current and future conditions. The determination includes an
analysis of loss and recovery experience in the various portfolio segments over at least the last three fiscal years.
Results of the historical loss analysis are adjusted to reflect current and anticipated conditions.

Specific Allowance: All significant commercial and industrial loans classified as either “substandard” or
“doubtful” are reviewed at the end of each period to determine if a specific reserve is needed for that credit. The
determination of a specific reserve for an impaired asset is evaluated in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 114, and a specific reserve is very common for significant credits classified as either
“substandard” or “doubtful.” The establishment of a specific reserve does not necessarily mean that the credit with
the specific reserve will definitely incur loss at the reserve level. It is only an estimation of potential loss based upon
anticipated events.
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Allowance for Loan Loss Activity. The allowance for loan loss as of December 31, 2006 was $3.1 million
compared to $2.1 million and $1.7 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The 2006 allowance for
loan losses included an allocated allowance of $562,000 related to acquisition of a loan portfolio from Beach Bank.
Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, are as follows:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Balance, beginning $ 2,119,396 § 1,678,191 $ 738,147 § 747,750 $ 513,601
Amounts charged off:
Commercial - — (57,266)  (1,083,848) (823,479) (588)
Consumer and home equity (1,060) (20,953) {(11,908) (72,835) (23,695)
Commercial and residential real

estate — — — (154,543) —
Recoveries of amounts charged off:
Commercial 26,787 107,403 159,609 47,784 17,774
Consumer and home equity 7,434 5,819 21,191 10,913 7,658
Commercial and residential real

estate — — — 4,491 —
Net (charge-offs) recoveries 33,161 35,003 (914,956) (987,669) 1,149
Provision for loan losses 338,321 475,350 1,397,000 978,066 233,000
Reclassification of reserve for

unfunded commitments to other

liabilities — (69,148) — —_— —_
Acquisition related adjustment (1) 561,760 — 458,000 — —
Balance, ending $ 3,052,638 % 2,119,396 $ 1,678,191 § 738147 § 747,750
Ratio of net (charge-offs)

recoveries to average loans

outstanding during the period 0.01% 0.02% (0.78)% (1.51)% 0.02%

(1) The adjustment in 2006 and in 2004 is the allowance required on acquisition of loans from the Beach Bank
transaction and from the Guif Bank transaction, respectively.

Through the normal review of the allowance for loan losses, management determined additional provision
was required due to growth of the loan portfolio during 2006 and 2005. In 2004, management discontinued the
Business Manager product as it had determined that the product did not fit well with the current product mix. Phase
out of the product was completed in the first quarter of 2004, and the Company charged off approximately $582,000
of Business Manager loans in 2004. In addition, management charged off an additional $514,000 of loans for which
it was determined that the borrower had insufficient ability to repay. Impaired loans totaled $12.0 million at
December 31, 2006 compared to $2.3 million at December 31, 2005. Non-performing assets totaled $953,000 at
December 31, 2006 compared to $290,000 at December 31, 2005, Management believes that the allowance for loan
loss was adequate in relation to the overall loan portfolio. .

The allowance is allocated to specific categories of loans for statistical purposes only, and may be applied
to loan losses incurred in any loan category. The allocation of the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, is as
follows:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Commercial loans $ 578384 § 254328 § 218,164 § 250970 § 209370
Commercial real estate loans 1,830,310 1,356,413 1,174,734 413,362 388,330
Residential real estate loans 496,666 487,461 251,729 29,526 112,163
Consumer and home equity 147,278 21,194 33,564 44,289 37,387
Total allowance for loan losses $ 3,052,638 §$ 2119396 § 1,678,191 §$ 738,147 § 747,750
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Investment Activities

The Bank is permitted under federal and state law to invest in various types of liquid assets, including U.S.
Treasury obligations, securities of various federal agencies and of state and municipal governments, deposits at the
Federal Home Loan Bank, certificates of deposit of federally insured institutions, certain bankers” acceptances and
federal funds. Subject to various restrictions, we may also invest a portion of our assets in commercial paper and
corporate debt securities. As a Federal Reserve Bank member bank, we are required to maintain an investment in
Federal Reserve Bank stock. The Bank is also a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank and is required to maintain
an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock. Under state and federal regulations, a certain amount of the
investments must be liquid in nature.

SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” requires the
investments be categorized as “held to maturity,” “trading securities” or “available for sale,” based on
management’s intent as to the ultimate disposition of each security. SFAS No. 115 allows debt secunties to be
classified as “held to maturity” and reported in financial statements at amortized cost only if the reporting entity has
the positive intent and ability to hold those securities to maturity. Securities that might be sold in response to
changes in market interest rates, changes in the security’s prepayment risk, increases in loan demand, or other
similar factors cannot be classified as “held to maturity.” Debt and equity securities held for current resale are
classified as “trading securities.” Such securities are reported at fair value, and unrealized gains and losses on such
securities would be included in earnings. Debt and equity securities not classified as either “held to maturity” or
“trading securitics™ are classified as “available for sale.” Such securities are reported at fair value, and unrealized
gains and losses on such securities are excluded from earnings and reported as a net amount in a separate component
of equity.

A committee consisting of Bank officers and Directors determines appropriate investments in accordance
with the Board of Directors’ approved investment policies and procedures. The Bank’s investment policies generally
limit investments to U.S. Government and agency securities, municipal bonds, certificates of deposits, marketable
corporate debt obligations, mortgage-backed securities and certain types of mutual funds. The Bank’s investment
policy does not permit engaging directly in hedging activities or purchasing high risk mortgage derivative products.
Investments are made based on certain considerations, which include the interest rate, yield, settlement date and
maturity of the investment, the liquidity position, and anticipated cash needs and sources (which in turn include
outstanding commitments, upcoming maturities, estimated deposits and anticipated loan amortization and
repayments). The effect that the proposed investment would have on our credit and interest rate risk, and risk-based
capital is also given consideration during the evaluation.

Mortgage-backed securities (which also are known as mortgage participation certificates or pass-through
certificates) typically represent a participation interest in a pool of single-family or multi-family mortgages. The
principal and interest payments on these mortgages are passed from the mortgage originators, through intermediaries
(generally U.S. Government agencies and government sponsored enterprises) that pool and resell the participation
interests in the form of securities, to investors such as the Company. Such U.S. Government agencies and
government sponsored enterprises, which guarantee the payment of principal and interest to investors, primarily
include Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae and the Government National Mortgage Association. Mortgage-backed securities
typically are issued with stated principal amounts, and the securities are backed by pools of mortgages that have
loans with interest rates that fatl within a specific range and have varying maturities. Mortgage-backed securities
generally yield less than the loans that underlie such securities because of the cost of payment guarantees and credit
enhancements. In addition, mortgage-backed securities are usually more liquid than individual mortgage loans and
may be used to collateralize certain of the Bank’s liabilities and obligations. These types of securities also permit the
Bank to improve its regulatory capital because they have a low risk capital weighting.
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Investment Portfolio. The Company’s investment securitics portfolio consists of high quality securities.
The maturity distribution of the securities portfolio is reflected in the following table (except for the U.S.
Government Mortgage Fund which has no fixed maturity date). The average yield for our investment portfolio
increased to 4.48% at December 31, 2006 from 4.08% at December 31, 2005 as market interest rates climbed
incrementally during the year.

Maturities of Investment Securities at December 31, 2006

One Year After One Through After Five Through After
Or Less Flve Years Ten Years Ten Years Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Carrying  Average  Carrying  Average Carrying  Average  Carrylng  Average Carrying  Average
Vilue Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield

(Dollars in Thousands)

Corporate Bonds,
Preferreds & REITs:
Held 1o maturity 3 — — %S$ 7182 465%S — — %% — — %S 782 4.63%
Available for sale — —_ — — — —_ — — — —
Mortgage-backed

Securities;
Held to maturity — — 922 3.75 29 6.36 2,152 3.88% 3,103 3.86%
Available for Sale — — — — 10 6.77% 1 4.89% 11 6.60%
U.S. government
agencies;
Held to Maturity 1,585 318% 29,881 4.02% 11,900 530% 4,993 597 48,359 451%
Available for sale — — — — — — — — — —
U.5. Govt
Mortgage Fund — — — — — — — — 5,163 4.52%
Total $ 1,585 3.18%3% 31,585 403%$ 11,939 530%% 7,146 5.34%357418 448%

At December 31 2006, there were no tax exempt holdings and no holdings of securities of any one issuer,
other than the U.S. Government and its agencies, in an amount greater than 10% of shareholders’ equity.

Carrying Value of Investment Securities. Major categories of investment securities and their accounting
treatment included in the portfolio at December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Available- Held-to- Available- Held-to- Available- Held-to-
for-Sale Maturity for-Sale Maturity for-Sale Maturity

U.S. Government agencies b — $48359 § — $19,051 § — 313,132
Mortgage-backed securities 11 3,103 15 1,859 269 2,401
Corporate bonds — 782 — 251 — 257
U.S. Govt Mortgage Fund 5,163 — 5,193 — 5,356 —
Total Investment Securities S 5174 $52244 $ 5208 S$21,161 § 5625 §15790

Valuation of Securities. The Company records securities available for sale in its statement of financial
condition at fair value. The Company uses market price quotes for valuation. Equity securities available for sale
trade daily on various stock exchanges. The fair value of these securities in the Company’s statement of financial
condition was based on the closing price quotations at period end. The closing quotation represents inter-dealer
quotations without retail markups, markdowns or commissions and do not necessarily represent actual transactions.
The number of shares that the Company owns in some of these equity securitics may be in excess of the securities
average daily trading volume. As a consequence, the Company may not be able to realize the quoted market price
upon sale, Equity securities available for sale are adjusted to fair value monthly with a corresponding increase or
decrease to other comprehensive income. Declines in the fair value of individual securities available for sale below
their cost that are other than temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value.

At December 31, 2006, the fair value and net unrealized loss associated with our securities available for
sale was $5.2 million and $337,000, respectively. This compared to the fair value and net unrealized loss associated
with our securitics available for sale at December 31, 2005 which was $5.2 million and $306,000, respectively.

Liquidity. Regulatory agencies require that the Bank maintain sufficient liquidity to operate in a sound and
safe manner. The principal sources of liquidity and funding are generated by the operations the Bank through its
diverse deposit base, loan participations and other asset/liability measures. For banks, liquidity represents the ability
to meet loan commitments, withdrawals of deposit funds, and operating expenses. The level and maturity of deposits
necessary to support the lending and investment activities is determined through monitoring loan demand and
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through its asset/liability management process. Considerations in managing the liquidity position inctude scheduled
cash flows from existing assets, contingencies and liabilities, as well as projected liquidity conducive to efficient
operations and are continuously evaluated as part of the asset/liability management process. Historically, the Bank
has increased its level of deposits to allow for its planned asset growth. The level of deposits is influenced by
general interest rates, economic conditions and competition, among other things. South Florida is a fast growing area
with intense competition from other financial service providers. Management has found that adjusting pricing, or
introducing new products, produces increased deposit growth. Adjusting the rate paid on money market and NOW
accounts can quickly adjust the level of deposits. Management believes that the Bank is currently operating in a
stable environment.

In 2004 the Bank became a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. The Bank accesses this
vehicle to add liquidity to its business as needed. At December 31, 2006, the Bank had $11 million of Federal Home
Loan Bank fixed rate advances to assist in funding its loan portfolio growth compared to $21 million at
December 31, 2005. The Bank has pledged a security interest in its real estate loan portfolio to the FHLB as
collateral for borrowings obtained from the FHLB. See notes to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements
for additional information regarding these advances. Liquidity at December 31, 2006, consisted of $56.4 million in
cash and cash equivalents and $5.2 million in available-for-sale investments, for a total of $61.6 million of liquid
funds. This compared to a total of $32.8 million of liquidity at year end 2005.

If additional liquidity is nceded, the Bank has established a correspondent banking relationship with
Independent Bankers Bank of Lake Mary, Florida. This relationship provides the Bank with the ability to borrow
from an unsecured line-of-credit to supplement liquidity up to the amount of $5.0 million. Interest is calculated on
any outstanding balance at the prevailing market federal funds rate. The Bank also has the ability to sell investments
from the portfolio under a repurchase agreement with this correspondent bank. Similarly, the Company maintains a
separate secured line-of-credit of $2.0 million with Independent Bankers Bank. Sec notes to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding these lines of credit.

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

The liability side of the balance sheet has great significance to the profitable operation of a bank. Deposits
are the major source of the Bank’s funds for lending and other investment activities. Deposits are attracted
principally from within the Bank’s primary market area through the offering of a broad variety of deposit
instruments including NOW accounts, money market accounts, regular savings accounts and certificates of deposits
{(known as CD’s). Maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalties are established by the Bank on a periodic
basis. The determination of rates and terms is predicated on funds acquisition and liquidity requirements, rates paid
by competitors, growth goals and Federal regulations.

Deposits and loan repayments are the major sources of funds for lending and other investment purposes.
Scheduled loan repayments are a relatively stable source of funds, while deposit inflows and outflows and loan
prepayments are influenced significantly by general interest rates and money market conditions. The Bank may use
borrowings through correspondent banks on a short-term basis to compensate for reductions in the availability of
funds from other sources. The Bank maintains a membership with the Federal Home Loan Bank which acts as an
alterate source for borrowing as needed. Periodically the Bank may purchase broker deposits to supplement
deposits gathered through the branch network in order to fund loans as required.

Deposit Accounts.

Most of Sun American Bank’s depositors are residents of the State of Florida. Deposits are attracted from
within Sun American Bank’s market area through the offering of a broad selection of deposit instruments, inctuding
NOW accounts, money market deposit accounts, regular checking accounts, regular savings accounts, certificates of
deposit and retirement savings plans. Deposit account terms vary according to the minimum balance required, the
time periods the funds must remain on deposit and the interest rate, among other factors. In determining the terms of
its deposit accounts, Sun American Bank considers current market interest rates, profitability to the bank, matching
deposit and loan products and its customer preferences and concerns. Sun American Bank reviews its deposit mix
and pricing weekly.

Low cost demand and savings deposits represent an important part of the deposit mix for the Bank which
has historically maintained satisfactory levels of this type of deposits, because of the Bank’s policy of relationship
banking. Money market accounts are priced competitively within the Bank’s market area of Palm Beach, Broward,
and Miami-Dade counties. Management can attract new deposits or reduce deposit levels as needed by adjusting the
interest paid on such accounts, which are very liquid. The Bank also offers a wide variety of terms and rates for
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certificates of deposit as needed to attract funds and match competitors. The primary factors in the competition for
deposits are interest rates, level of personalized service, the quality and range of financial services, convenience of
office locations and office hours. Competition for deposits comes primarily from other commercial banks, savings
associations, credit unions, money market mutual funds and other investment alternatives. Our customers have
access to ATMs, safe deposit boxes, direct deposit and on-line banking services. In addition, businesses can use the
Bank’s merchant credit card program.

In determining the terms of the deposit accounts, management considers current market interest rates,
profitability to the Bank, matching deposit and loan products and customer preferences and concerns. The Bank
currently offers certificates of deposit for terms not exceeding 60 months. As a result, management believes that it is
better able to match the re-pricing of liabilities to the re-pricing of the loan portfolio. Management reviews the
Bank’s deposit mix and pricing weekly. From time to time management will supplement the level of CD’s by
purchasing them through a brokerage facility. At December 31, 2006, the Bank had $8.3 million of deposits
outstanding that had been facilitated through brokerage relationships. This compared to $13.0 million at
December 31, 2005,

Deposit Balances and Rates. The following table sets forth the average balances of the deposit portfolio of
the Bank for the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. Management vicws the deposit base as a good
core deposit base that is stable and improving. Non-interest bearing transaction accounts are on a demand basis, and
as such, balances continually fluctuate.

2006 2005
Average Weighted Average Weighted
Balance for Average % of Balance for Average % of
the Year Rate Deposits the Year Rate Deposits

(Dollars in Thousands)

Noninterest bearing accounts $ 34,651 0.00% 14% $ 41437 0.00% 23%
Interest bearing accounts:
NOW accounts 91,383 4.42% 37% 11,446 1.14% 6%
Money market deposit 14,299 3.54% 6% 20,297 1.91% 11%
Savings accounts 4716 2.16% 2% 4 644 1.08% 3%
Time deposits 102,135 4.41% 41% 101,339 332% 57%
Total deposits $ 247,184 $ 179,162
2004
Average Weighted
Balance for Average % of
the Year Rate Deposits
{Dollars in Thousands)

Noninterest bearing accounts $ 36,006 0.00% 26%
Interest bearing accounts:

NOW accounts 7.877 0.60% 6%

Money market deposit 18,513 1.18% 14%

Savings accounts 5,770 0.88% 4%

Time deposits 68,977 2.57% 50%
Total deposits $ 137,143

The time remaining to maturity of certificates of deposit in amounts of $100,000 or more as of
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, are as follows:

At December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Three months or less 42,247 8,908 17,023
Over three through six months 11,486 11,706 7,391
Over six through twelve months 62,331 12,413 11,701
Over twelve months 7,265 6,941 10,459

$123,329 $39968 §46,574
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Correspondent Relationships. Correspondent banking involves one bank providing services to another
bank which cannot provide that service itself for economic or organizational reasons. The Bank purchases
correspondent services offered by larger banks, including check collections, purchase of federal funds, security
safekeeping, investment service, coin and currency supplies and liquidity loan participations, and sales of loans to or
loan participation with correspondent banks. The Bank also sells loan participations to correspondent banks with
respect to loans which exceed the Bank’s lending limit.

The Bank has an established correspondent relationship with Independent Bankers Bank of Lake Mary,
Florida with respect to the foregoing services. As compensation for services provided by a correspondent, the Bank
maintains certain balances with the correspondent in non-interest bearing accounts. Such compensating balances are
not considered significant to the operations of the Bank.

Borrowings. The Bank has the ability to borrow from its correspondent banks to supplement the supply of
funds and to meet deposit withdrawal requirements. Advances are made pursuant to limitations on the amount of
advances and are based on the financial condition of the member institution as well as the value and acceptability of
collateral pledged.

In addition, we pledge securities to secure repurchase agreements. Additional details regarding securities
sold under agreements to repurchase for 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Maximum amount cutstanding at any month-end $ 1,547 $1,241 $2,466
Average balance for the year 919 625 2,453
Average interest rate 3.95% 2.5%% 0.73%
Average interest rate paid at year end 4.14% 345% 1.68%

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances. In August 2004, the Bank was accepted into membership of the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. At that time the Bank assumed $3.0 million of advances previously issued to
Gulf Bank. Outstanding advances carry a fixed rate of interest and were $11 million, $21 million and $8 million at
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Bank has pledged a security interest in its real estate loan
portfolio to the FHLB as collateral for borrowings obtained from the FHLB. Please refer to Note 8 of the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Equity and Capital Resources. The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by Federal and State banking authorities. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate
certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if not undertaken, could have a
direct material effect on the financial statements and operation. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting policies.

The capital accounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgment by the regulators about
components, risk weighting, and other factors. Quantitative and qualitative measures established by regulation to
ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios, set forth in the table as of
December 31, 2006 below, of total and Tier-1 capital, as defined by regulation, to risk weighted assets, and of Tier-1
capital to average assets. Management believes that as of December 31, 2006 it has met the capital adequacy
requirements as defined by these definitions.

The column below with the heading “Bank” presents the capital ratios for the Bank at December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004. The column below with the heading “Corp” presents the capital ratios for the consolidated business
at December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, The columns below with the indication “Adequatecly” are that regulatory
definition for an Adequately Capitalized banking institution. The right columns below with the indication “Well” are
that regulatory definition for a Well Capitalized banking institution.

2006
Regulator Definition for each Capital Tier Category Corp Bank Adequately Well
Tier-2 Capital = Tier-2 Cap/Risk Weighted Assets 17.5% 16.3% 8.0% 10.0%
Tier-1 Risk = Tier-1 Cap/Risk Weighted Assets 16.6% 15.5% 4.0% 6.0%
Tier-1 Leverage = Tier-1 Cap/Average Quarterty Assets 17.4% 16.2% 4.0% 5.0%
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2005

Regulator Definition for each Capital Tier Category Corp Bank Adequately Well
Tier-2 Capital = Tier-2 Cap/Risk Weighted Assets 23.3% 21.8% 8.0% 10.0%
Tier-1 Risk = Tier-1 Cap/Risk Weighted Assets 22.4% 20.9% 4.0% 6.0%
Tier-1 Leverage = Tier-1 Cap/Average Quarterly Assets 21.0% 19.6% 4.0% 5.0%
1004
Regulator Definition for each Capital Tier Catepory Corp Bank Adequatety Well
Tier-2 Capital = Tier-2 Cap/Risk Weighted Assets 10.1% 10.0% 8.0% 10.0%
Tier-1 Risk =Tier-1 Cap/Risk Weighted Assets £.9% 9.0% 4.0% 6.0%
Tier-1 Leverage = Tier-1 Cap/Average Quarterly Assets 8.2% 8.4% 4.0% 5.0%
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Average Balance Sheet. The following table contains for the periods indicated information regarding the
total dollar amounts of interest income from interest-carning assets and the resulting average yields, the total dollar
amount of interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities and the resulting average costs, net interest income, and the

net yield on interest-earning assets.

Assets:

Interest-earning assets:
Investments (1)
Federal funds sold
Net loans :
Commercial toans (2}
Commercial real estate loans (2)
Consumer loans (2}
Residential real estate loans(2)
Home equity and other loans(2)
Net loans (2)

Total interest earning assets

Noninterest-earning assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits
NOW and money market accounts
Savings accounts
Certificates of deposit
Total interest-bearing deposits
Federal funds purchased, securities
sold under repurchase agreements
and other
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Noninterest bearing liabilities

Stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Net interest income and net yield on
interest-eaming assets

(1) Includes investment securities, Federal Reserve Bank stock and Federal Home Loan Bank stock.

For the years ended December 31,

2006 2005
Average Interest Average Average Interest Average
Balance 3) Yield/Rate Balance 3) Yield/Rate
{Dotlars in Thousands)
$ 30,297 § 1,362 450% $ 23,587 3 947 4.02%
18,303 916 5.00 7,598 251 331
25,622 2428 9.47 26,865 2,201 8.19
162,026 14,386 8.88 123,133 9,693 7.87
2,090 172 B.26 2,232 167 7.47
62,396 5,622 9.01 34,475 2,675 7.76
2,886 213 7.38 1,356 109 8.01
255,020 22,821 8.95 188,061 14,845 7.89
303,620 25,099 8.27 219,246 16,043 7.32
24,861 15,580
$328,481 $234!826
$105,682 § 4,546 430% § 31,743 $ 517 1.63%
4,716 102 2.16 4,644 50 1.08
102,135 4,501 4.41 101,339 3,365 332
212,533 9,149 430 137,726 3,932 2.85
1,185 51 4.33 946 38 4.00
16,255 697 4.29 20,463 770 3.76
229,973 9,867 4.30 159,135 4,740 2.98
36,370 41,366
62,138 34,325
$328,481 $234!826
$15,202 5.01% $11,303 5.16%

(2) Includes loans for which the accrual of interest has been suspended.

(3) Includes fee income on loans.
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(continued)

Assets:
Interest-earning assets:
Investments (1)
Federal funds sold
Net loans :
Commercial loans (2)
Comnercial real estate loans (2)
Consumer loans (2)
Residential real estate loans(2)
Home equity and other loans(2)
Net loans (2)
Total interest earning assets
Noninterest-earning assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits
NOW and money market accounts
Savings accounts
Certificates of deposit
Total interest-bearing deposits
Federal funds purchased, securities
sold under repurchase agreements
and other
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Noninterest bearing liabilities
Stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Net interest income and net yield on
interest-carning assets
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2004
Average Interest Average
Balance (3) Yield/Rate

(Dollars in Thousands)

$ 19741 § 762 3.86%
7,917 85 1.07
25521 1,605 6.42
79276 5,507 7.03
2,239 143 6.40
8,062 484 6.01
1,673 167 9.94

116,771 8,002 6.85
144429 8,849 6.13
15,973

$160,402

$ 26,390 267 1.01%
5,770 51 0.88
68977 1,770 2.57

101,137 2,088 2.06
3,016 53 1.76
3,114 188 6.04

107,267 _ 2,329 2.17
36,006
17,129

§160,402

$ 6,520 4.51%




Rate/Volume Analysis. The impact of management’s strategies can be seen in the Analysis of Changes in
Interest Income and Interest Expense table which follows. The table indicates changes in net interest income
resulting either from changes in average balances or to changes in average rates for earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. For cach category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is
provided on changes attributable to: (i) change in volume (change in volume multiplied by prior year rate); (ii)
change in rate (change in rate multiplied by prior year volume); (iii) change in rate/volume (change in rate
multiplied by change in volume}); and (iv) total change in rate and volume.

2006 vs. 2005 2005 vs. 2004
Increase (Decrease) Attributable to Increase (Decrease) Attributable to
Rate/ Rate/
Volume Rate Volume Net Volume Rate Volume Net

(Dollars in Thousands)

Interest income on:

Investments $ 269 S 113 % 32 % 415 $ 148 § 31 § 6 $ 185
Federal funds sold 354 129 181 665 3) 177 &) 166
Loans 5,285 1,985 707 7,976 4,883 1,218 742 6,843
Total interest income from

Interest-earning assets 5,008 2,227 920 9,056 5,028 1,426 740 7,194

Interest expense on:

NOW and money market accounts 1,205 848 1,975 4,030 54 163 33 250
Savings accounts 1 50 1 52 (10) 11 (2) (1
Certificates of deposit 26 1,101 9 1,135 832 517 246 1,595
Federal funds purchased under

repurchase agreement and other 10 3 1 13 (36) 67 (46) (15)
Federal Home Loan Bank advances {158) 107 (22) {73y 1,048 (71) {395} 582
Total interest expense from

Interest-bearing liabilities 1,084 2,109 1,964 5,157 1,888 687 (164) 2411
Increase (decrease) in net

Interest income $4,824 118 (1,044) 3,899 §$3,140 739 904 4783

2004 vs. 2003
Increase (Decrease) Attributable to

Rate/
Volume Rate Volume Net
{Doliars in Thousands)
Interest income on:

Investments $ 100 %103 § 20 § 223
Federal funds sold 37 — — 37
Loans 3,410 139 109 3,658
Total interest income from

interest-earning assets 3,547 242 129 3,918

Interest expense on:

NOW and money market accounts (98) (104) 24 (178)
Savings accounts 21 6 15 42
Certificates of deposit 1,026 8 10 1,044
Federal funds purchased under

repurchase agreement and other 2 31 3 36
Federal Home Loan Bank advances — — 188 188
Total interest expense from

interest-bearing liabilities 951 (59) 240 1,132
Increase (decrease) in net

interest income $259 $ 301 § (111) $2,786
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Contractual Obligations. The Company’s contractual obligations include notes due to the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Atlanta, operating leases, and outsourced data processing. The following table details our current
contractual obligations by maturity and/or anticipated payment date:

Within One One to Three Three to Five Over Five

Year Years Years Years Total
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes $ 8,000,000 § 3,000,000 § — 3 —  $11,000,000
Operating Lease Obligations 2,846,503 6,002,526 4,174,542 8,533,347 21,556,918
Outsourced Data Processor (1) 650,000 550,000 — — 1,200,000
Total $11,496,503 $ 9,552,526 § 4,174,542 $8,533,347 $33,756,918

(1) The Bank has outstanding obligations under its current data processing contract that expires October 2008,
Based on the level of expenses in 2006, the remaining contractual obligation is estimated to be approximately
$1.2 million at December 31, 2006.

Discussion of Changes in Financial Condition from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006

General. Total assets increased by $226.7 million, or 82%, from $277.2 million at December 31, 2005 w0
$503.9 million at December 31, 2006, of which $100.6 million was due to internal growth and $126.1 million of
which was due to the asset acquisition of Beach Bank, which was completed in December 2006. Net loans increased
by $140.0 million, or 66%, to $350.7 million at December 31, 2006 from $210.7 million at December 31, 2005. The
increase in these earning assets was the result of additional loan originations from Sun American Bank’s branch
network and the acquisition of $68.0 million of loans in connection with the Beach Bank asset acquisition. Securities
increased $31.0 million, or 118%, to $57.4 million at December 31, 2006 from $26.4 million at December 31, 2005.
$23.7 million, or 76%, of the increase in the securities portfolio was due to the acquisition of securities from Beach

Bank.

The Company is committed to expanding its business through internal growth as well as through purchase
opportunities, while maintaining strong asset quality and continuing strong capital growth. Management’s strategy
for achieving these objectives includes continuing our primary focus of increasing originations of commercial real
estate, land acquisition, and construction loans at appropriate yields for enhancing interest income, and improving
our efficiency and controlling operating costs. The following is a discussion of the significant fluctuations between
the December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 balance sheets,

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents were $56.4 million at December 31, 2008,
compared 10 $27.6 million at December 31, 2005, The increase of $28.8 million was primarily due to cash of
$17.9 million acquired in connection with the Beach Bank asset acquisition. The increase was also due to receipt of
proceeds from our fourth quarter deposit gathering efforts.

Securities Available for Sale and Held to Maturity. As part of the current investment strategy, the
securities portfolio increased $31.0 million, or 118%, to $57.4 million at December 31, 2006 from $26.4 million at
December 31, 2005. $23.7 million, or 76%, of the increase in the securities portfolio was due to the acquisition of
securities from Beach Bank. The Company attempted to earn more income from the investment portfolio by
investing surplus cash in higher yielding securities while balancing this with the liquidity needed for loan funding.
The investment strategy for 2006 was to focus on the acquisition of high quality fixed income investments with
terms to maturity that do not exceed fifteen years. Management believes that laddered investment purchases within
this time frame provided the best opportunities to maximize investment yield.

Net Loans. Net loans were $350.7 million at December 31, 2006, an increase of $140.0 million, or 66%,
from $210.7 million at December 31, 2005. This increase resulted primarily from the net increases in residential and
commercial real estate loan production through internal growth and the acquisition of $68.0 million of loans in
connection with the Beach Bank asset acquisition.

Asset Quality and Non-Performing Assets. In the normal course of business, the Company has
recognized and will continue to recognize losses resulting from the inability of certain borrowers to repay loans and
the insufficient realizable value of collateral securing such loans. Accordingly, the Company has established an
allowance for loan losses, which totaled $3.1 million at December 31, 2006 compared to $2.1 million at
December 31, 2005. The allowance for loan losses included an increase of $562,000 in 2006 to provide an additional
amount of allowance for loan losses in connection with the acquisition of $68.0 million of loans from Beach Bank.
The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed adequate by management to absorb estimated credit
losses. Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on the Bank’s past loan loss
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experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to
repay (including the timing of future payments), the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the
loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it
requires estimates of material factors including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received
on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change. The Company’s allowance for loan and credit
losses was analyzed and deemed to be adequate by management at December 31, 2006 for expected losses.

Impaired loans as a percentage of total loans increased from 1.09%, or $2.3 million, at December 31, 2005,
to 3.38% of total loans, or $12.0 million, at December 31, 2006. The increase was due to the downgrading of one
construction loan that incurred cost overruns prompting the bank to advance additional funds and to approximately
$2.8 million of impaired loans from the Beach Bank transaction. Assets which are classified are those deemed by
management as inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the
collateral pledged, if any. Assets which are classified have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize
the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that we will sustain some loss if the
deficiencies are not corrected.

There was no other real estate owned at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005.

At December 31,

2006 2005

(Dollars in Thousands)
Classified loans $ 11963 § 2319
Other real estate owned and repossessions — —
Total classified and other $ 11,963 § 2319
Percent classified and other/total loans 3.38% 1.09%
Gross loans $353,796 §$212,785

Non-performing assets consist of loans that are past due 90 days or more which are still accruing interest,
loans on nonaccrual status and OREO and other foreclosed assets.

Total nonaccrual loans increased $163,000 to $453,000 at December 31, 2006 from $290,000 at
December 31, 2005. All of the $453,000 of nonperforming loans at December 31, 2006 consists of commercial loans
that are secured by equipment. Of this amount $220,000 is subject to a Small Business Administration loan
guarantee. Accrual loans over 90 days past due were $500,000 at December 31, 2006 compared to zero at
December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2006, management believed that all non-performing assets are either fully
collateralized or appropriately reserved based on circumstances known at this time.

Premises and Equipment, Premises and equipment totaled $9.9 million at December 31, 2006, compared
to $2.0 million at December 31, 2005. The increase of 395% is primarily due to our branch expansion efforts
conducted in 2006 where we financed the build out of five new branches and one operations center during the year.

Goodwill and other Identified Intangibles. Our goodwill and intangible assets increased by $13.2 million
in 2006 to $19.2 million from $6.0 million at December 31, 2005. This increase is attributed to the purchase price
premium and certain capitalizable costs incurred on the Beach bank acquisition transaction.
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Liabilities

Deposits. Deposits increased by $209.5 million at December 31, 2006 from December 31, 2005, of which
approximately $105.9 million was as a result of the Beach Bank acquisition and approximately $103.6 million was
generated through internat growth. Most of the internal growth in deposit balances occurred in our NOW account
and certificate of deposit balances as the Bank ran various promotions in 2006 to attract new customers. In the South
Florida market, the Bank is able to attract new deposits or reduce deposit levels as needed by adjusting the interest
paid on deposit accounts. When additional funds are needed to fulfill lending commitments, the Bank can, by means
of marketing efforts and by adjusting the interest paid on deposits accounts, attract new deposits and retain existing
accounts. In addition, the Bank can utilize institutional (broker) deposits on a limited basis. At December 31, 2006,
brokered deposits were $8.3 million compared to $13.0 million at December 31, 2005,

At December 31,
2006 2005
(Dollars in Thousands)
Noninterest-bearing accounts $ 53,334 § 32971
Interest-bearing accounts:
NOW accounts 115,465 35,561
Money market accounts 21,784 18,068
Savings accounts 9,372 3,737
Certificates of deposit under $100,000 79,694 63,160
Certificates of deposit $100,000 and more 123,329 39,968
Total interest-bearing deposits 349,644 160,494
Total deposits $402,978 § 193465

Debt: The Bank maintains an unsecured line of credit of $5.0 million and the Company maintains a
$2.0 million revolving credit line, each with Independent Bankers Bank, to meet interim liquidity needs. There were
no borrowings outstanding under these unsecured lines of credit as of December 31, 2006 or as of December 31,
2005.

Federal Home Loan Bank Borrowings. Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) borrowings at December 31,
2006 amounted to $11.0 million, compared to $21.0 million at December 31, 2005. The Bank has pledged a security
interest in its real estate loan portfolie to the FHLE as collateral for borrowings obtained from the FHLB, We retired
$10 million of FHLB debt in 2006 because the growth of our core deposits was sufficient to meet our asset funding
requirements.

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements. Securities sold under repurchase agreements were
$1.5 million at December 31, 2006 compared to $1.0 million at December 31, 2005, The increase was due to
repurchase agreements assumed in the Beach Bank acquisition transaction.

Shareholders’ Equity and Regulatory Capital. Total shareholders’ equity was $84.5 million at
December 31, 2006, an increase of $24.9 million, or 42%, from $59.6 million at December 31, 2005. $18.2 million
of this increase was due to the issuance of 3,704,000 shares of common stock in connection with the closing of the
Beach Bank asset acquisition on December 29, 2006. In addition, we received $3.1 million in additional capital
through the exercise of warrants and options.

In accordance with risk-based capital guidelines issued by the Federal Reserve Board, the Bank is required
o maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to weighted risk assets as well as maintaining minimum leverage ratios.
The Bank’s risk-weighted, Tier | risk-weighted, and Tier | leverage capital ratios were 16.3%, 15.5% and 16.2% at
December 31, 2306 and 21.8%, 20.9% and 19.6% at December 31, 2005, Based on these ratios, the Bank was
considered to be “well capitalized”.

Discussion of Changes in Financial Condition from December 31, 2004 to December 31, 2005

General. Total assets increased by $85.7 million, or 45%, from $191.5 million at December 31, 2004, to
$277.2 million at December 31, 2005, with the increase invested principally in loans, securities held to maturity, and
Federal Funds Sold. Tota) loans receivable increased by $57.0 miliion or 37%, to $210.7 million at December 31,
2005, from $153.7 million at December 31, 2004. The increase in these earning assets was the result of additional
net loan activity from the Bank’s branch network. Securities increased $5.0 million, or 23.1%, to $26.4 million at
December 31, 2005 from $21.4 million at December 31, 2004. The increases in loans and securities were funded by
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an increase in deposits in 2005 of $35.3 million, and additional Federal Home Loan Bank advances of $13.0 million.
This growth was further supplemented by the addition of $36.4 million of new capital.

The following is a discussion of the significant fluctuations between the December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004 balance sheets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents were $27.6 million at December 31, 2005
compared to $6.2 million at December 31, 2004. The increase of $21.4 million was primarily due to higher Federal
Funds sold levels at the end of 2005 in anticipation of funding needs for new loans. Management added additional
liquidity in 2005 through deposit taking, capital injections and Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing activities to
respond to higher loan demand.

Securities Available for Sale and Held to Maturity. The securities portfolio increased $5.0 million, or
23.1% to $26.4 million at December 31, 2005 from $21.4 million at December 31, 2004. New securities were
purchased during 2005 using available excess cash. As part of the current investment strategy, the Company
attempted to eam more income from the investment portfolio by balancing the assets against the liquidity needed for
loan funding. The investment strategy for 2005 was to focus on the acquisition of high quality fixed income
investments with terms to maturity that does not exceed seven years. Management believes that laddered investment
purchases within this time frame provided the best opportunities to maximize investment yield while maintaining a
defensive position in a rising interest rate environment.

Net Loans. Net loans were $210.7 million at December 31, 2005, an increase of $57 million or 37% from
$153.7 million at December 31, 2004, This increase resulted primarily from net increases in residential and
commercial real estate loan production through internal growth.

Asset Quality and Non-Performing Assets. In the normal course of business, the Company has
recognized and will continue to recognize losses resulting from the inability of certain borrowers to repay loans and
the insufficient realizable value of collateral securing such loans. Accordingly, the Company has established an
allowance for loan losses, which totaled $2.1 million at December 31, 2005, The allowance for loan losses is
maintained at a level believed adequate by management to absorb estimated credit losses. Management’s periodic
evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on the Bank’s past loan loss experience, known and inherent
risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay (including the timing of
future payments), the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, current
economic conditions, and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates of
material factors including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans
that may be susceptible to significant change. The Company’s allowance for loan and credit losses was analyzed and
deemed to be adequate by management at December 31, 2005 for incurred losses.

Impaired loans as a percentage of total loans decreased from 1.32%, or $2.1 million at December 31, 2004,
to 1.09% of total loans, or $2.3 million at December 31, 2005. Assets which are classified are those deemed by
management as inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the
collateral pledged, if any. Assets which are classified have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize
the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that we will sustain some loss if the
deficiencies are not corrected.

There was no other real estate owned at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004.

At December 31,
2005 2004
{Dollars in Thousands)

Classified loans $ 2319 § 2,057
Other real estate owned and repossessions — —
Total classified and other $ 2319 § 2,057
Percent classified and other/total loans 1.09% 1.32%
Gross loans $212,785 $155,408

Non-performing assets consist of loans that are past due 90 days or more which are still accruing interest,
loans on nonaccrual status and OREQ and other foreclosed assets.
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Total nonperforming assets have increased $149,000 to $290,000 at December 31, 2005 from $141,000 at
December 31, 2004. Of the total nonperforming loans at December 31, 2005, $41,000 consists of commercial loans
and are secured by equipment and $249,000 consists of loans secured by real estate. Accrual loans over 30 days
were zero at December 31, 2005. In management’s best judgment, all non-performing assets are either fully
collateralized or appropriately reserved based on circumstances known at this time.

Premises and Equipment. Premises and equipment totaled $2.0 million at December 31, 2005 compared
to $1.9 million at December 31, 2004. The increase of 5% during 2005 is primarily due to the acquisition of select
fixed assets.

Liabilities

Deposits. Deposits increased $35.3 million at December 31, 2005 from December 31, 2004. In the South
Florida market, the Bank is able to attract new deposits or reduce deposit levels as needed by adjusting the interest
paid on deposit accounts, primarily money market and NOW accounts, When additional funds are needed to fulfill
lending commitments, the Bank can, by means of marketing efforts and by adjusting the interest paid on deposits
accounts, attract new deposits and retain existing accounts. In addition, the Bank can utilize institutional (broker)
deposits on a limited basis. At December 31, 2005, brokered deposits were $13.0 million.

At December 31,
2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)

Noninterest-bearing accounts $ 32971 § 36,231

Interest-bearing accounts:
NOW accounts 35,561 9,542
Money market accounts 18,068 21,029
Savings accounts 3,737 4910
Centificates of deposit under $100,000 63,160 40,183
Certificates of deposit $100,000 and more 39,968 46,263
Total interest-bearing deposits 160,494 121,927

Total deposits $193465 § 158,158

Debt; The Bank maintains an unsecured line of credit of $5.0 million and the Company maintains a
$2.0 million revolving credit line, each with Independent Bankers Bank, to meet interim liquidity needs. There were
no borrowings outstanding under these unsecured lines of credit as of December 31, 2005, compared to $2.5 million
outstanding at December 31, 2004 under the Bank’s unsecured line of credit.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances. FHLB advances at December 31, 2005 amounted to $21.0 million
compared to $8.0 million at December 31, 2004. In August 2004 the bank was accepted into membership of the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. The Bank has pledged a security interest in its real estate loan portfolio to the
FHLB as collateral for borrowings obtained from the FHLB,

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements. Securities sold under repurchase agreements were
$1.0 million at December 31, 2005 compared to $1.3 million at December 31, 2004. The decrease was due to a
reduction of client participation in the program in 2005.

Shareholders’ Equity and Regulatory Capital

Total shareholders’ equity was $59.6 million at December 31, 2005, an increase of $38.9 million or 187%,
from $20.7 million at December 31, 2004. The increase was due primarily to the net proceeds from two private
placements during 2005 amounting to approximately $35.5 million and comprehensive income of $2.8 million. In
addition, the Company raised another $0.9 million of capital through the exercise of warrants and options. In the
first quarter of 2005, the Company redeemed 315 preferred shares with a par value of $315,000.

In accordance with risk-based capital guidelines issued by the Federal Reserve Board, the Bank is required
to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to weighted risk assets as well as maintaining minimum leverage ratios.
The Bank's risk-weighted, Tier 1 risk-weighted, and Tier 1 leverage capital ratios were 21.83%, 20.89% and
19.63% at December 31, 2005 and 10.03%, 9.00% and 8.37% at December 31, 2004, Based on these ratios, the
Bank was considered to be “well capitalized”.
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Results of Operations from Year Ended December 31, 2005 to Year Ended December 31, 2006

In this section, unless the context provides otherwise, references to 2006 and 2005 are to the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Net income for 2006 was $3.2 million, compared to net income of
$2.9 million for 2005. Earnings for 2006 as compared to 2005 were primarily impacted by a $3.9 million increase in
net interest income and a $1.2 million income tax benefit as a result of a reduction in the valuation allowance against
deferred tax assets, which were partially offset by a $4.8 million increase in non-interest expenses.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income before provision for loan losses for 2006 was $15.2 million,
compared to $11.3 million for 2005, an increase of $3.9 million, or 35%. Interest income and fees on loans increased
by $8.0 million, or 54%, in 2006 as compared to 2005. The increase in loan income resulted from an increase in total
average loan balances outstanding of 36% to $255.0 million for 2006 from $188.1 million for 2005.

Income from investments including interest earning deposits, securities (available-for-sale and held-to-
maturity), federal funds sold, Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock increased by 90%, or
$1.1million, from $1.2 million for 2005, due primarily to a $17.4 million, or 56% increase in average volume of
investments during the period as well as a 85 basis point increase in average yield. The average interest yield on
investments increased to 4.50% in 2006 from 4.02% in 2005.

Interest income and fees on loans increased by $8.0 million, or 54%, in 2006 as compared to 2005. The
increase in loan income resulted from an increase in total average loan balances outstanding to $255.0 million for
2005 from $188.1 million for 2005. The increase related to volume was enhanced by higher average interest yields
experienced by the Bank on the overall loan portfolio in 2006 of 8.95% compared to 7.89% in 2005. The yield on
total interest-earning assets was 8.27% for 2006, a 95 basis point increase from 7.32% for 2005, primarily as a result
of improved yields in the loan portfolio due to increasing market interest rates on variable rate loans.

Total interest expense increased $5.2 million, or 109%, from $4.7 million for 2005 to $9.9 million for 2006.
The increase in interest expense primarily was the result of an increase in average interest bearing deposit account
balances to $250.9 million for 2006 from $137.7 million for 2005

The increase in interest expense was primarily the result of an increase in average interest bearing deposit
account balances to $212.5 million for 2006 from $137.7 million for 2005. The average balance of NOW and money
market accounts accounted for most of the volume increase in 2006. These balances increased by $73.9 million or
233% in 2006. When additional funds were needed to fulfill lending commitments and securities purchases,
management increased deposits by promoting and adjusting the interest rate paid on deposit accounts. The average
balance of FHLB borrowings was decreased by $4.2 million in 2006. FHLB borrowings were not renewed when
they matured as the Bank had sufficient growth of core deposits to support funding needs. In addition to the increase
in the average balance of deposits there was an increase in the yield paid on interest-bearing deposits and liabilities
to 4.30% for 2006 from 2.98% for 2005 due to the rising interest rate environment.

_ Provision for Loan Losses. Although management uses its best judgment in underwriting each loan,
industry experience indicates that a portion of our loans will become delinquent. Regardless of the underwriting
criteria utilized by financial institutions, they may experience losses as a result of many factors beyond their control
including among other things, changes in market conditions affecting the value of security and unrelated problems
affecting the credit of the borrower. Due to the concentration of loans in South Florida, adverse cconomic conditions
in this area could result in a decrease in the value of a significant portion of the Bank’s collateral securing the loans.

The provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $338,000 compared to $475,000
for the year ended December 31, 2005. Additional provision for loan losses was required in 2006 because of the
growth of the loan portfolio. Through the normal review of the aliowance for loan losses, and despite the increase in
the toan portfolio and an increase in impaired loans from $2.3 million to $12.0 million, management reduced the
provision for loan losses in the fourth quarter of 2006 by $457,000, which resulted in a reduced allowance for loan
losses. The reduction of our allowance for loan losses was due to improved historic performance of the loan
portfolio.

NonlInterest Income. Total noninterest income decreased by $215,000, or 20%, from $1.1 million in 2005
to $859,000 in 2006. This decrease was due to a planned change to our funds availability policy favorable to clients
resulting in lower fee income from insufficient funds, uncollected funds and service charges.

NonlInterest Expense. Total non-interest expense increased by $4.8 million, or 53%, from $9.0 million for
2005 to $13.8 million for 2006. The increase in noninterest expenses reflects the impact of the internal growth of the
Bank in 2006 through growth of the number of people, additional branches and other infrastructure improvements.
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Salaries and benefits increased to $7.2 million in 2006 from $4.2 million in 2005. This reflects an increase
of $3.0 million, or 71%. The increase was primarily due to salary the addition of 28 people in 2006 to service our
larger banking operation as well as salary increases for existing staff. Salaries in 2006 also increased by $609,000 in
2006 for stock compensation expense required under FAS [23R compared to nil in 2005.

Occupancy and equipment expense increased to $3.0 million in 2006 from $1.7 millien in 2005, an increase
of $1.3 million, or 76%. This increase was due to new leases that the Bank entered into for five new branch
locations as well as our new operations center. Data and item processing costs increased by $224,000, or 45%, to
$722,000 for 2006 from $498,000 for 2005. The increase was due to the growth in our number of clients and the
volume of transactions processed for our larger banking business in 2006,

Other expenses increased to $2.9 million in 2006 from $2.5 million in 2005. This represented an increase of
$400,000, or 16%, and reflected the larger size of Sun American Bank across most areas of our business. In addition
we incurred costs of $235,000 related to a major advertising campaign in connection with our name change in 2006
that was not incurred in 2005, In the current environment in which the Bank operates, there is a continued need to
allocate more resources to meet regulatory compliance requirements particularly for the new Bank Secrecy and
Patriot Acts and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Management expects to experience higher cxpenses in future years to meet
compliance requirements.

Provision for Income Taxes. We recorded a net tax benefit of $1.2 million in 2006. The net tax benefit
was the result of a reduction in the valuation allowance against deferred tax assets of $1.% millton based upon
management's assessment and expectation of generating sufficient future taxable income to realize the deferred tax
assets in future. This was partially offset by $650,000 of current income tax expense for 2006. No provision for
income taxes was recorded in 2005 as a result of decreasing the valuation allowance for the realizable portion of
deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance decreased $1.0 million in 2005 eliminating the need to provide for
income tax expense,

Results of Qperations from Year Ended December 31, 2004 to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Comparison of results in this section is for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, Net income for
2005 was $2.9 million compared to a net loss of $228,000 for 2004. This represents a positive change of
$3.1 million. Earnings for 2005 as compared to 2004 were primarily impacted by a $4.8 million increase in net
interest income, a decrease in the provision for loan loss of $0.9 million, partially offset by a $2.7 million increase in
operating expenses, The increased size of the business was due to organic growth of the loan and deposit portfolio in
2005 and the full year impact of the growth initiatives taken in 2004,

Net Interest Income. Net interest income before provision for loan losses for 2005 was $11.3 million as
compared to $6.5 million for 2004, an increase of $4.8 million, or 73%. Incote from interest earning deposits,
securities (available-for-sale and held-to-maturity), federal funds sold, Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal
Reserve Bank stock increased by $352,000 from $846,000 for 2004, due primarily to a $3.5 million, or 13% increase
in average volume of investments during the period. In addition, the average interest yield on investments increased
t0 4.02% in 2005 from 3.86% in 2004, and the average interest yield on federal funds sold increased to 3.31% in
2005 from 1.07% in 2004. Interest income and fees on loans increased by $6.9 million, or 86%, in 2005 as compared
to 2004, The increase in loan income resulted from an increase in total average loan balances outstanding to
$188.1 million for 2005 from $116.8 million for 2004. The largest increases were $43.9 million and $26.4 million in
comimercial real estate and residential real estate loans, respectively. These increases related to volume were
enhanced by significantly higher average interest yields experienced by the Bank on the overall loan portfolio in
2005 of 7.89% compared to 6.85% in 2004. The yield on total interest-earning assets was 7.32% for 2005,a 119
basis point increase from 6.13% for 2004, primarily as a result of improved yields in the loan portfolio due to
increasing market interest rates.

Total interest expense increased $2.4 million, or 107%, from $2.3 million for 2004 to $4.7 million for 2005.
The increase in interest expense was primarily the result of an increase in average interest bearing deposit account
balances to $137.7 million for 2005 from $101.1 million for 2004. The average balance of NOW and money market
accounts increased $5.3 million in 2005. Average balances of certificate of deposits increased $32.4 million during
2005. When additional funds were needed to fulfill lending commitments and securities purchases, management
increased deposits by promoting and adjusting the interest rate paid on deposit accounts. In addition funding was
obtained through the FHLB. The average balance of FHLB borrowings increased $17.3 million in 2005. In addition
to the increase in the average balance of deposits there was an increase in the yield paid on interest-bearing deposits
and liabilities to 2.97% for 2005 from 2.17% for 2004,
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Provision for Loan Losses. Although management uses its best judgment in underwriting each loan,
industry experience indicates that a portion of our loans will become delinquent. Regardless of the underwriting
criteria utilized by financial institutions, they may experience losses as a result of many factors beyond their control
including among other things, changes in market conditions affecting the value of security and unrelated problems
affecting the credit of the borrower. Due to the concentration of loans in South Florida, adverse economic conditions
in this area could result in a decrease in the value of a significant portion of the Bank’s collateral securing the loans.

The allowance for loan loss as of December 31, 2005 was $2.1 million as compared to $1.7 million at
December 31, 2004. Through the normal review of the allowance for loan losses, management determined
additional provision was required due to the increase in loan balances in the year.

Management had further identified its Business Manager relationships as a principle area of concern and
eliminated the product line by taking a write off of $582,000 in the first quarter of 2004. In addition, management
charged off a further $514,000 in 2004 of loans for which it was determined that the borrower had insufficient
ability to repay.

NonInterest Income. Total noninterest income increased $106,000, or 11%, from $969,000 for 2004 to
$1.1 million for 2005.

Service charges on deposit accounts increased to $1.1 million in 2005 from $1.0 million in 2004 an
increase of 7%. Fees were higher due to a larger client base. Also included in noninterest income was an $8,000 gain
on the sale of a security classified as available for sale during 2005. There was a sale of an investment security
classified as available for sale in 2004 that resulted in loss of $33,000 in 2004.

NonlInterest Expense. Total noninterest expense for the year increased by $2.7 million, or 42%, from
$6.3 million for 2004 to $9.0 million for 2005. The increase in noninterest expenses reflected the impact of the
growth of the Bank in 2005 both from the Gulf Bank transaction as well as from internal growth.

Salaries and benefits increased to $4.2 million in 2005 from $2.8 million in 2004. This is an increase of
$1.4 million, or 50%. The increase was due to the addition of 19 people in 2005 to service a larger banking
operation. Occupancy and equipment expense increased to $1.7 millien in 2005 from $1.5 million in 2004, an
increase of $269,000, or 18%. This increase was due to the cost of operating three new branches in the Miami-Dade
area acquired as part of the Gulf Bank transaction for the full year of 2005 versus only 10 months in 2004. In
addition, the Bank’s Boynton Beach branch in Palm Beach County commenced operations in April 2005, Data and
item processing costs decreased by $23,000, or 4%, to $498,000 for 2005 from $520,000 for 2004. Excluding
$222,000 of integration costs incurred in 2004 to combine the former Gulf Bank operations into our Bank systems,
data and item processing costs increased by $199,000, mostly the result of a larger customer and deposit base of the
Bank in 2005.

Other expenses increased to $2.5 million in 2005 from $1.5 million in 2004. This is an increase of
$1.0 million, or 67%, and reflects the larger size of the Bank. Professional fees increased by $562,000 due primarily
to increased costs for general counsel, Sarbanes-Oxley compliance, recruiting, and investor relations. Advertising
expenses increased by $162,000 in 2005 as a result of a various special rate promotions in local media as well as
costs associated with changing of the Bank’s name to Sun American Bank. Directors’ fees of $120,000 were paid in
2005 but were not paid in 2004, Internal and External audit costs increased by $113,000 due to the growing
complexity and size of the Bank.

Provision for Income Taxes. The Company recorded no income taxes in 2005 as a result of decreasing the
valuation allowance for the realizable portion of deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance decreased $1.0 million
in 2005 eliminating the need to provide for income tax expense. In 2004, the Corporation recorded a valuation
allowance in an amount equal to its net deferred tax assets.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk. Sun American Bank’s primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk. Interest rate
risk is the exposure of financial condition to adverse movements in interest rates. Sun American Bank’s income is
derived primarily from the excess of interest collected on interest-earning assets over the interest paid on interest-
bearing liabilities. The rates of interest earned on assets and owed on liabilities generally are established
contractually for a period of time. Because market interest rates change over time, Sun American Bank is exposed to
lower profitability if it cannot adapt to interest rate changes. Accepting interest rate risk can be an important source
of profitability and stockholder value; however, excessive levels of interest rate risk could pose a significant threat
to Sun American Bank’s earnings and capital base. Accordingly, effective risk management that maintains interest
rate risk at prudent levels is essential to Sun American Bank’s safety and soundness. Sun American Bank’s interest
rate risk is monitored using its GAP analysis on a monthly basis.

We do not currently engage in trading activities or use derivative instruments to control interest rate risk.
Even though such activities may be permitted with the approval of the board of directors, management does not
intend to engage in such activities in the immediate future.

Asset/Liability Management. A principal objective of Sun American Bank’s asset/liability management
strategy is to minimize its exposure to changes in interest rates by matching the maturity and repricing horizons of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitics. This strategy is overseen in part through the direction of the
asset and liability committee of Sun American Bank that establishes policies and monitors results to control interest
rate sensitivity.

The asset and liability committee examines the extent to which Sun American Bank’s assets and liabilities
are interest rate sensitive and monitors its interest rate sensitivity GAP. An asset or liability is considered to be
interest rate-sensitive if it will be repriced or mature within the time period analyzed, usually one year or less. The
interest rate sensitivity GAP is the difference between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
scheduled to mature or reprice within such time periods. During a period of rising interest rates, a positive GAP
would tend to result in an increase in net interest income; and a negative GAP would tend to adversely affect net
interest income. Conversely, during a period of falling interest rates, a negative GAP would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income, while a positive GAP would tend to adversely affect net interest income.

If the repricing of Sun American Bank's assets and liabilitics were equally flexible and moved
concurrently, the impact of any increases or decreases in interest rates on net interest income would be minimal.
However, as commercial banking companies generally have a significant quantity of their earning assets in Rate-
Over-Prime, rate-adjusted-day-of-change earning assets, GAP management is critical, as very few, if any, rate-
sensitive liabilities (deposit accounts) adjust at such a rapid frequency.

The asset and liability committee evaluates Sun American Bank’s GAP position, and stratifies these results
according to how often the repayment of particular assets and liabilities are impacted by changes in interest rates.
Additionally, income associated with interest-earning assets and costs associated with interest-bearing liabilities may
not be affected uniformly by changes in interest rates; thus, the magnitude and duration of changes in interest rates
may have a significant impact on net interest income. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may have
similar maturities or periods of repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates.
Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities fluctuate in advance of changes in general market interest rates,
while interest rates on other types of assets and liabilities may lag behind changes in general market rates.
Additionally, certain types of earning assets (variable rate mortgage loans, for example) may have interest caps,
which may limit the level of rate increases, even though general market interest rates increase. GAP management is
further complicated by asset (loan) prepayment and/or early withdrawal of liabilities (depaosits). In volatile interest
rate markets, the level of assets and liabilities assumed by Sun American Bank may not have accounted for the
deviation that has occurred in the unpredictable interest rate environment.

Therefore, management’s and the asset and liability committee’s strategy is to maintain a balanced interest
rate risk position to protect Sun American Bank’s net interest margin from market fluctuations. They review, on at
least a monthly basis, the maturity and repricing of assets and liabilities for the various time periods considered.
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The following table represents the Bank’s cumulative GAP position as of December 31, 2006,

ASSETS:
Immediately repricing investments
Fixed investments
Loans
Total repricing assets
Nonearning assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES:
NOW accounts
Money market accounts
Savings accounts
Total core deposits
Certificates of deposit
Other borrowed funds
Total repricing liabilities
Demand deposits
Other liabilities
Stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and equity
Asset/liability GAP, cumulative
Rate sensitive assets /rate sensitive
liabilities, cumulative
Target

Within Zero to Zero to Zero to Over
Three Twelve Three Five Five
Months Months Years Years Years Total
(Dollars in Thousands})
$ 56415 $§ 56415 § 56,415 § 56,415 56,415 $ 56415
5,163 6,748 24,686 39,270 60,457 60,457
197,151 223,839 283,772 303,191 353,796 353,796
258,729 287,002 364,873 398,876 470,668 470,668
33,215
$ 258,729 287,002 364,873 398,876 470,668 § 503,883
$ 115465 § 115465 S 115465 § 115465 115,465 $ 115,465
21,785 21,785 21,785 21,785 21,785 21,785
9372 9,372 9,372 9,372 9,372 9,372
146,622 146,622 146,622 146,622 146,622 146,622
62,108 183,474 200,966 203,021 203,022 203,022
6,547 9,547 12,547 12,547 12,547 12,547
215,277 339,643 360,135 162,190 362,191 362,191
53,334
3,844
84.514
$ 215,277 § 339,643 $ 413,468 § 415,523 415,524 §$ 503,883
43452 (52,641) 4,738 36,686 108,477
1.20 0.85 1.01 1.10 1.30
.80-2.00 .80-1.50 .80-1.50 .80-1.50 .80-1.50
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Effect of Government Policy, Future Legislation and Changing Financial Markets

One of the primary determinants of the Company’s future success and profitability is the interest rate
differentials obtained by the Bank. The Bank’s earning capacity will be largely controlled by the difference between
the interest rate paid on its deposits and other borrowings and the interest rates received on loans to customers and
securitics held in its investment portfolio. The value and yields of its assets and the rate paid on its liabilities are
sensitive to changes in prevailing rates of interest. Consequently, the eamings and growth of the Company will be
influenced by general economic conditions, the monetary and fiscal policies of the federal government and policies
of regulatory agencies which implement national monetary policy. The nature and impact of any future changes in
monetary policies cannot be predicted. The entire regulatory environment which controls the banking industry in the
United States is undergoing significant change, both as to the banking industry itself and the permissible competition
between banks and non-banking financial institutions, There have been significant regulatory changes in the areas of
bank mergers and acquisitions, the products and services offered by banks and the non-banking activities in which
bank and financial service holding companies may engage. Partly as a result of such changes, banks are now
actively competing with other types of depository institutions and with non-bank financial institutions such as
money market funds, brokerage firms, insurance companies and other financial services organizations. It is not
possible at this time to assess what impact these changes will ultimately have on the Company and its operations.
Certain legislative and regulatory proposals that could affect the Company are pending, or may be introduced, in the
United States Congress, the Florida legislature and various other governmental agencies. These proposals could
further alter the structure, regulation and competitive relationship of financial institutions and may subject the
Company to increased regulation, disclosure and reporting requirements. In addition, the various banking regulatory
agencies frequently propose rules and regulations to implement and enforce already existing legislation. We cannot
be predicted whether or in what form any future legislation or regulations will be enacted or to the extent to which
the business of the Company will be affected by such matters.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and accompanying footnotes have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP"), which require the measurement of financial position and operating
results in terms of historical dollars without consideration for changes in the relative purchasing power of money
over time due to inflation. The assets and liabilities of the Company are primarily monetary in nature and
management believes that changes in market interest rates have a greater impact on its performance than do the
effects of inflation in the current environment.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Sun American Bancorp
Boca Raton, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sun American Bancorp as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Beach Bank,
whose purchase by the Company as described in Note 19, resulted in the acquisition of assets and liabilities
representing 25.0% and 25.5%, respectively, of the December 31, 2006 consolidated financial statements of Sun
American Bancorp. The financial statements of Beach Bank were audited by other auditors whose report dated
February 26, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion and has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates 1o the amounts related to the acquisition, is based solely on the report of other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audits and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinien.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
peniod ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1, Sun American Bancorp adopted SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
"Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements" and accordingly adjusted assets and liabilities at the beginning of 2006 with an offsetting adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2006 Sun American Bancorp changed its method for
the recognition of stock based compensation expense in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment,

/s/ CROWE CHIZEK AND COMPANY LLC
CROWE CHIZEK AND COMPANY LLC

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 27, 2007
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SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Cash and due from financial institutions
Federal funds sold

Total cash and cash equivalents
Securities available for sale

Securities held to maturity (fair value 2006 - $51,980,571, 2005 - § 20,832,067)
Loans, net {of allowance for loan losses of $3,052,638 and $2,119,396)

Federal Reserve Bank stock
Federa! Home Loan Bank stock
Accrued interest receivable
Premises and equipment, net
Goodwill

Intangibles

Other assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS®’ EQUITY
Deposits
Non-interest bearing
Interest bearing
Total deposits
Repurchase agreetnents
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities
Minority interest
Shareholders’ equity

Preferred stock, $1,000 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;

2006 — none outstanding; 2005 — none outstanding

Common stock, $.01 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized;
2006 — 23,176,643 shares outstanding, 2005 — 18,500,912 shares

outstanding
Capital surplus
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes
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December 31,

2006 2005
$ 7,878,379 § 6,201,079
48,537,000 21,380,000
56,415,379 27,581,079
5,173,796 5,208,159
52,244 379 21,160,886
350,742,657 210,665,319
1,749,300 1,257,400
1,289,600 1,328,000
2,409,283 1,235,797
0,880,563 2,014,340
17,440,156 5,287,350
1,758,082 676,246
4,780,002 736,269

$ 503,883,197

$ 277,150,845

$ 53,334,086

$ 32,971,081

349,644,106 160,493,718
402,978,192 193,464,799
1,547,273 1,020,710
11,000,000 21,000,000
3,816,042 2,014,942
419,341,507 217,500,451
27,753 25,386
459,090 412,333
87,180,224 65,299,226
(2,915,439)  (5,895,750)
(209,938) (190,801)
84,513,937 59 625,008

$ 503,883,197

$ 277,150,845




SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Interest and dividend income
Loans, including fees
Securities
Federal funds sold and other

Interest expense
Deposits
Other

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts
Net gains (lesses) on sales of securities

Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Data processing
Professional services
Insurance
Advertising
Other

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest
Minority interest in net income of subsidiary

Income (loss) before provision for {ncome taxes

Income tax benefit

Net income (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

See accompanying notes
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Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
$22821,484 §$14844430 $8,002,103
1,362,235 947,144 761,455
015,893 251,437 85,032
25,099,612 16,043 011 8,848,590
9,148,681 3,931,409 2,088,266
748,530 808,187 240,887
9,897 211 4,739,596 2,329,153
15,202,401 11,303,415 6,519,437
338,321 475,350 1,397,000
14,864,080 10,828,065 5,122,437
859,411 1,066,704 1,001,164
— 7,930 (32,664)
859,411 1,074,634 968,500
7,154,241 4,247.490 2,837,972
3,001,340 1,724,182 1,455,371
721,607 497,618 520,131
613,443 824,568 262,120
253,433 215,961 243,967
282,849 183,482 21,667
1,752,051 1,288,936 977,436
13,778,964 8,982,237 6,318,664
1,944 528 2,920,462 (227,727
(1,524) (1,662) ~(308)
1,943 004 2,918,800 (228,035)
(1,236,000) — —
$ 3,179.004 § 2918800 § (228,035)
5 017 § 024 § {0.05)
3 0.14 § 021 8§ (0.05)




SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Other Total
Preferred Common Capital Subscriptions Accamulated Comprehensive  Sharcholders’
Stock Stock Surplus Receivable Deficit Loss Equity
Balance at
January 1, 2004 — § 294593 § 19085454 § (1,000,000) $  (8,448,430) § (84,521) § 9,847,096
Issuance of
2,480,000 shares
of common stock — 16,801 9,920,810 1,000,000 — — 10,937,611
Issuance of 3,100
shares of Preferred
stock 3,100,000 — (5,000} — — — 3,095,000
Redemption of 2,785
shares of preferred
stock (2,785,000) — — — — — (2,785,000}
Dividends paid on
preferred shares — — - — (123,724} — (123,724)
Net loss and
comprehensive
Income (loss) — — — — (228,035) 3,162 (224,873)
Balance at
December 31, 2004 315,000 311,394 29,001,264 — (8,800,18%) (81,359) 20,746,110
Issuance of 9,814,750
shares of common
stock — 98,147 35,381,481 —_ —_ —_ 35,479,628
- Redemption of 315
: shares of preferred
stock {315,000) — — — — — (315,000)
Dividends paid on
preferred shares —_ — — — (14,361) — (14,361)
31,196 Stock options
exercised — 312 48,461 - — —_ 48,773
248,000 Warrants
exercised —_ 2,480 868,020 — — —_ 870,500
Net income and
comprehensive
income {loss) — — — — 2,918,800 (109,442) 2,809,358
Balance at
December 31, 2005 — 412,333 65,299,226 — (5,895,750) (190,801) 59,625,008
Cumulative effect of
adoption of SAB
No. 108, net of tax — — —_ — (198,693} — (198,693)
Issuance of 3,741,442
shares of common
stock — 37414 18,136,091 — — — 18,173,505
5,640 Stock options
exercised _ 56 13,179 _ —_ — 13,235
828,649 Warrants
exercised —_ 8,287 3,123,100 —_ — — 3,131,387
100,000 Restricted
stock granted — 1,000 (1,000} _— — — —

Stock-based

compensation

expense — —_ 609,628 — — —_ 609,628
Net income and

comprehensive

income (1oss) — — — - 3,179,004 {19,137) 3,159,867
Balance at
December 31, 2006 — 5 459090 § 87!180é24 — § (2915439) § (209,938) S 84,513,937

See accompanying notes

59




SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash used in operating activities:

Net amortization on securities
Provision for loan and lease tosses
Depreciation
Deferred income taxes
Stock-based compensation
(Gain) loss on sale of securities
Minority interest in net income of subsidiary
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of available for sale securities
Maturities and pay-downs of available for sale securities
Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities
Purchases of held to maturity securities
Maturities and pay-downs of held to maturity securities
Purchase of assets and assumption of liabilities of Gulf Bank
Cash equivalents acquired from Beach Bank
Purchases of Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home
Loan Bank stock
Loan originations, net
Purchases of premises and equipment, net
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under repurchase
agreements
Net change in Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Net increase in deposits
Gross proceeds from issuance of commeon stock
Common stock issuance costs
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
Repayment of preferred shares
Preferred share dividends
Net cash provided by financing activitics

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Fair value of noncash assets acquired
Fair value of liabilities assumed
Fair value of common stock issued

Years Ended December 31,

See accompanying notes
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2006 2005 2004
$ 3,179,004 $ 2,918,800 § (228,035)
11,638 49,055 62,882
338,321 475,350 1,397,000
494,649 479,546 432,123
(1,848,000) — —
609,628 — -
— (7,930) 32,664
1,524 1,662 308
(1,273,026) (731,858) 721,342
758,368 1,233,364 122,202
2,272,106 4,417,989 2,540,486
— — (185,346)
3,618 5,003 11,609
— 243276 2,454,006
(14,983,438)  (7,929,470)  (5.035,152)
7,576,007 2,509,762 526,125
— — 23583212
17,948,917 — —
(213,000)  (1,427,250) (863,400)
(72,721,182)  (57,377,413)  (47,180,037)
(7,472,629) (441,576) (284,867)
(69,861,707) ~ (64,417,668)  (26,973,850)
(275,861)  (2,736,409) 320,535
(10,000,000) 13,000,000 5,000,000
103,616,757 35,034,071 11,012,074
149,000 39,259,000 12,780,000
(210,617)  (3,779,372) (1,842,389
3,131,387 870,500 —
13,235 48,773 —
— — 3,095,000
— (315,000)  (2,785,000)
— (14,361) (123,724)
96,423,901 81,367,202 _ 27,456,496
28,834,300 21,367,523 3,023,132
27,581,079 6,213,556 3,190,424
$ 56415379 $ 27,581,079 6,213,556
$ 9326958 $ 4,517,636 2,381,937
804,000 — —
108,383,000 — —
106,853,000 — —
18,521,000 — —




SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements of Sun
American Bancorp (the “Company”) include the accounts of Sun American Bancorp (the “Parent Company”), its
principal subsidiary, Sun American Bank (the “Bank™), which includes the purchased assets and assumed liabilities
of the former Beach Bank, and is 99.9% owned by Sun American Bancorp, and a 51% owned subsidiary, Sun
American Financial, LLC.

The Company, through its subsidiary bank, operates [0 locations in three Counties throughout Southeast
Florida. Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, and term certificate accounts, and its primary lending
products are residential and commercial mortgage, commercial and installment loans. Substantially all loans are
secured by specific items of collateral including business assets, consumer assets, and commercial and residential
real estate. Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from cash flow from operations of businesses. Other
financial instruments, which potentially represent concentrations of credit risk, include deposit accounts in other
financial institutions, federal funds sold, and investment securities. Sun American Wealth Management, a division
of the Bank, offers a wide range of non-Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insured financial products
and services to consumers through arrangements with Uvest Financial Services Group, Inc., a registered securities
broker-dealer. Sun American Financial, LLC, a 51% owned subsidiary at December 31, 2006, provides residential
mortgage services to Bank customers.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have
been eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

On November 17, 2006, the Company signed a definitive agreement to acquire Independent Community
Bank which is located in Palm Beach County in the city of Tequesta, Florida and operates a single branch. At
December 31, 2006, Independent Community Bank had total assets of $136.5 million. The proposed transaction will
result in an expanded presence for the Company in Palm Beach County, serving business and retail financial needs
with local decision-making and serving a greater base of individuals and businesscs overall. The transaction is
expected to close by the end of the first quarter of 2007.

Use of Estimates: To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, management makes estimates and assumptions based on available
information. These estimates and assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the
disclosures provided, and future results could differ. The allowance for loan losses, determination of purchase
accounting adjustments and the resulting amortization thereof, goodwill impairment, deferred taxes, and fair values
of financial instruments are particularly subject to change.

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, deposits with other financial institutions under 90
days, and federal funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for loan and deposit transactions.

Securities: Securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when management has
the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity, Sccurities are classified as available for sale when they might
be sold before maturity. Securities available for sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and
losses reported in other comprehensive income, net of deferred tax. Other securities such as Federal Reserve Bank
stock and Federal Home Loan Bank stock are carried at cost.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount on a method that approximates the
level yield method. Gains and losses on sales are based on the amortized cost of the security sold. Gains and losses
on sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific identification method. Securities are
written down to fair value when a decline in fair value is not temporary. Declines in the fair values of secunities
below their cost that are other than temporary are reflected as realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary
losses, management considers: (1) the length of time and extent that the fair values have been less than cost, (2) the
financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the Corporation’s ability and intent to hold the
security for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Loans: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity
or payoff are reported at the principal balance outstanding, net of uneamned interest, deferred loan fees and costs, and
an allowance for loan losses.
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SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest income is reported on the interest method and includes amortization of net deferred loan fees and
costs over the loan term. Interest income on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is
90 days delinquent unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Consurmer loans are typically
charged off no later than 120 days past due. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier
date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income.
Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for
return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due
are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred
credit losses, increased by the provision for loan losses and decreased by charge-offs less recoveries. Management
estimates the allowance balance required using past loan loss experience, the nature and volume of the portfolio,
information about specific borrower situations and estimated collateral values, economic conditions, and other
factors. Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any
loan that, in management’s judgment, should be charged-off.

The allowance consists of specific and non-specific components. The specific component relates to loans
that are individually classified as impaired. The non-specific component covers pools of other loans and is based on
historical loss experience adjusted for current factors.

A loan is impaired when full payment under the loan terms is not expected. Comrnercial and commercial
real estate loans are individually evaluated for impairment. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is
allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s existing
rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Large groups of smaller
balance homogeneous loans, such as consumer and residential real estate loans, are collectively evaluated for
impairment and, accordingly, they are not separately identified for impairment disclosures.

Fareclosed Assets: Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair
value when acquired, establishing a new cost basis. If fair value declines, a valuation allowance is recorded through
expense. Costs afier acquisition ate expensed.

Premises and Equipment: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Buildings and related components are depreciated using the straight-line method with
useful lives ranging from 15 to 39 years. Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line
method with useful lives ranging from 3 to 7 years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill results from business acquisitions and represents the
excess of the purchase price over the fair value of acquired tangible assets and liabilities and identifiable intangible
assets, Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment and any such impairment will be recognized in the period
identified.

Other intangible asseis consist of core deposit intangible assets arising from bank and branch acquisitions.
They are initially measured at fair value and then are amortized on a straight line or an accelerated method over their
estimated useful lives,

Long-Term Assets: Premises and equipment, core deposit and other intangible assets, and other long-term
assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from future
undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the assets are adjusted to their fair value.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include off-balance sheet
credit instruments, such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer
financing needs. The face amount for these items represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer
collateral or ability to repay. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded. Instruments, such as
standby letters of credit, that are considered financial guarantees in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45, are
recorded at fair value if significant.
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SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Repurchase Agreements: Substantially all repurchase agreement liabilities represent amounts advanced
by various customers. Securities are pledged to cover thesc liabilities, which are not covered by federal deposit
insurance.

Stock Compensation: Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock option awards granted
under the Company’s share-based payment plans in accordance with the recognition and measurement provisions of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations,
as permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Share-based employee
compensation expense was not recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of income prior to January 1,
2006, as all stock option awards granted under the plans had an exercise price equal to or greater than the market
value of the common stock on the date of the grant. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, using the modified-prospective
transition method. Under this transition method, compensation cost recognized during fiscal year 2006
includes compensation cost for new awards granted after the adoption date and for all share-based awards granted
prior to, but not yet vested, as of December 31, 2005 based on the grant-date fair value estimates and related service
period estimates in accordance with the original provisions of FASB Statement No. 123.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recognized compensation expense related to
stock options and restricted stock awards of $610,000. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
eamnings per share if the fair value based method established in SFAS 123R had been applied to ali outstanding and
unvested awards in the prior years.

2005 2004

Net income (loss) as reported $ 2,918,800 $ (228,035)
Deduct:
Dividends paid on preferred shares (14,361) (123,724)
Stock-based compensation expense

determined under fair value based method (2,197,892) (71,061)
Pro forma net income (loss) $ 706,547 § (422,820)
Basic earnings (loss) per share as reported $ 024 § (0.05)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share as reported 3 021 % (0.05)
Pro forma basic earnings (loss) per share $ 006 § (0.06)
Pro forma diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 005 % (0.06)

On December 16, 2005, the Board of Directors of Sun American Bancorp approved the acceleration of the
vesting of all currently unvested stock options awarded to existing Directors of the Company under its Amended and
Restated Directors Stock Option Plan and its Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option. As a result of this
action, options to purchase approximately 1,034,280 shares of common stock became exercisable effective
December 16, 2005. All other terms and conditions applicable to such options, including the exercise prices,
remained unchanged.

The decision to accelerate vesting of these options, which the Company believes is in the best interest of its
stockholders, was made primarily to reduce non-cash compensation expense that would have been recorded in its
income statement in future periods upon the adoption of SAFS 123R.
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SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model. This model uses the assumptions listed in the table below. Expected volatilities are based on the
historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The risk-free rate for periods within the expected life of the option is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate 4.93% 4.28% 4.50%
Expected option life 6.5 years 6.5 years 6.5 years
Expected stock price volatility 21% 25% 19%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Weighted Average fair value of options granted during the year $1.98 $1.53 $1.99

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts
for the temporary differences between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using
enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be
realized.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share: Basic earnings (loss) per common share is net income (loss), less
preferred stock dividends, divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted eamings per common share includes the dilutive effect of additional potential common shares
issuable under stock options and stock warrants. Eamings and dividends per share are restated for all stock splits and
dividends through the date of issue of the financial statements,

Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss} and other
comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized gains and losses on securities
available for sale which are also recognized as a separate component of equity.

Loss Contingencies: Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course
of business, are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be
reasonably estimated. Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have a material effect on
the financial statements,

Restrictions on Cash: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank required to meet
regulatory reserve and clearing requirements was $1,782,000 and $1,926,000 at December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, respectively. These balances do not earn interest.

Common Share Dividend Restriction: Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and
may limit the dividends paid by the bank to its parent holding company or by the holding company to shareholders.
No common share dividends may be paid at this time, as the Bank and its parent holding company have a deficit in
retained earnings.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant
market information and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in Note 15. Fair value estimates involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors,
especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions
could significantly affect the estimates,

Operating Segments: While management monitors the revenue streams of the various products and
services, operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a Company-wide basis. Accordingly, all
of the financial service operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating
segment.

Reclassifications: Some itemns in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform to the
current presentation.




SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements: In July 2006, the FASB released Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes." This Interpretation revises the recognition tests for tax positions taken in tax
returns such that a tax benefit is recorded only when it is more likely than not that the tax position will be allowed
upon examination by taxing authoritics. The amount of such a tax benefit to record is the largest amount that is more
likely than not to be allowed. Any reduction in deferred tax assets or increase in tax liabilities upon adoption will
correspondingly reduce retained earnings. The Company does not expect the adoption of FIN No. 48 on January 1,
2007 to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements or results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemenis
when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 provides guidance
on how prior year misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements in current year financial
statements for purposes of assessing materiality. SAB 108 requires that registrants quantify errors using both a
balance sheet and income statement approach and evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying a
misstatement that, when relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is material. SAB 108 is
effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. SAB 108 permits companies to initially apply its
provisions by either restating prior financial statements or recording a cumulative effect adjustment to the carrying
values of assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment to retained earnings for errors that
were previously deemed immaterial but are material under the guidance in SAB 108.

The Company adopted the provisions of SAB No. 108 during its fourth quarter of 2006. In accordance with
the transition provision of SAB No. 108, the Company recorded a cumulative $199,000, net of tax, decrease to
retained eamings as of January 1, 2006, The cumulative adjustment to opening retained earnings related to a
$170,000, net of tax, decrease associated with the proper application of FASB Statement No. 91, Accounting for
Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases,
and a $29,000, net of tax, decrease to reflect the recognition of rent expense on a straight-line basis related to rent
escalations in one of the Company’s operating leases. The adjustment for the proper application of FASB Statement
No. 91 is for all loans originated since 2004 and the adjustment for the operating lease dates back to lease inception
in 2002.

Management has concluded that these adjustments are immaterial to prior years' consolidated financial
statements under the previous method of assessing materiality, and therefore has elected, as permitted under the
transition provisions of SAB No. 108, to reflect the effect of these adjustments in opening assets and liabilities as of
January 1, 2006, with the offsetting adjustment reflected as a cumulative effect adjustment to opening retained
earnings as of January 1, 2006.

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement No. 155,
Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments-an amendment to FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. This
Statement permits fair value re-measurement for any hybrid financial instruments, clarifies which instruments are
subject to the requirements of Statement No. 133, and establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized
financial assets and other items. The new standard is effective for financial assets acquired or issued afier the
beginning of the entity's first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. Management does not expect the
adoption of this statement to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. This Statement defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
This Statement establishes a fair value hierarchy about the assumptions used to measure fair value and clarifies
assumptions about risk and the effect of a restriction on the sale or use of an asset. The standard is effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not completed its evaluation of the impact of the
adoption of this standard.
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NOTE 2 - SECURITIES

The fair value of available for sale securities and the related gross unrealized gains and losses recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at year-end were as follows:

Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Unrealized
Value Gains Losses
2006
Mortgage-backed and other 5 10,800 § 264 % (N
US Government Mortgage Fund 5,162,906 — (337,094)
$ 5,173,796 § 264 % (337,101)
2005
Mortgage-backed $ 14,733  § 504§ 20
US Government Mortgage Fund 5,193,426 — (306,574)

5 5208159 3 504 8 (306,595)

The carrying amount, unrecognized gains and losses, and fair value of securities held to maturity at year-
end were as follows:

Gross Gross
Carrying Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Amount Galns Losses Value
2006 -
U.S. Govemment federal agency $ 48,359,284 § 63,497 $(256,576) § 48,166,205
Corporate 782,069 — —_— 782,069
Mortgage-backed 3,103,026 — (70,729) 3,032,297
52,244,379 63,497 (327,305) 51,980,571
2005
U.S. Government federal agency $19,050808 § 7,532 §$(254,259) § 18,804,081
Corporate 250,586 — (1,236) 249,350
Mortgage-backed 1,859,492 — (80,856) 1,778,636
$ 21,160,886 7,532 (336,351) 20,832,067
Sales of available for sale securities were as follows:
2006 2005 2004
Proceeds 3 — § 243276 § 2,454,006
Gross gains — 7,930 —
Gross losses — — 32,664
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NOTE 2 - SECURITIES (Continued)

The fair value of debt securities and carrying amount, if different, at year-end 2006 by contractual maturity
were as follows. Securities not due at a single maturity date, primarity mortgage-backed securities and mutual funds,
ar¢ shown scparately.

Held to Maturity Available
for Sale

Carrying Fair Fair

Amount Value Value
Due in one year or less $ 1,585,034 § 1,576,381 § —
Due from one to five years 30,663,222 30,517,259 —
Due from five to ten years 11,900,574 11,894,699 —
Due after ten years 4,992,523 4,959,935 —
US Government Mortgage Fund — — 5,162,906
Mortgage-backed 3,103,026 3,032,297 10,890

$ 52,244,379 $ 51,980,571 § 5,173,796

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, held to maturity securities with a carrying amount of $8,148,353 and
$1,995,847, respectively, were pledged to secure repurchase agreements and public deposits.

Securities with unrealized losses at year-end 2006, aggregated by investment category and the length of
time that the securities have been in an unrealized loss position, are as follows:

Less than 12 Moaths More than 12 Months Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
U.S. Govt federal agency $ 14874257 $ 98,059 § 8910355 § 158,517 § 23,784,612 3§ 256,576
U.S. Govt Mortgage Fund — — 5,162,906 337,094 5,162,906 337,094
Mortgage-backed — — 1,445,477 70,736 1,445,477 70,736

Corporate — — — - — —
$ 14874257 § 98,059 $ 15518738 $§ 566,347 § 30,392,995 § 664,406

Securities with unrealized losses at year-end 2005, aggregated by investment category are as follows:

Less than 12 Months More than 12 Months Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unreslized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
U.S. Govt federal agency $ 6897000 § 45358 § 7.912,080 § 208,901 $ 14,809,080 § 254,259
U.S. Govt Mortgage Fund — — 5,193,426 306,574 5,193,426 306,574
Mortgage-backed — — 1,779,498 80,877 1,779,498 30,877
Corporate — — 249 350 1,236 249,350 1,236

$ 6,897,000 $ 45358 § 15,134,354 $§ 597588 § 22,031,354 § 642,946
f———— e ——

Unrealized losses on securities have not been recognized into income because the issuers are of high credit
quality (government agencies and sponsored entities) and management has the intent and ability to hold for the
foreseeable future, and the decline in fair value is largely due to changes in market interest rates. The fair value is
expected to recover as the securities approach their maturity date or market interest rates change. At year-end 2006
and 2005, there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer, other than the U.S Government and its agencies, in
an amount greater than 10% of shareholders’ equity.
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NOTE 3 - LOANS

Loans at year-end were as follows:

2006 2008
Commercial loans $ 34,323,212 § 25,563,003
Residential real estate loans 93,747,395 48,253,995
Commercial real estate loans 210,505,290 136,095,967
Consumer and home equity 14,059,620 2,595,088
Other 1,856,866 801,589
354,492,383 213,309,642
Less: allowance for loan losses (3,052,638) (2,119,396)
Net deferred loan fees (697,088) (524,927)
Loans, net $ 350,742,657 $§ 210,665,319
Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows.
2006 2005 2004
Beginning balance $ 2,119,396 % 1,678,191 § 738,147
Provision for loan losses 338,321 475,350 1,397,000
Loans charged-off (1,060) (78,219)  (1,095,756)
Recoveries 34,221 113,222 180,800
Reclassification of reserve for unfunded commitments
to other liabilities — (69,148) —
Acquisition related adjustment 561,760 — —
Ending balance $ 3,052,638 § 2,119,396 § 1,678,191
Impaired loans were as follows:
2006 2005
Year-end loans with no allocated allowance for loan losses b 529,699 b 102,095
Year-end loans with allocated allowance for loan losses 11,433,345 2,216,573

$ 11,963,044 $ 2318668

Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated b 340,518 $ 20,089

The increase in impaired loans was due to the downgrading of one commercial real estate construction loan
that incurred cost overruns prompting the bank to advance additional funds and obtain additional collateral, as well
as approximately $2.8 million of impaired loans acquired in the Beach Bank transaction.

2006 2005 2004
Average of impaired loans during the year § 7,950,503 § 2,194,395 § 1,410,603
Interest income recognized during impairment 447,824 161,723 25,847
Cash-basis interest income recognized 439215 161,723 25,847

Nonperforming loans were as foilows:

2006 2005

Loans past due over 30 days still on accrual h 500,000 3 —
Nonaccrual loans 452,949 289,804

$ 052,949 $ 289,804

Nonperforming loans includes both smaller balance homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for
impairment and individually classified impaired loans.
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NOTE 4 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Year-end premises and equipment were as follows.

2006 2005
Land $ 3,457,523 $ 478,375
Buildings and improvements 420,097 429,157
Leasehold improvements 5,260,022 1,706,957
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,253,061 2,738,714
13,390,703 5,353,203
Less: Accumulated depreciation 3,510,140 3,338,863

3 9,880,563 $§ 2,014,340

Depreciation expense was $494,649, $479,546, and $432,123 in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Rent expense was $2,198,138 and $1,036,304 in 2006 and 2005. Rent commitments under non-cancelable
operating leases were as follows, before considering renewal options that generally are present.

2007 § 2,846,503
2008 2,972,634
2009 3,029,892
2010 2,440,319
2011 1,734,223
Thereafter 8,533,347

$ 21556918

NOTE 5 - GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Acquired Identifiable Intangible Assets

Acquired intangible assets were as follows as of year-end:

2006 2005
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Core deposit intangibles $ 2,149,044 § (500,962 $ 1,028,587 § (352,341)
Favorable lease adjustments 110,000 — — —
§ 2,259,044 (500,962} 1,028,587 (352,341)

Aggregate amortization expense was $148,620, $167,035, and $154,767 for 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. The increases to core deposit intangible and favorable lease adjustments were attributable to the Beach
Bank transaction.

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years:

2007 $ 410,328
2008 351,890
2009 293,460
2010 235,034
2011 176,604

S iser3e
Goodwill was 317,440,156 and $5,287,350 at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.

The increase of $12,152,806 was attributable to the Beach Bank transaction. There was no change to goodwill in
2005. There was no impairment of goodwill at December 31, 2006 or 2005.
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS

NOW, savings, and money market account deposits totaled $146,621,212 and $57,366,731 at
December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Time deposits of $100,000 or more were $123,329,624 and $39,967,950 at year-end 2006 and 2005,
Brokered deposits totaled $8,342,000 and $12,993,000 at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.

Scheduled maturities of all time deposits for the next five years were as follows.

2007 $ 183,474,993
2008 16,379,312
2009 1,113,084
2010 2,004,512
2011 50,993

$203,022,894

NOTE 7 - SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are secured by securities with a carrying amount of
$7,848,353 at year-end 2006.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are financing arrangements that mature within two years.
Securities are pledged to cover these liabilities, which are not covered by federal deposit insurance. Information
concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase is summarized as follows:

2006 2005
Average daily balance during the year § 919,129 $ 625,000
Average interest rate during the year 3.95% 2.59%
Maximum month-end balance during the year $ 2,278,146 $ 1,241,000
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 4.14% 3.45%

NOTE 8 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (“FHLB”) and has entered into credit
arrangements with the FHLB under which authorized borrowings are collateralized by the Bank’s FHLB stock as
well as loans or other instruments which may be pledged. These advances carry a fixed rate of interest and were
$11,000,000 and $21,000,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Bank has pledged a security
interest in s real estate loan portfolio to the FHLB as collateral for borrowings obtained from the FHLB.

The details of FHLB borrowings at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Interest
2006 2005 Maturity Date Rate

3 —_ $ 5,000,000 January 30, 2006 4.51%
—_ 5,000,000 March 29, 2006 4.64
5,000,000 5,000,000 January 22, 2007 3.69

December 10, |

3,000,000 3,000,000 2007 3.59
1,000,000 1,000,000 March 26, 2008 5.51
2,000,000 2,000,000 December 8, 2008 3.87

$11,000,000 $21,000,000

The Bank maintains an unsecured line of credit of $5.0 million and the Company maintains a $2.0 million
revolving credit line, each with Independent Bankers Bank, to meet interim liquidity needs, There were no
borrowings outstanding under these unsecured lines of credit as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005.
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NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

2006 2005 2004
Current tax expense:
Federal $ 525389 % — —
State 86,248 — —
611,637 — —
Deferred tax (benefit) expense:
Federal 290,644 140,569 (66,200)
State 49,752 821,180 (11,332)
340,396 961,749 (77,532)
Change in valuation allowance (2,188,033) (961,749) 77,532
Income tax (benefit) expense $ (1,236,000) $ — % —

In 2005 and in 2004 the Company recorded no income taxes. The Company recorded a valuation allowance
in an amount equal to its net deferred tax assets exclusive of unrealized loss on securities available for sale.

The details of the net deferred tax asset are as follows:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards (expires 2023) $ 1,023,452 § 1,533,515
Allowance for loan losses 870,001 571,879
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 126,800 115,200
Purchase accounting adjustments 241,099 —
Depreciation 86,103 138,191
Loan fee income 262,314 197,530
Stock options 114,627 —
Other 126,274 91,566
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangibles (376,896) (274,37T)
Accrual to cash basis reporting for tax purposes (46,847) (70,271)
Net deferred tax asset 2,426,927 2,303,233
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets — {2,188,033)
Net deferred tax asset after valuation allowance $ 2,426,927 $ 115200

In accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, the Company recognized the remaining
portion of its deferred tax assets given management’s assessment and expectation of generating sufficient future
taxable income. Accordingly, the valuation allowance decreased $2,188,033 during the year ended December 31,
2006.

The Corporation has available federal net operating loss carryforwards approximating the following at
December 31, 2006:

Expiring December 31,
2006 —
2007 53,630
2008 53,630
2009 -_—
2010 264,426
2011 288,430
2012 844,454
2018 307,695
2019 590,608
2020 316,904

3 2,719.777

Za!




SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES (Continued)

As a result of changes in ownership of the Company in excess of 50% in 1993 and 2000, the net operating
loss carryforwards expiring in periods prior to 2020 are shown at the limited amount that may be used in any year.

The reconciliation between the federal tax rate and the effective tax rate is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Federal statutory rate 34% 34% 34%
State taxes 4% 4% 4%
Incentive stock options 5% — —
Change in valuation allowance (113%) (38%) (38%)
Other 6% — —
Effective tax rate (64%) 0% 0%

NOTE 10 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Loans to principal officers, directors, and their affiliates in 2006 and 2005 were as follows.

2006 2005
Beginning balance $5861,348 $ 695,000
New and renewed loans 1,087,363 7,717,177
Payments and renewals (74,199) {2,550,829)
Ending balance $6874512 § 5861348

Deposits from principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year-end 2006 and 2005 were $2,344,480
and $3,087,147.

NOTE 11 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has granted stock options for the purchase of shares of common stock of the Company to
directors, former directors and employees of the Company under the Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option
Plan, the Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan, and the Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option
and Stock Incentive Plan, (the “Plans™) and various compensation agreements and actions of the Board of Directors.
All options for the purchase of common stock of the Company expire 10 years from the date of grant. All options,
with the exception of 315,000 options issued to key consultants at below fair market value, have an exercise price
that is equal to the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date the options were granted. It is the policy of
the Company to issue new shares for stock option exercises and restricted stock, rather than issue treasury shares.
Options generally vests over five years; however, options granted to current directors prior to 2006 were amended to
vest immediately on December 16, 2005.

At December 31, 2006, the Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option Plan permits the grant of stock
options to purchase up to 1 million shares, of which 221,500 shares remained available for issuance. The Amended
and Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan permits the grant of stock options to purchase up to | million shares, of
which 39,880 shares remained available for issuance. The Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option and Stock
Incentive Plan permits the grant of stock options and restricted shares for up to 4 million shares with 3 million
shares allocated to incentive stock options. At December 31, 2006, 2,621,900 shares remained available for issuance
under the Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option and Stock Incentive Plan,
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NOTE 11 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

A summary of the options for the purchase of commen stock of the Company as of December 31, 2006,
and changes during the year then ended is presented below.

2006

Weighted

Average

Exercise
Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 2,065,030 $3.34
Granted 1,114,400 5.10
Exercised (5,640) 235
Forfeited or expired (87.437) 4.46
Outstanding at end of year 3,086,353 $3.95
Options exercisable at year-end 1,516,725 $3.19
Weighted average fair value of options granted during year $1.98

The aggregate intrinsic value for stock optiens outstanding and options exercisable at December 31, 2006,
was $4.0 million and $3.1 million, respectively. The weighted average remaining contractual term of stock options
outstanding and options exercisable at December 31, 2006, was 8.1 years and 7.2 years, respectively.

Proceeds from the exercise of 5,640 and 37,690 stock options amounted to $13,235 and $48,733 in 2006
and 2005, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $14,096 in 2006 and $96,982 in
2005. The fair value of shares vesting in the period, based upon the closing price of $5.22 on the American Stock
Exchange, on December 31, 2006, was $797,000.

At December 31, 2006, there was $2.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested options granted under the various plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 4.1 years.

Restricted Stock Awards

The following table presents information on restricted stock outstanding for the period shown:

2006
Average
Market
Shares Price at Grant

Qutstanding at heginning of year - 5—
Awarded 100,000 5.25
Released — —
Forfeited — —
Qutstanding at end of period 100,000 $5.25

At December 31, 2006, there was $454,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
shares of restricted stock. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 4.3 years.
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NOTE 12 - STOCK WARRANTS

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase up to 13,259,548 shares of
common stock, including Class A, B, C, D, E, F,G and other warrants,

A summary of the warrants to purchase shares of common stock of the Company as of December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2005, is presented below.

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Class A Warrants 937,625 937,625
Class B Warrants 23,200 574,625
Class C Warrants 180,000 180,000
Class D Warrants 4,822,100 4,960,000
Class E Warrants 1,323,500 1,586,000
Class F Warrants 8,168,714 8,228,750
Class G Warrants 50,000 50,000
Other Warrants 1,604,766 1,607,958

Warrants Qutstanding 17,109,905 18,124,958

Class A Warrants

Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $4.00,
subject to adjustment for stock splits, reverse stock splits and other events of recapitalization. The Company may
redeem the Class A warrants at any time if the following conditions have been satisfied: (i} the Company has
registered for resale the commeon stock issuable upon exercise of the Class A warrants; (ii) the common stock, as
publicly traded in the over-the-counter market or on a national securities exchange, has closed at a price of at least
$8.50 for 20 continuous trading days; and (iii) the Company pays $4.00 per outstanding warrant, subject to
adjustment. If not earlier redeemed, the Class A warrants will expire no later than April, 2008.

Class B Warrants

Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $3.50,
subject to adjustment for stock splits, reverse stock splits and other events of recapitalization. The Class B warrants
will expire in November, 2007.

Class C Warrants

Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase 2.3 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $3.75 per
share, subject to adjustment for stock splits, reverse stock splits and other events of recapitalization. The Company
may redeem the Class C warrants at any time if the following conditions have been satisfied: (i) the Company has
registered for resale the common stock issuable upon exercise of the Class C warrants; (ii) the common stock, as
publicly traded in the over-the-counter market or on a national securities exchange, has closed at a price of at least
$8.50 for 20 continuous trading days; and (iii) the Company pays $8.65 per outstanding warrant, subject to
adjustment. If not earlier redeemed, the Class C warrants will expire no later than May 5, 2007,

Class D Warrants

Each Class D warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of the Company’s comnmon stock at an
exercise price per share of $4.00. The exercise price is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events as
provided in the Class D warrant certificate. The Company’s Class D warrants may be exercised at any time until
May 13, 2009, at which time they will expire.

The Company has the right to redeem the Class D warrants at a redemption price of $0.50 per warrant
(subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend on the commion stock or the
like) after providing 30 days’ prior written notice to the Class D warrant holders at any time after the closing price of
the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $5.60, for five consecutive trading days. If the Company calls the
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NOTE 12 - STOCK WARRANTS (Continued)

Class D warrants for redemption, they will be exercisable until the close of business on the business day next
preceding the specified redemption date.

Class E Warrants

Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $4.25,
subject to adjustment for stock splits, reverse stock splits and other events of recapitalization. The Class E warrants
will expire no later than March, 2010.

Class F Warrants

Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase 0.5 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per
share, subject to adjustment for stock splits, reverse stock splits and other events of recapitalization. The Class F
warrants will expire no later than August 2010.

The Company has the right to redeem the Class F warrants at a redemption price of $0.50 per warrant
(subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend on the common stock or the
like) after providing written notice to the Class F warrant holders at any time after the closing price of the
Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $5.60, for twenty consecutive trading days. If the Company calls the
Class F warrants for redemption, they will be exercisable until the close of business of the specified redemption
date. The holders of Class F warrants may satisfy their obligation to pay the aggregate Exercise Price through a
“cashless exercise”, in which event the Company will issue to the holders the number of shares determined by the
“cashless exercise” formula.

Class G Warrants

Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of commeon stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per
share, subject to adjustment for stock splits, reverse stock splits and other events of recapitalization. The Class G
warrants will expire no later than May 2009. The holders of Class G warrants may satisfy their obligation to pay the
aggregate Exercise Price through a “cashless exercise”, in which event the Company will issue to the holders the
number of shares determined by the “cashless exercise™ formula.

Other Warrants

An aggregate of 1,604,766 warrants have been issued to various underwriters for compensation for certain
private and public offerings of the Company’s common stock. The exercise prices of these warrants range from
$1.35 to $5.94 and have expiration dates between 2008 and 2010.

NOTE 13 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal
banking agencies. Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt corrective action regulations
involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items calculated under regulatory
accounting practices, Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators.
Failure to meet capital requirements can result in regulatory action.

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately capitalized,
undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to
represent overall financial condition, If adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered
deposits. If undercapitalized, capital distributions are limited, as is asset growth and expansion, and capital
restoration plans are required. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the most recent regulatory notifications
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.
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SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 13 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS (Continued)

The Bank’s actual and required capital amounts and ratios (in thousands of dollars) at year-end are
presented below.

To Be Well
Capitzlized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
2006
Total Capital to risk weighted assets $61,543  16.33% $30,156 8.0% 837,694 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital to risk weighted assets 58,337 1548 15,078 4.0 22,617 6.0
Tier 1 Capital to average assets 58,337 16.21 14,393 4.0 17,992 5.0
2005
Total Capital to risk weighted asscts $52,270 21.83% $19,152 8.0% $23,940 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital to risk weighted assets 50,000 20.89 9,576 4.0 14,364 6.0
Tier 1 Capital to average assets 50,000 19.63 10,190 4.0 12,738 5.0
The Company’s capital amounts and ratios (in thousands of dollars) at year-end are presented below.
For Capital Adequacy
Actual Purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
2006
Total Capital to risk weighted assets $ 65824 17.46% $ 30,360 8.0%
Tier 1 Capital to risk weighted assets 62,618 16.61 15,080 4.0
Tier 1 Capital to average assets 62,618 17.41 14,386 4.0
For Capital Adequacy
Actual Purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
2005
Total Capital to risk weighted assets £ 55816 23.31% $ 19,160 8.0%
Tier 1 Capital to risk weighted assets 53,546 22.36 9,580 4.0
Tier 1 Capital to average assets 53,546 21.02 10,190 4.0

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Some financial instruments, such as loan commitments, credit lines, letters of credit, and overdraft
protection, are issued to meet customer financing needs. These are agreements to provide credit or to support the
credit of others, as long as conditions established in the contract are met, and usually have expiration dates.
Commitments may expire without being used. Off-balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face amount of
these instruments, although material losses are not anticipated, The same credit policies are used to make such
commitments as are used for loans, including obtaining collateral at exercise of the commitment.

The contractual amount of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk was as follows at year-end.

2006 2008
Commitments to make loans — fixed $ 1,316,781 $ 1,551,812
- variable 69,177,055 81,682,848
Standby Letters of credit 3.927,363 1,658,689

$ 74,421,199 $ 84,893,349

Comrmitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less. Fixed rate loan

commitments have interest rates generally ranging from 5.38% to 14.00% and maturities ranging from one year to
three years.
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SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Employment Agreements: In May 2006, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Parent Company and Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Bank. Under terms of the agreement, the Company agreed to pay a minimum base salary of $275,000 per
year, to grant options, and to provide certain other benefits and compensation. The employment agreement also
included a provision requiring certain payments upon the occurrence of certain events leading to the termination of
employment such as a change in control, death, or disability. The Employment Agreement replaces the former
Employment Agreement dated January 2003.

NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows at year-end:

2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Financial assets
Cash and due from financial institutions $ 7,878,379 § 7,878379 § 6,201,079 § 6,201,079

Federal Funds Sold 48,537,000 48,537,000 21,380,000 21,380,000
Securities available for sale 5,173,796 5,173,976 5,208,159 5,208,159
Securities held to maturity 52,244 379 51,980,571 21,160,886 20,832,067
Loans, net - 350,742,657 350,227,785 210,665,319 209,583,116
Federal Reserve Bank stock 1,749,300 1,749,300 1,257,400 1,257,400
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,289,600 1,289,600 1,328,000 1,328,000
Accrued interest receivable 2,409,283 2,409,283 1,235,797 1,235,797
Financial liabilities
Deposits $ 402,978,192 § 404,234,682 § 193,464,799 § 193,369,177
Repurchase agreements 1,547,273 1,547,273 1,020,710 1,020,710
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 11,000,000 10,899,894 21,000,000 20,805,895
Accrued interest payable 1,333,041 1,333,041 596,814 596,814

The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as follows.

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, short-term borrowings, accrued
interest receivable and payable, demand deposits, short-term debt, and variable rate loans or deposits that reprice
frequently and fully. Security fair values are based on market prices or dealer quotes, and, if no such information is
available, on the rate and term of the security and information about the issuer. For fixed rate loans or deposits and
for variable rate loans or deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits, fair value is based on discounted cash
flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk. Fair vatues for impaired loans are
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values. Fair value of debt is based on current
rates for similar financing. The fair value of off-balance-sheet items is not significant.
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SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 16 —- PARENT CORPORATION ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information of Sun American Bancorp follows.

ASSETS

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in Bank subsidiary

Qther assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

December 31,

2006 2005
$ 5365942 § 3,638,856
80,118,464 56,053,649
124,424 103,666
$ 85,608,830 § 59,796,171
$ 1,094893 § 171,163
84,513,937 59,625,008
$ 85,608,830 § 59,796,171

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Equity in net income of Bank

Less:

Interest expense
Salaries and benefits
Stock-based compensation
Other expense

Net income (loss)

78

Years Ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

$ 4,362,874

184,811
609,628
389,431

$ 3,537,499

10,728
147,622

460,349

$ 134,238

24,835
134,347

203,091

$ 3,179,004

$ 2,918,800

$ (228,035)




SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 16 - PARENT CORPORATION ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities
Net Income (loss) $ 3,179,004 $ 2918800 § (228,035)
Adjustments:
Equity in undistributed income of Bank (4,362,874) (3,537,499) (134,238)
Stock Option Expense 609,628
Change in other assets and other liabilities (81,677) 9,726 115,096
Net cash from operating activities (655,919) (608,973) (247,177)
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in Bank (700,000)  (32,000,000) _ (10,753,337)
Net cash from investing activities (700,000)  (32,000,000)  (10,753,337)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in note payable — 2,000,000 1,000,000
Repayment of note payable — (2,000,000) (1,000,000)
Issuance of preferred shares — 3,095,000

Redemption of preferred shares — (315,000) (2,785,000)
Proceeds from stock issuance 3,083,005 36,398,901 10,937,611

Dividends paid : — (14,361) (123,724)
Net cash from financing activities 3,083,005 36,069,540 11,123,887
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,727,086 3,460,567 123,373
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 3,638,856 178,289 54,816
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 5365942 § 3638856 § 178,289

NOTE 17 - EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The factors used in the earnings (loss) per share computation follow.

2006 2005 2004
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) $ 3,179,004 § 2918800 $ (228,035)
Less: dividends paid on preferred shares — (14,361) (123,724)
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders 3,179,004 2,904,439 § (351,759)
Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic 18,975,862 12,122,945 7,402,509
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 017 § 024 § (0.05)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) $ 3,179,004 $ 2,918,800 § (228,035)
Less: dividends paid on preferred shares — (14,361) (123,724}
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders $ 3,179,004 2,904,439 $ (351,759)
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted 22,578,470 13,604,345 7,402,509
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 014 § 021 3% (0.05)

The dilution of 3,602,608 weighted average shares outstanding in 2006 (1,481,400 weighted average shares
in 2005 and none in 2004) was due to the additional shares of common stock to be issued upon the exercise of
outstanding options and warrants of the Company. Stock options and stock warrants for 1,331,600 and 596,808
shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted eamings per common share for 2006, and stock
warrants for 600,000 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted earnings per common share
for 2005, because they were antidilutive.
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NOTE 18 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Other comprehensive income (loss) components and related taxes were as follows.

2006 2005 2004
Unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale securities $ (30,746) § (184,782) § (27,609)
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains (losses) later recognized in
income — 7,930 (32,664)
Net unrealized gains (losses) (30,746) (176,852} 5,055
Tax effect 11,600 67,400 (1,890)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before minority interest (19,146) (109,452) 3,165
Minority interest in other comprehensive (income) loss of subsidiary 9 10 3)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 3 (19,137 $(109,442) § 3,162

NOTE 19— PURCHASE OF ASSETS AND ASSUMPTION OF SELECTED LIABILITIES OF BEACH
BANK IN 2006

On May 17, 2006, the Company entered into an Asset Acquisition and Assumption Agreement, which was
subsequently amended as of November 17, 2006, pursuant to which the Bank acquired substantially all of the assets,
less $1.0 million in cash and certain other assets, and assurned substantially all of the liabilities of Beach Bank. The
Company issued 3.7 million shares as the acquisition transaction consideration. The transaction was completed on
December 29, 2006,

The exact number of shares of Sun American Bancorp commeon stock issued in the Acquisition Transaction
will be detenmined based vpon the book value of Beach Bank as set forth in the final audited closing balance sheet
(subject to adjustment as described in the Agreement). Such final balance sheet of Beach Bank was submitted to Sun
American Bancorp on February 26, 2007 and was subject to review by Sun American Bancorp. Sun American
Bancorp requested certain adjustments to the final balance sheet of Beach Bank. The adjustments to the final
balance sheet requested by Sun American Bancorp require the consent of the shareholder representative of Beach
Bank, which was not provided. Since a dispute exists with respect to such final balance sheet between Sun American
Bancorp and the Beach Bank shareholder representative, the resolution will be determined pursuant to a dispute
resolution mechanism set forth in the Agreement and the appropriate adjustments made to the consideration
provided in the acquisition transaction. If the adjustments to the acquisition transaction consideration based on the
changes requested by Sun American Bancorp are accepted as a result of the arbitration proceeding, such adjustments
to the final closing balance sheet will result in a reduction in the commeon stock issued. There can be no assurance as
to whether or in what amount adjustments will be made to the final closing balance sheet.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Beach Bank were recorded at their
respective fair values as of December 29, 2006, and two days of operations are included in the 2006 consolidated
statements of income. Based on the ending Beach Bank tangible equity of $8.7 million times a multiple of 2.35, less
adjustments of $1.0 million for excluded assets and $0.2 million for the payment of the directors’ and officers’
liability insurance premium, the net purchase price was $19.5 million, resulting in total intangible assets of
$13.4 million. Of the total intangible assets, $1.1 million was allocated to core deposit intangible, $0.1 million to the
fair value of branch leases, and $12.2 million to goodwill.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 19 - PURCHASE OF ASSETS AND ASSUMPTION OF SELECTED LIABILITIES OF BEACH
BANK IN 2006 (CONTINUED)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as
of the date of acquisition (in thousands of dollars):

Cash and cash equivalents £ 17,949
Securities held to maturity 23,688
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 240
Loans, net 67,966
Fixed assets 888
Goodwill and intangibles 13,383
Other 2,218

Total assets acquired 126,332
Deposits 105,897
Repurchase agreements 802
Other liabilities 154

Total liabilities assumed 106,853
Net assets acquired $ 19479

The following table summarizes selected pro forma financial information but does not include amounts
related to acquisition costs that were incurred to complete implementation of the acquisition.

The following pro forma financial information for 2006 and 2005 presents the consolidated operations of
the Company as if the acquisitions had been made on January 1, 2005. The selected pro forma combined financial
information, while helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of the acquisition under one set of assumptions,
does not reflect the impact of possible revenue enhancements, expense efficiencies and other factors that may result
as a consequence of the acquisition and, accordingly, does not attempt to predict or suggest future results. It also
does not necessarily reflect what the historical results of the combined business would have been had our companies
been combined during the period presented.

2006 2005
Net interest income 19,671 16,576
Net income $ 3411y $ 884y
Basic net income per common share $ 015 $ 006
Diluted net income per common share $ 013 $§ 005

(1) Net income as reported for Sun American Bancorp ($3,179), net loss for Beach Bank (51,032), purchase
accounting adjustments, net of tax ($110), and additional recognition of deferred tax assets ($1,154) given that
Beach Bank’s net loss in 2005 would defer the reatization of some NOL carryforwards to 2006.

(2) Net income as reported for Sun American Bancorp ($2,919), net loss for Beach Bank ($2,147), and purchase
accounting adjustments {$112). No income taxes are recorded as a result of decreasing the valuation allowance
for the realizable portion of deferred tax assets associated with NOL carryforwards.
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SUN AMERICAN BANCORP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 20 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

2006
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

2005
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

2004
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

Earnings (loss)

Per Share

Interest Net Interest Net Income Fully
Income Income (Loss) Basic Diluted

§ 5,444,960 $ 3,649,976 $ 272,243 § 0.01 $ 001
5,994,640 3,764,391 581,773 0.03 0.03
6,555,992 4,105,772 490,751 0.03 0.02
7,104,020 3,682,263 1,834,237y  0.10 0.08

$ 3,206,801 $ 2,303,281 $ 601,958 0.07 $ 006
3,724,247 2,607,836 513,637 0.05 0.05
4,305,492 2,956,108 780,972 0.06 0.05
4,827,200 3,436,189 1,022,233 0.06 0.05

$ 1,565,332 $ 1,082,459 3 (566,583) $(0.10) % (0.10)
2,059,873 1,483,586 (55,561) (0.01) (0.01)
2,378,823 1,817,218 158,684 0.00 (0.00)
2,844,562 2,136,174 235,425 0.03 0.03

(1} Inaccordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, the Company recognized the remaining portion of our
deferred tax assets given our assessment and expectation of generating sufficient future taxable income. The valuation
reserve was reduced by $2.2 million but was offset by $1.0 miliion of tax expense for a net tax provision benefit of
$1.2 million. This compares to nil for the fourth quarter of 2005 and full year 2005.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Stockholders and Board of Directors
Beach Bank:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Beach Bank (the “Bank™) as of December 28, 2006
and December 31, 2005, and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for
the period ended December 28, 2006 and the year ended December 31, 2005. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Bank's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Beach Bank as of December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the peried ended December 28, 2006 and the year ended December 31, 2005, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note | to the financial statements, on May 17, 2006, the Bank entered into an asset
acquisition and assumption agreement (the “Agreement”} with a bank (the “Acquiring Bank™), wherein the
Acquiring Bank was to acquire substantially all of the assets and assume substantially all of the liabilities of the
Bank, subject to some conditions set forth in the Agreement. On December 29, 2006, the Bank was sold and was
dissolved.

As discussed in Note | to the financial statements, due to the results of a regulatory examination as of
October 5, 2004, the Bank consented to enter into an Order to Cease and Desist (the “Order”) as proposed by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, The Order was settled in connection with the execution of the Agreement
and dissolution of the Bank effective December 29, 2006.

/st MORRISON, BROWN, ARGIZ & FARRA, LLP

Miami, Florida
February 26, 2007
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ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing deposits with banks
Federal funds sold

BEACH BANK
BALANCE SHEETS

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Securities available for sale

Securities held to maturity

Loans, net

Premises and equipment, net

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost
Accrued interest receivable

Due from related party

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

DEPOSITS:
Noninterest-bearing demand accounts

Savings, NOW and money-market accounts

Time deposits
TOTAL DEPOSITS

Federal funds purchased

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 10)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock $1 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized, 6,039,422 shares
issued and outstanding as of December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

December 28, December 31,
2006 2005
$ 2,011,489 § 1,975,777
147,228 161,277
17,038,000 —
19,196,717 2,137,054
— 507,400
24,428,936 33,153,043
68,482,742 81,397,239
1,130,173 1,511,106
240,500 242,000
536,983 662,595
1,206,195 —
1,267,818 409,538
$116,490,064 $120,019,975
$ 22,553,922 § 21,060,777
17,063,122 26,599,490
67,196,730 53,224,967
106,813,774 100,885,234
— 2,600,000
747,701 6,356,515
161,378 72,151
74,653 374,516
107,797,506 110,288,416
6,039,422 6,039,422
7,051,910 7,051,910
(4,398,774) (3,367,173)
— 7,400
8,692,558 9,731,559
$116,490,064 $120,019,975

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BEACH BANK
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 28, 2006
AND THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

INTEREST INCOME:
Loans
Securities
Federal funds sold
Other

TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Deposits
Securitics sold under agreements to repurchase
Federal funds purchased

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE
NET INTEREST INCOME
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NONINTEREST INCOME:
Deposit fees and service charges
Overdraft and uncollected fund fees
Other

TOTAL NONINTEREST INCOME

NONINTEREST EXPENSES:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy
Professional services
Advertising
Data processing
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Other

TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSES

NET LOSS

December 28,
2006

December 31,
2005

$ 5,501,225 $ 5,535,651
950,631 1,159,543
773,843 218,240

17,092 15,108
7,242,791 6,928,542
3,081,735 1,850,775

39,147 66,570

3,297 63,949
3,124,179 1,981,294
4,118,612 4,947,248
— 325,241
4,118,612 4,622,007
228,806 554,312
172,004 11,593
32,030 64,865
432,840 630,770
2,457276 2,590,571
986,836 1,074,109
848,710 1,958,865
58,629 64,244
252,970 276,329
— 10,790
978,632 1,424,520
5,583,053 _ 7.399,428

$ (1,031,601) $(2,146,651)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BALANCES at
December 31, 2004

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss

Change in net unrealized
gain on securities available
for sale

Total comprehensive loss

Proceeds from issuance of
643,588 common shares,
net of issuance cost
$30,269

BALANCES at
December 31, 2005

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss

Change in net unrealized
gain on securities available
for sale

Total comprehensive loss

BALANCES at
December 28, 2006

BEACH BANK
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 28, 2006

AND THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Patd-In Accumulated Comprehensive
Stock Capital Deficit Income Total

$ 5395834 § 5,795,002 § (1,220,522) % 29,600 % 9,999,914
— — {2,146,651) — (2,146,651)
— — — (22,200) (22,200)
(2,168,851)
643,588 1,256,908 — — 1,900,496
6,039,422 7,051,910 (3,367,173) 7,400 9,731,559
— — (1,031,601) — (1,031,601}
— —_ — (7,400) (7,400)
(1,039,001)
$ 6,039,422 § 7,051910 $ (4,398,774) % — § 8,692,558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BEACH BANK
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 28, 2006
AND THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

December 28, December 31,
2006 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss §(1,031,601) $(2,146,651)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 374,869 314,183
Provision for loan losses — 325,241
(Accretion of discounts) amortization of premiums on

securities held to maturity (22,926) 15,333
Loss on sale of fixed assets — 10,790
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 125,612 (125,524)
Increase in due from related party (1,206,195) —
(Increase) decrease in other assets (858,280) 626,292
Increase in accrued interest payable 89,227 25,561
Decrease in other liabilities (299,863) (14,742)

NET CASH USED IN QPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,829,157) (969,517)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of securities held to maturity - (8,000,000)
Proceeds from calls of securities available for sale 500,000 —
Proceeds from calls and paydowns of securities held to maturity 8,747,033 867,291
Net decrease in loans 12,914,497 7,547,046
Net disposals (purchases) of premises and equipment 6,064 (554,110)
Decrease in Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,500 304,200
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 22,169,094 164,427

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in deposits 5,928,540 11,682,345
Decrease in federal funds purchased (2,600,000)  (3,300,000)
Decrease in securities sold under agreements to repurchase (5,608,814) (1,294 590)
Decrease in Federal Home Loan Bank advance — (7,500,000)
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock — 1,900,496

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2,280,274) 1,488,251

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 17,059,663 683,161

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 2,137,054 1,453,893

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD 319,196,717 $ 2,137,054

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 3,034,952 § 1,955,733

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1. - ORGANIZATION

Nature of Operations

Beach Bank (the “Bank”) is a state-chartered commercial bank which provides a variety of financial
products and services through its banking office in Miami Beach, Florida. The Bank’s deposit accounts are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™).

On October 5, 2004, the Bank consented to enter into an Order to Cease and Desist (the "Order”) as
proposed by the FDIC. The FDIC found during their examination of the Bank that the Bank had deficiencies in
violation of statutory requirements in the arcas of policies, procedures, Enhanced Due Diligence, Customer
Identification Programs, Know Your Customer documentation, Currency Transaction Reporting, Suspicious
Activity Reporting, and account monitoring.

The Order required the Bank, among other things, to formulate a three year written strategic plan, prepare
and submit to the FDIC a comprehensive budget and earnings forecast, to have and retain qualified management, to
maintain a Tier [ Leverage Capital ratio of not less than 7%, a Tier I Risk Based Capital Ratio of not less than 10%
and a Total Risk Based Capital Ratio of at least 12%, to charge off certain classified assets, to maintain an adequate
allowance for loan losses, to reduce classified assets and to adopt sound lending and collection policies. According
to the Bank’s management, the requirements of the Order are the result of findings from a May 10, 2004
examination by the FDIC.

On May 17, 2006, the Bank entered into an asset acquisition and assumption agreement (the “Agreement”)
with a bank (the “Acquiring Bank”), wherein the Acquiring Bank was to acquire substantially all of the assets and
assume substantially all of the liabilities of the Bank, subject to some conditions set forth in the Agreement. Per the
Agreement, the Bank was to establish a liquidating trust (the “Liquidating Trust™) on or prior to the transaction
closing date of December 29, 2006, in connection with the transaction. To the extent that the Bank is liquidated or
otherwise cease to exist, the Liquidating Trust shall have all the rights and assume all the obligations of the Bank
under the Agreement. The Bank was liquidated and dissolved effective December 29, 2006.

As stipulated in the Agreement, the Bank established the Liquidating Trust in the amount of $1,000,000 for
certain expenses that would be the responsibility of the Liquidating Trust, as defined in the Agreement. The Bank
transferred $1,000,000, as an advance of the acquisition price, to the Liquidating Trust and is included in other
assets in the accompanying balance sheet at December 28, 2006,

On December 27, 2006, the FDIC issued a Stipulation and Consent to the Issuance of an Order to Pay
(“Order to Pay™) in which the Bank and the Liquidating Trust consented and agreed to the issuance of an Order to
Pay by the FDIC and agreed to pay a civil money penalty in the amount of $800,000. The Liquidating Trust agreed
to assume the obligation and liability for the payment of the penalty assessment in the amount of $800,000, as
stipulated in the Order to Pay.

NOTE 2. — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and financial reporting policies of the Bank conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and to general practices within the banking industry.

The following is a description of the more significant accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Bank:

Uses of Estimates

_ In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, material estimate that is particularly susceptible to
significant change in the near term relates to the determination of the allowance for loan losses.
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NOTE 2. — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if
counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to be of no value.
Concentrations of credit risk (whether on or off-balance sheet) arising from financial instruments exist in relation to
certain groups of customers. A group concentration arises when a number of counterparties have similar economic
characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic or other conditions. The Bank does not have a significant exposure to any individual customer or

counterparty.

Most of the Bank’s business activity is with customers located within its primary market area, which
generally includes Miami-Dade County, Florida. This market area does not depend heavily on any particular
industry.

At various times during the year, the Bank has maintained deposits with other financial institutions in
excess of amounts received. The exposure to the Bank from these transactions is solely dependent upon daily
balances and the financial strength of the respective institution.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, balances due from
banks, interest-bearing deposits with banks, and federal funds sold all of which mature within ninety days.

The Bank is required to maintain cash reserves in the form of vault cash or in noninterest-earning accounts
with the Federal Reserve Bank or other qualified banks, These reserve requirements at December 28, 2006 and
December 31, 2005 were approximately $350,000 and $560,000, respectively.

Securities

The Bank classifies its securities as either held to maturity or available for sale. Held to maturity securities
are those which the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity and are reported at amortized cost.
Available for sale securities consist of securities not classified as trading securities or as held to maturity securities.
Unrealized holding gains and losses, on available for sale securities, are excluded from earnings and reported in
other comprehensive income on the balance sheet. Gains and losses on the sale of available for sale securities are
recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific-identification method. Purchase premiums and
discounts on securities available for sale and held to maturity are recognized in interest income using the interest
method over the period to maturity.

A decline in the market value of any available for sale or held to maturity security below cost that is
deemed to be other-than-temporary results in a reduction in carrying amount to fair value. The impairment is
charged to earnings and a new cost basis for the security is established. To determine whether an impairment is
other-than-temporary, the Bank considers whether it has the ability and intent to hold the investment until a market
price recovery and considers whether evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs
evidence to the contrary. Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the
severity and duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent to year-end, and forecasted performance of the
investee.

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-
off are reported at their outstanding principal adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any
deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred
and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan yield using the interest method.
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NOTE 2. — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is ninety days delinquent unless the loan
is well collateralized and in process of collection. In all cases, loans are placed on non-accrual status or are charged-
off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged-off is reversed
against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until
qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual when all the principal and interest amounts
contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for
loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon
management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and
volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of
any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This valuation is inherently subjective as it requires
estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that
are classified as either doubtful, substandard or special mention. For such loans that are also classified as impaired, -
an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value) of the impaired loan is lower than
the carrying value of that loan. The generat component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss
experience adjusted for qualitative factors.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable the Bank will
be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due. Factors considered by management in
determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled
principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment
shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and
payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan
and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record,
and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-
loan basis for commercial and commercial real estate loans by either the present value or expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if
the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Bank does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment
disclosures.

Premises and Equipment

Leaschold improvements and furniture and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed using both the straight-line method and accelerated
methods over the estimated lives of the related assets, which ranges from 5 to 20 years. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the remaining term of the applicable leases or their useful lives, which ever is shorter.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; improvements and betterments are capitalized.
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from
the accounts and any resulting gains or losses are credited or charged to income.
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NOTE 2. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income Taxes

The stockholders of the Bank have elected for the Bank to be treated as an 8-Corporation. For federal and
state income tax purposes all items of income and expense flow through to its stockholders, therefore, no provision
for income taxes has been reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 144, long-lived assets,
such as premises and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of
the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of
the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections
of the balance sheet.

Interest Rate Risk

The Bank’s performance is dependent to a large extent on its net interest income, which is the difference
between income on interest-earning assets and its interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities. The Bank, like most
financial institutions, is affected by changes in general interest rate levels and by other economic factors beyond its
control. Interest rate risk arises from mismatches between the dollar amount of repricing or maturing assets and
liabilities (the interest rate sensitivity gap), and more liabilitics repricing or maturing than assets over a given time
frame is considered liability-sensitive, or a negative gap. An asset-sensitive position will generally enhance earnings
in a rising interest rate environment and will negatively impact earnings in a falling interest rate environment, while
a liability-sensitive position will generally enhance earnings in a falling interest rate environment and negatively
impact earnings in a rising interest rate environment. Fluctuations in interest rates are not predictable or controllable.
The Bank has attempted to structure its asset and liability management strategies to mitigate the impact of net
interest income resulting from changes in market interest rates.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123 (revised 2004}, Share-Based Payment. Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R) requires that the compensation cost relating to share-based
payment transactions be recognized in financial statements. That cost will be measured based on the fair value of the
equity or liability instruments issued. SFAS No. 123(R) covers a wide range of share-based compensation
arrangements including stock options, restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights,
and employee share purchase plans. SFAS No. 123(R) is a replacement of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and its related interpretive guidance. The Statement requires entitics to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for stock options based on the grant-date fair value of the award, and to
recognize the cost over the period the employee is required to provide services for the award. SFAS No. 123(R)
permits entities to use any option-pricing model that meets the fair value objective in the Statement.

The Bank elected to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 under the modified prospective method.
Compensation cost has been measured using the fair value of an award on the grant dates and is recognized over the
service period, which is usually the vesting period. Compensation cost related to the non-vested portion of awards
outstanding as of that date was based on the grant-date fair value of those awards as calculated under the original
provistons of SFAS No. 123; that is, the Bank was not required to re-measure the grant-date fair value estimate of
ithe unvested portion of awards granted prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R).
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The Bank had applied APB Opinion No. 25 and related Interpretations, in accounting for stock option plan
prior to January 1, 2006. Under APB Opinion No. 25, stock options issued under the Bank’s stock option plan have
no intrinsic value at the grant date, and therefore, no compensation cost is recognized for them.

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss if the Bank had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) to stock-based employec compensation as of December 31, 2005.

2005
Net loss, as reported $ (2,146,651)

Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under the
fair value based method for all awards (23,006)

Pro forma net loss $ !2, 169,657)

During 2006 and 2005, there were no stock options granted.

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in
net earnings. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for
sale securities are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with
net earnings, are components of comprehensive income.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Errors Corrections. SFAS
No. 154 establishes, unless impracticable, retrospective application as the required method for reporting a change in
accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific to a newly adopted accounting
principle. This statement was effective for the Bank for all accounting changes and any error corrections occurting
afier January 1, 2006. The adoption of this staterent did not have a significant effect on the Bank’s financial
statements.

Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments

In February 2006, the FASB published SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial
Instruments, which amends SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and
SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities. The
statement resolves issues addressed in SFAS No. 133 Implementation Issue No. D1, Application of Statement 133 to
Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets,

SFAS No. 155 permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instruments that contains an
embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation and clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-
only strips are not subject to SFAS No. 133 requirements. SFAS No. 155 also establishes a requirement to evaluate
interests in securitized financial assets in order to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are
hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation, clarifies that concentrations
of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives and amends SFAS No. 140 to eliminate the
prohibition on a QSPE from holding a derivative financial instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than
another derivative financial instrument. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued
after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The fair value election may
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also be applied upon adoption of SFAS No. 155 for hybrid financial instruments that had been bifurcated under
paragraph 12 of SFAS No. 133 prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 155.

On January 1, 2006, the Bank elected to early adopt, primarily on a prospective basis, SFAS No. 155,
Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments. In accordance with this standard, hybrid financial instruments
— such as structured notes containing embedded derivatives that otherwise would require bifurcation, as well as
interest-only instruments — may be accounted for at fair value, with the change recorded in current earnings. The
impact of adopting this standard was not material.

Fair Value Measurement

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement. SFAS No. 157 provides
enhanced guidance for measuring fair value. Under the standard, fair value refers to the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the market in
which the entity transacts. The standard clarifies that fair value should be based on assumptions market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 with early adoption permitted. Management believes the adoption of this Statement will not
have a material effect on the Bank’s financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 20035 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2006
presentation.

NOTE 3. — SECURITIES

The amortized cost, gross unrealized holding gains and losses, and fair values of securities available for
sale and securities held to maturity as of December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005 were as follows. There were no
securities available for sale as of December 28, 2006.

Securities Available for Sale

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Lossey Value
December 31, 2005
Other Security $  S00,000 % 7400 % — $ 507,400
Securities Held to Maturity
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
December 28, 2006
U.S. Government agencies $ 21987462 § — $ (669,734) $21,317,728
Mortgage-backed securities 1,641,474 66 (54,021) 1,587,519
Other securities 800,000 — (17,931) 782,069
Total $ 24428936 § 66 $ (741,686) 323,687,316

94




BEACH BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 28, 2006 AND DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE 3. — SECURITIES (Continued)

Securities Held to Maturity
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Falr
Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31, 2005
U.S. Government agencies $ 29964443 § — § (743,393} $29,221,050
Mortgage-backed securities 1,988,600 56 (58,468) 1,930,188
Other securities 1,200,000 — (136,040) 1,063,960

Total $ 33,153,043 $ 56 $ (937,901) $32,215,198

Expected maturities of some securities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers have the
right to call or prepay obligations with or without call prepayment penalties. The amortized cost and estimated fair
values of securities held to maturity at December 28, 2006, by contractual maturity, are as follows:

Held to Maturity
Amortized Fair
Cost Vallue
Due in one year or less $ 1,000,000 $ 984,897
Due after one year through five years 20,752,638 20,116,697
Due after five years through ten years 2,676,298 2,585,722
Total $ 24428936 § 23,687316

There were no securities available for sale or held to maturity sold during 2006 and 2005.

Securities with an amortized cost of $5,994,624 and $9,954,101 and fair value of $5,851,460 and
$9,687,784 at December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, were pledged as collateral to secure
securities sold under agreements to repurchase.

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized holding losses at December 28, 2006, aggregated
by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been ina continuous loss position, are as
follows:

Twelve Months or More Total
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Holding Fair Holding

Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government agencies $ 21,317,728  $(669,734) §$ 21,317,728  § (669,734)
Mortgage-backed securities ) 1,558,622 (54,021) 1,558,622 (54,021)
Other securities 782,069 (17,931) 782,069 (17,931)
Total $23,658419 $(741,686) § 23,658,419  §(741,686)

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and
more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the
tength of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than the cost, (2) the financial condition and near-
term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.
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At December 28, 2006, several U.S. government agency securitics and one mortgage-backed security had
unrealized losses over twelve months of approximately $724,000. Such securities represent approximately 97% of
the total investments in marketable equity securities. Management attributes the decline in the fair value to changes
in interest rates and not credit quality, and because the Bank has the ability and intent to hold these investments until
market price recovery or maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.

At December 28, 2006, other securities included corporate bonds which had unrealized holding losses for
more than twelve months, Management attributes the decline in the fair value to changes in interest rates and not
credit quality, and because the Bank has the abiiity and intent to hold these investment until market price recovery or
maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.

NOTE 4. — LOANS, NET

The components of the loan portfolio are as follows at December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005:

2006 2005

Commercial real estate $ 33,299,983 ¥ 35,060,468
Commercial 11,391,646 14,833,707
Residential real estate 22,626,518 30,107,631
Construction 1,253,529 1,191,940
Consumer 1,047,045 1,331,385
Other 56,824 146,636
Total loans 69,675,545 82,671,767
Less:

Allowance for loan losses {1,055,894) (1,103,723)
Net deferred loan fees {136,909) (170,805)

Loans, net

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is summarized as follows:

$ 68,482,742

§ 81,397,239

December 28, December 31,
2006 2005
Balance at beginning of period $ 1,103,723 § 846,744
Provision for loan losses —_ 325,241
Charge-offs {47,829) {68,262)
3 1,055,894 § 1,103,723

Balance at end of period

As of December 28, 2006, there were no loans on which the accrual of interest had been discontinued and
approximately $651,000 at December 31, 2005, Interest income attributable to non-accrual loans amounted to
£71,972 at December 31, 2005, Additional interest income on these loans for the year ended December 31, 2005
would have been approximately $30,000 had these loans performed in accordance with their original terms.

The recorded investment in loans that are considered to be impaired totaled approximately $2,487,000 and
$1,964,000, at December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, of which none were on non-accrual basis
as of December 28, 2006 and approximately $651,000 were on non-accrual basis as of December 31, 2005. The
related allowance for these impaired loans was approximately $503,000 and $311,000 at December 28, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, respectively. The average recorded investment in impaired loans during the period ended
December 28, 2006 and the year ended December 31, 2005 was approximately $2,776,000 and $2,445,000,

respectively.
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NOTE 5. — PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Premises and equipment, net, are summarized as follows:

December 28, December 31,
2006 2005
Fumiture and equipment $ 1,309,389 § 1,388,558
Leasehold improvements 1,234,908 1,220,344
2,544,297 2,608,902
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization ‘ 1,414,124 1,097,796

$ 1,130,173 § 1,511,106

Depreciation and amortization of furniture and equipment, net, amounted to $374,869 and $314,183 for the
period ended December 28, 2006 and the year ended December 31, 2005, respectively.
NOTE 6. — DEPOSITS

Time deposits, issued in denominations of $100,000 or more, amounted to $48,952,626 and $39,856,926 at
December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.

The scheduled maturities of time deposits at December 28, 2006 are as follows:

$65,176,484
1,735,739
284,507

$67.196730

NOTE 7. — FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED

As of December 28, 2006, the Bank did not have any federal funds purchased. The following table sets
forth certain information pertaining to federal funds purchased as of December 31, 2005:

December 31,
2005
Federal Funds Purchased
Balances outstanding at end of year $ 2,600,000
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the year $ 2,600,000
Average balance outstanding during the year $ 2,157,033
Weighted average interest rate for the year 2.96%
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NOTE 8. — SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

The following table sets forth certain information pertaining to securities sold under agreements to
repurchase:

December 28, December 31,

2006 2005
Balances outstanding at end of pertod $ 747701 § 6,356,515
Carrying value of securities pledged for repurchase agreements (fair value
approximatety $5,851,000 and 9,688,000 for 2006 and 2005, respectively) $ 5,994,624 § 9,954,101

NOTE 9. — STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Bank adopted a stock option plan (the “Plan™) for its directors, officers and employees. Under this
plan, the total number of shares which may be issued is 1,027,166. The option exercise price shall not be less than
the fair market value at the date of grant. The term of the options cannot exceed ten years and the options vest
ratably over a three-year period. The options have terms of 10 years. At December 28, 2006 and December 31,
2005, 342,166 shares remained available for grant. Effective December 29, 2006, the Plan was terminated in
connection with the dissolution of the Bank.

A summary of stock options is as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual Apggregate
Number of Exercise Terms Intrinsic
Options Price (Years) Value
Balance at December 31, 2004 685000 $ 2.06
Options granted — —
Balance at December 31, 2005 685,000 § 2.06
Cptions granted — —
Balance at December 28, 2006 685,000 § 206 % 422 § —
Exercisable at December 28, 2006 602,500 $ 200 % 375 % —

NOTE 10. —- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

The Bank is involved in litigation arising from transactions in the ordinary course of business. Management
believes that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from transactions in the ordinary course of business will not have
a material ¢ffect on the financial position or results of operations of the Bank.

Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Bank is a party to credit-related financial instraments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course
of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend
credit, unfunded commitments under lines of credit and standby letters of credit. Such commitments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheets.
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The Bank’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these commitments. The
Bank follows the same policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. The commitments for equity lines of credit may expire without being
drawn upon, Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The
amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Bank, is based on management’s credit evaluation of
the customer.

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft protection agreements are
commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers, These lines of credit are uncollateralized
and usually do not contain a specified maturity date and may not be drawn upon to the total extent to which the
Bank is committed.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance ofa
customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing
arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one year. The credit risk involved
in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Bank
generally holds collateral supporting those commitments, if deemed necessary.

The following off-balance-sheet instruments were outstanding whose contract amounts represent credit

risk:
December 28, December 28,
2006 2005
Commitments to extend credit $ — & 580,000
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit $ — § 13,985,000
Standby letters of credit $ 1282000 § 1,054,000

Operating Leases

The Bank leases its facilities under noncancelable leases expiring through 2010. The leases are subject to
annual rent increases. Rent expense for the period ended December 28, 2006 and the year ended December 31, 2005
was $375,836 and $505,800, respectively. In accordance with the Agreement (NOTE 1) all except for one lease,
expiring in February 2007, was assumed by the Acquiring Bank. The future minimum payments on this lease at
December 28, 2006 is approximately $13,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007.

An irrevocable standby letter of credit has been issued by Independent Bankers Bank to the Bank in order
to secure the lease of the branch premises. As of December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the balance of the
irrevocable standby letter of credit was $100,000 and $125,000, respectively.

NOTE 11. — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing
parties, other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However,
in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Bank’s various financial instruments. In cases where
quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates, using present value or other valuation
techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and
estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement
of the instrument. Certain financial instruments and all nonfinancial instruments are excluded from these disclosure
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 28, 2006 AND DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE 11. — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented may not necessarily represent the underlying
fair value of the Bank. The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair values of
financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For these short-term instruments, the carrying amount approximates fair value.

Securities

Fair values for securities, excluding Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) stock, are based on quoted market
prices. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable
instruments. The carrying value of FHLB stock approximates fair value, based on the redemption provisions of the
FHLB.

Loans

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values are
based on carrying values. Fair values for fixed-rate mortgage (e.g. one-to-four family residential), commercial real
estate and commercial loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being
offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values for nonperforming loans are
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values, where applicable.

Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable

The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivables and payables approximate fair value due to their short
term maturities.
Deposits

The fair values disclosed for demand, NOW, money-market and savings deposits are, by definition, equal
to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts). Fair values for fixed-rate
time deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being
offered on time deposits to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities of time depaosits.

Short-Term Borrowings

The carrying amounts of federal funds and borrowings under repurchase agreements approximate their fair
values,

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments

Fair values for off-balance sheet lending commitments are based on fees currently charged to enter into
similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit
standing. The estimated fair values for off-balance-sheet stand by letters of credit are considered nominal.
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NOTE 11. — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

At December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the estimated fair values and carrying amounts of the
Bank’s financial instruments are approximately as follows:

Carrying Fair
Amount Value
December 28, 2006
Financial assets:
Cash and equivalents $ 19,197,000 § 19,197,000
Securities held to maturity 24,429,000 23,687,000
Loan, net 68,483,000 68,439,000
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 241,000 241,000
Accrued interest receivable 537,000 537,000
Due from related party 1,206,000 1,206,000
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 106,814,000 105,413,000
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 748,000 748,000
Accrued interest payable 161,000 161,000
Off-balance sheet — —
Carrylng Fair
Amount Value
December 31, 2005
Financial assets:
Cash and equivalents $ 2,137,000 § 2,137,000
Securities available for sale 507,000 507,000
Securities held to maturity 33,153,000 32,215,000
Loan, net 81,397,000 80,512,000
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 242,000 242,000
Accrued interest receivable 663,000 663,000
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 100,885,000 99,684,000
Federal funds purchased 2,600,000 2,600,000
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 6,357,000 6,357,000
Accrued interest payable 72,000 72,000

Off-balance sheet —_ —

NOTE 12. — REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is limited in the amount of cash dividends that may be paid. The amount of cash dividends that
may be paid is based on the Bank’s net earnings of the current year combined with the Bank’s retained earnings of
the preceding two years, as defined by state banking regulations. However, for any dividend declaration, the Bank
must consider additional factors such as the amount of current pertod net earnings, asset quality, capital adequacy
and economiic conditions. It is likely that these factors would further limit the amount of dividend which the Bank
could declare. In addition, bank regulators have the authority to prohibit banks from paying dividends if they deem
such payment to be an unsafe or unsound practice.
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NOTE 12. - REGULATORY MATTERS (Continued)

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the regulatory authorities.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirernents can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaking, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial statements.
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classifications are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations)
to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier | capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management
believes, as of December 31, 2005, that the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it was subject.

As of December 28, 2006, the most recent notification from Regulatory Authorities categorized the Bank as
adequately capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action provisions of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation Rules and Regulations. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must
maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following table.
The Bank was liquidated and dissolved effective December 29, 2006 (NOTE 1), therefore the Bank was no longer
required to maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and percentages are also presented in the table (§ in thousands) as of
December 31, 2005:

Minimum
Minimum to be Well Established
Capitalized Under by the FDIC
Minimum Capital Prompt Corrective in Accordance
Actaal Reguirement Action Provisions with Order
Amount Yo Amount _%  Amount Y Amount %
Total Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets 10,740 13.35% $£6,435 8.00% $8,044 10.00% $9,652 12.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets 9,724 12,09 3,217 4.00 4,826 6.00 8,044 10.00
Tier 1 Capital to
Average Assets 9,724 8.25 3,538 3.00 5,896 5.00 8,255 7.00

NOTE 13. — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank accepts deposits from and makes loans to principal officers
and directors and their affiliates. The loans are on substantially the same terms, including interest rate and collateral
requirements, as those prevailing at the time of the loan origination for comparabte transactions with nonaffiliated
persons. As of December 28, 2006 and December 31, 2005 there were no related party loans outstanding. As of
December 28, 2006 and Decermber 31, 2005, there were $6,603,562 and $7,964,579, respectively, in deposits held
by related parties.

During the period ended December 28, 2006, the Bank paid approximately $406,000 of expenses that were
the responsibility of the Liquidating Trust and are recorded as amounts due from related party in the accompanying
balance sheet as of December 28, 2006.

On December 27, 2006, the Bank paid the civil money penalty in the amount of $800,000 on behaif of the
Liquidating Trust (NOTE 1) and is recorded as amount due from related party in the accompanying balance sheet as
of December 28, 2006.

102




BEACH BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 28, 2006 AND DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE 14. — PROFIT SHARING PLAN

The Bank sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan which is available to all employees electing to participate
after meeting certain length of service requirements. The Bank’s contributions to the profit sharing plan are
discretionary and are determined annually. No contributions were made for the period ended December 28, 2006
and the year ended December 31, 2005. Effective December 29, 2006, the 401(k) profit sharing plan is in the
process of being terminated in connection with the dissolution of the Bank.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors and Sharcholders
Independent Community Bank
Tequesta, Florida

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Independent Community Bank as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the related statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Independent Community Bank as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

/s/ CROWE CHIZEK AND COMPANY LLC
CROWE CHIZEK AND COMPANY LLC

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 26, 2007
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INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANK
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2006 and 2005
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2006 2005
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 13,089 § 25345
Federal funds sold — 1,449
Cash and cash equivalents 13,089 26,794
Securities available for sale 9,831 8,418
Securities held to maturity 2,000 2,000
Loans, net 109,378 107,597
Accrued interest receivable 634 501
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 788 574
Premises and equipment, net 293 311
Other assets 513 206
$ 136,526 § 146,401
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing demand $ 15800 §% 22,248
Savings, NOW and money market 65,057 94,418
Time 27,814 7,376
Total deposits 108,671 124,042
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 4,092 2,929
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 9,000 7,000
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 243 262
Total liabilities 122,006 134,233
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, $3 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized;

1,090,473 and 1,069,087 shares issued and outstanding 5,452 5,367
Additional paid-in capital 4,955 4,762
Retained earnings 4,236 2,255
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (123) (216)

Total shareholders’ equity 14,520 12,168
$ 136,526 § 146,401

See accompanying notes

106




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANK
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Interest income
Loans, including fees
Securities
Federal funds sold and other

Interest expense
Deposits
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements
Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other

Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits
QOccupancy and equipment
Professional fees

Data processing
Other

Income before taxes

Income taxes

Net income

Sec accompanying notes
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2006 2005
$ 8782 $ 6,797
476 441
356 279
9,614 7,517
3,258 2,127
112 71
368 185
3,738 2,383
5,876 5,134
— 645
5,876 4,489
78 72
105 107
183 179
1,688 1,274
452 388
126 139
181 135
504 421
2,951 2,357
3,108 2,311
1,127 909
$ 1981 § 1,402




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANK

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at January 1, 2005

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Change in unrealized loss on
securities available for sale,
net of tax effect
Comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options,
including tax benefit of $4

Balance at December 31, 2005

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Change in unrealized loss on
securities available for sale,
net of tax effect
Comprehensive income

Issuance of common stock in
lieu of directors’ fees

Exercise of stock options,
including tax benefit of $92

Balance at December 31, 2006

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Patd-In Retained Comprehensive

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
1,069,087 § 5345 § 4736 § 853 § (77 $ 10,857
1,402 1,402
(139) (139)

1,263

4,398 22 26 48
1,073,485 5,367 4,762 2,255 (216) 12,168
1,981 1,981

93 93

2,074

3,198 16 32 48
13,790 69 161 230
1,090473 § 5452 § 4955 § 4236 § (123) $ 14,520

See accompanying notes
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INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANK
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 1,981 § 1,402
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 117 110
Provision for loan losses — 645
Net amortization of securities available for sale 15 58
[ssuance of common stock in lieu of directors’ fees 48 —
Changge in:
Deferred income taxes 2 188
Accrued interest receivable and other assets (498) 51
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities {19 140
Net cash from operating activities 1,646 2,594
Cash flows from investing activities
Securities available for sale:
Purchases (1,996) —
Principal repayments, calls and maturities 717 2,715
Net increase in loans (1,781) (28,665)
Net change in Federal Home Loan Bank stock (214) (292)
Purchase of premises and equipment, net (99) (152)
Net cash from investing activities (3,373) (26,394)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposits (15,371) 33,816
Net change in federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 1,163 166
Net change in short-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances 7,000 1,000
Proceeds from long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances — 5,000
Repayment of long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances (5,000) (2,000)
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options, including tax benefit in 2006 230 44
Net cash from financing activities (11,978) 38,026
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (13,705) 14,226
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 26,794 12,568
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 13,080 $ 26,794
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 3683 § 2296
Income taxes paid 1,380 475

See accompanying notes
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INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006 and 2005
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations: Independent Community Bank (the “Bank”) is a state-chartered commercial bank
with one banking office located in Tequesta, Florida. Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, and term
certificate accounts, and its primary lending products are residential mortgage, commercial, and installment loans,
Substantially all loans are secured by specific items of collateral including business assets, consumer assets, and
commercial and residential real estate. Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from cash flow from operations
of businesses. There are no significant concentrations of loans to any one industry or customer; however, the
customers’ ability to repay their loans is dependent on the real estate and general economic conditions in the Bank’s
market area.

Use of Estimates: To prepare financial statetnents in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, management makes estimates and assumptions based on available
information. These estimates and assumptions affect amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures
provided, and actual results could differ. The allowance for loan losses is particularly subject to change.

Cash Flow Reporting: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits with other financial
institutions under 90 days. Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transactions.

Securities: Debt securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when
management has the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Debt securities are classified as available
for sale when they might be sold before maturity. Equity securitics with readily determinable fair values are
classified as available for sale. Securities available for sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains
and losses reported in other comprehensive income. Federal Home Loan Bank stock is carried at cost.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Premiums and discounts on
securities are arnortized on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments. Gains and losses on sales are
recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific identification method.

Declines in the fair value of securities below their cost that are other than temporary are reflected as
realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary losses, management considers: (1) the length of time and extent
that fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the
Bank’s ability and intent to hold the security for a period sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair
value,

Loans: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foresceable future or until maturity
or payoff are reported at the principal balance outstanding, net of uneamned interest, deferred loan fees and costs, and
an allowance for loan losses. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net
of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized in interest income using the level-yield method
without anticipating prepayments.

Interest income on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-
secured and in process of collection. Past due status is based on the contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans
are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income.
Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for
return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due
are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred
credit losses. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan
balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. Management estimates the
allowance balance required using past loan loss experience, the nature and volume of the portfolio, information
about specific borrower situations and estimated collateral values, economic conditions, and other factors.
Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that,
in management’s judgment, should be charged-off.
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(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that
are individually classified as impaired or loans otherwise classified as substandard or doubtful. The general
component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors.

A loan is impaired when full payment under the loan terms is not expected. Commercial and commercial
real estate loans are individually evaluated for impairment. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is
allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s existing
rate or at the fair value of collatera! if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Large groups of smaller
balance homogeneous loans, such as consumer and residential real estate loans, are collectively evaluated for
impairment, and accordingly, they are not separately identified for impairment disclosures.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed over the assets’ useful lives on an accelerated basis.

Foreclosed Assets: Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initiaily recorded at fair
value when acquired, establishing a new cost basis. If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure, a valuation
allowance is recorded through expense. Costs after acquisition are expensed.

Long-term Assets: Premises and equipment and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when
events indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows. If impaired, the
assets are recorded at fair value.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include off-balance sheet
credit instruments, such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer
financing needs. The face amount for these itemns represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer
collateral or ability to repay. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

Stock Compensation: Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (*SFAS™) No. 123(R), Share-based Payment, using the prospective transition method. Accordingly, the
Bank was required to begin recording stock-based employee compensation cost using the fair value method starting
in 2006. For 2006, adopting this Standard had no effect on net income as the Bank granted no options in 2006.

Prior to January 1, 2006, employee compensation expense under stock options was reported using the
intrinsic value method; therefore, no stock-based compensation cost was reflected in net income for the year ending
December 31, 2005, as all options granted had an exercise price equal to or greater than the market price of the
underlying common stock at date of grant.

Benefit Plans: The Bank sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan which is available to all employees clecting
to participate after meeting certain length-of-service requirements. The Bank's contributions are discretionary and
are determined annually. Expense related to the plan in 2006 and 2005 was $1 and $1.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts
for the temporary differences between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using
enacted tax rates. A valuation allowarice, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be
realized.

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income.
Other comprchensive income includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale, which are also
recognized as scparatc components of equity.

Loss Contingencies: Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course
of business, are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be
reasonably estimated. Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have a material effect on
the financial statements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Restrictions on Cash: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank of $364 and $538 was
required to meet regulatory reserve and clearing requirements at year end 2006 and 2005, These balances do not
earn interest.

Dividend Restriction: Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and limit the
dividends paid by the bank to shareholders,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant
market information and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a separate note. Fair value estimates involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors,
especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions
could significantly affect the estimates.

Reclassifications: Some items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform to the
current presentation.

NOTE 2 - SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of securities at year end were as follows.

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
2006
Available for sale
U.S. Government agencies $ 5,981 h) 2 % (86) 3§ 5,897
Mortgage-backed 2,747 — (51 2,696
Corporate 1,300 — (62) 1,238
Total securities available for sale ) 10,028 § 2 % (199) % 9,831
Held to maturity
U.S. Government agencies $ 2,000 § — § 2V 1,929
2005
Available for sale
.S, Government agencies $ 3979 % — 3 {102y % 3,877
Mortgage-backed 3,485 — (82) 3,403
Corporate 1,300 -— {162) 1,138
Total securities available for sale 3 B, 764 § — 8 (346) 3 8,418
Held to maturity
U.S. Government agencies 3 2,000 S — 8 (53) 3% 1,947

The fair value of debt securities and carrying amount, if different, at year end 2006 by contractual maturity
were as follows, Securities not due at a single maturity date, primarily mortgage-backed securities, are shown
separately.

Avalilable
Held to Maturity for Sale
Carrying Fair Fair
Amount Value Value
Due in one year or less $ — $ — $ —
Due from one to five years — — 6,554
Due from five to ten years 2,000 1,929 581
Due after ten years — — —
Mortgage-backed ' — — 2,696
$ 2,000 3 1,929 $ 9,831
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INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2006 and 2005
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE 2 — SECURITIES (Continued)
No securities were sold during 2006 or 2005.

Securities with a carrying value of approximately $10,189 at year end 2006 and $9,226 at year end 2005 were
pledged to secure public funds and repurchase agreements.

Gross unrealized losses, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have
been in a continuous unrealized loss position, were as follows.

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
2006
Available for Sale
U.S. Government agencies $ — — §$389%8 8 (86) $ 3,898 § (86)
Mortgage-backed 922 (13) 1,774 (38) 2,696 (51)
Corporate — — 1,238 (62) 1,238 (62)
Held to Maturity
U.S. Government agencies — — 1,929 (71) 1,929 (71)
§ 922 $ (13) §$ 8839 § (257) § 9,761 § (270)
2005
Available for Sale
U.S. Government agencies $ 971 3 (15 § 2906 % 87) $ 3877 % (102)
Mortgage-backed — — 3,402 (82) 3,402 (82)
Corporate — — 1,139 (162) 1,139 (162)
Held to Maturity
U.S. Government agencies — — 1,947 (53) 1,947 {53)

P 971 $ {5y $939% § (384) 310,365 § (399

The Bank evaluates securitics for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to the length of time
and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the
issuer, and the intent and ability of the Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to
allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, the Bank considers
whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating
agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer’s financial condition.

At year end 2006 and 2005, securities with unrealized losses had depreciated 2.7% and 3.7% from the
Bank’s amortized cost basis. These unrealized losses related principally to changes in interest rates. As the Bank has
the ability to hold these securities for the foreseeable future since they are classified as either available for sale or
held to maturity, no declines were deemed to be other than temporary.
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NOTE 3 - LOANS

Year end loans were as follows.

2006 2005
Commercial S 835t § 6,873
Commercial real estate 92,662 87,561
Residential real estate 8,085 11,379
Consumer 1,849 3,314
110,947 109,127
Less:
Net deferred loan fees (75) (36)
Allowance for loan losses (1,494) (1,494)

$ 109,378 § 107,597

Loans to certain executive officers, directors and companies with which they are affiliated totaled
approximately $2,678 and $3,009 at year end 2006 and 2005.

2006 2005
Beginning balance 3 1,494 § 824
Provision for loan losses — 645
Charge-offs — _
Recoveries — 25
Ending balance $ 1,494 § 1,494
Impaired loans were as follows.
2006 2005
Year end loans with no allocated allowance
for loan losses $ 308 % —
Year end loans with allocated allowance
for loan losses — —
$ 3085 $ —
Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated $ — 8 —
Average of impaired loans during the year $ 237 § —

Interest income recognized during impairment — —
Cash-basis interest income recognized — —

Impaired loans as of December 31, 2006 consisted of one loan, which was subsequently sold at par in
February 2007. No loans were on nonaccrual status or past due over 90 days and still on accrual at year end 2006 or
2005.

114




INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2006 and 2005
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

NOTE 4 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Year end premises and equipment were as follows.

2006 2005
Leasehold improvements $ 272§ 237
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 981 940
1,253 1,177
Accumulated depreciation (960) {866)

$ 293 § 311

The Bank leases its office facilities under operating leases. The leases contain annual escalations and have
renewal options. Rent expense under these operating leases for 2006 and 2005 was $260 and $218. Rent
commitments under these noncancelable operating leases were as follows, before considering renewal options.

2007 5 178
2008 184
2009 155
2010 160
2011 165
Thereafter 170

s

NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS

Deposits from principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year end 2006 and 2005 were $6,033 and
$6,240.

Time deposits of $100,000 or more were $19,647 and $5,299 at year end 2006 and 2005.

At year end 2006, scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows.

2007 3 27,045
2008 339
2009 —
2010 410
2011 20

$ 27,814

NOTE 6 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

At year end, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank were as follows.

2006 2005

Fixed-rate advance, 2.13%, due March 2006 b —_ $ 1,000
Fixed-rate advance, 3.87%, due May 2006 —_ 1,000
Fixed-rate advance, 4.10%, due November 2006 — 1,000
Fixed-rate advance, 5.64%, due January 2007 3,000 —
Fixed-rate advance, 5.43%, due April 2007 2,000 —
Fixed-rate advance, 4.25%, due May 2007 1,000 1,000
Fixed-rate advance, 5.45%, due May 2007 3,000 —
Convertible, variable-rate advance until May 2006,

3.87%, due May 2010 — 3,000

§ 9,000 $ 7,000
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NOTE 6 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES (Continued)
Each advance is payable at its maturity date with a prepayment penalty at the option of the Federal Home

Loan Bank. The advances were collateralized by a blanket pledge of substantially all of the Bank’s loan portfolio at
year end 2006,

NOTE 7 - INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense was as follows.

Current Deferred Total

2006
Federal $ 951 b 1 $ 952
State 174 1 175
$ 1,125 3 2 $ 1,127

2005
Federal 5 621 $ 161 $ 782
State 100 27 127

3 721 3 188§ 509

Effective tax rates differ from federal statutory rate of 34% applied to income before income taxes due to
the following.

2006 2005
Federal statutory rate times financial statement income g 1,057 % 785
Effect of:
State taxes, net of federal benefit 115 84
Other (45) 40

$ 1,027 $§ 909

Year end deferred tax assets and liabilities were due to the following.

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses 3 467 § 467
Unrealized loss on investment securities available for sale 74 130
Depreciation 26 —
567 597
Deferred tax liabilities
Accrual to cash conversion (193) (144)
Loan origination costs (59) (76)
Other — 4)
(252} {224)
Net deferred tax asset $ 315 § 373
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NOTE 8 - STOCK OPTIONS

Certain key employees and directors of the Bank have options to purchase shares of the Bank's common
stock under its 1999 stock option plan. Under the plan, up to 146,581 shares may be issued. At year end 2006, 1,004
shares remained available for grant. In 2004, the shareholders approved a director stock option plan. Under the 2004
plan, up to 50,760 shares may be issued. At year end 2006, 2,547 shares remained available for grant. In 2006, the
shareholders approved the 2006 Stock Option Plan. Under the 2006 plan, up to 46,000 shares may be issued. At year
end 2006, all shares remained available for grant. The exercise price is equal to or in excess of the market price at
date of grant. The maximum option term is ten years and the options vest over one to four years.

A summary of the activity in the stock option plan for 2006 follows.

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsie
Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 139,191  § 10.53
Granted — —
Exercised (13,790) 16.00
Forfeited or expired — —
Outstanding at end of year 125,401 $ 10.59 6.8 years $ 3,037
Exercisable at end of year 119,994 b 10.00 6.3 years b 2,977
Information related to the stock option plan during each year follows.
‘ 2006 2005
Intrinsic value of options exercised 3 244 % 22
Cash received from option exercises 138 44
Tax benefit realized from option exercises 92 4

At year end 2006, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock options granted
under the Bank’s plans.

NOTE 9 - REGULATORY MATTERS

Banks are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Capital
adequacy guidelines and prompt corrective action regulations involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and
certain off-balance-sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications
are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators. Failure to meet capital requirements can initiate regulatory
action.

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately capitalized,
undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to
represent overall financial condition. If adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered
deposits. If undercapitalized, capital distributions are limited, as is asset growth and expansion, and capital
restoration plans are required. At year end 2006 and 2005, the most recent regulatory notifications categorized the
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or
events since that notification that management believes have changed the institution's category.
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NOTE 9 - REGULATORY MATTERS (Continued)

Actual and required capital amounts and ratios are presented below at year end.

Minimum Required

Minimum Required
to Be Well

Capitalized Under

For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Regulations
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amaount Ratio
2006
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 16,130 13.6% § 9,518 8.0% $ 11,897 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 14,643 12.3 4,759 4.0 7.138 6.0
Tier | capital (to average assets) 14,643 11.4 5,144 40 6,430 5.0
2005
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) § 13,859 11.7% § 9,440 8.0% § 11,800 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 12,384 10.5 4,720 4.0 7,080 6.0
Tier 1 capital (io average assets) 12,384 9.7 5112 4.9 6,390 50

NOTE 10 - LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVITIES

Some financial instruments, such as loan commitments, credit lines, letters of credit, and overdraft
protection, are issued to meet customer financing needs. These are agreements to provide credit or to support the
credit of others, as long as conditions established in the contract are met, and usually have expiration dates.
Commitments may expire without being used. Off-balance-sheet rigk to credit loss exists up to the face amount of
these instruments, although material losses are not anticipated. The same credit policies are used to make such
commitments as are used for loans, including obtaining collateral at exercise of the commitment.

Commitments at year end were as follows.

2006 2005
Unused commitments $ 20,309 $ 19,598
Letters of credit 130 558
NOTE 11 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows at year end.
2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,086 § 13,089 % 26,794 § 26,794

Securities available for sale 9,831 9,831 8,418 8,418

Securities held to maturity 2,000 1,929 2,000 1,947

Loans, net 109,378 109,172 107,597 107,374

Accrued interest receivable 634 634 501 501

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 788 788 574 574

Financial liabilities

Deposits (108,671) (108,670 (124,042) (124,028)

Federal funds sold and

repurchase agreements (4,092) (4,092) (2,929) (2,929

Federal Home Loan Bank

advances (9,000) (8,993) (7,000) (6,885)

Accrued interest payable (80) (80) (25) (25)
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NOTE 11 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as follows.

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, Federal Home Loan Bank stock,
accrued interest receivable and payable, demand deposits, short-term debt, and variable rate loans or deposits that
reprice frequently and fully. Security fair values are based on market prices or dealer quotes, and if no such
information is available, on the rate and term of the security and information about the issuer. For fixed rate loans or
deposits and for variable rate loans or deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits, fair value is based on
discounted cash flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk. Fair values for
impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values. Fair value of debt
is based on current rates for similar financing. The estimated fair value for off-balance-sheet loan commitments is
considered nominal.

NOTE 12 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Other comprehensive income (loss) components and related tax effects were as follows.

2006 2005
Unrealized holding gains (losses)} on available-for-sale securities 5 149 & (209)
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in income — —
Net unrealized gains (losses) 149 (209)
Tax effect (56) 70
Other comprehensive income (loss) b 93 § (139

NOTE 13 - MERGER AGREEMENT

On November 17, 2006, the Bank entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreement™)
with Sun American Bancorp, a single bank holding company organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, and
its subsidiary, Sun American Bank, a Florida-chartered commercial bank, whereby the Bank will merge with and
into Sun American Bank (“Merger”).

The Merger Agreement provides that at the closing of the Merger, the Bank's shareholders will have their
shares canceled and converted into the right to reccive either $34.81 in cash or 6.4463 shares of Sun American
Bancorp common stock, or a combination thereof at the election of each shareholder, for each share of Bank
common stock owned, provided that not more than 42% of the total number of shares of the Bank’s common stock
outstanding at the effective time of the Merger may be converted into cash consideration and the remaining
outstanding shares will be converted into Sun American Bancorp common stock. Accordingly, each shareholder
may receive a combination of cash and shares of Sun American Bancorp common stock that is different than what
was elected, depending on the elections made by other Bank shareholders.

119




ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no changes in or disagreements with accountants regarding accounting and financial disclosure
matters during the year ended December 31, 2006,

ITEM 9A (T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, the
principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective in reaching a reasonable level of assurance that information required to be disclosed by the
Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated, recorded,
processed, summarized, and communicated to the Company’s management , including its principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding the required disclosure, and reported within the
time period specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

The principal executive officer and principal financial officer also conducted an evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting (“Internal Control”) to determine whether any changes in Internal Control occurred
during the quarter (the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that have materially affected
or which are reasonably likely to materially affect Internal Control. Based on that evaluation, there have been no
such changes during the quarter covered by this report.

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs.
Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance
that ail control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. Because of the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
The Company conducts periodic evaluations to enhance, where necessary, its procedures and controls.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

Information required to be included in this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to certain information from
the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with
the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

The Company’s Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all of our employees,
officers and directors. The Code covers compliance with law; fair and honest dealings with the Company, with
competitors and with others; fair and honest disclosure to the public; and procedures for compliance with the Code.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required to be included in this Item 11 is incorporated by reference to certain information from
the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with
the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

Information required to be included in this Item 12 is incorporated by reference to certain information from
the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with
the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information required to be included in this Item 13 is incorporated by reference to certain information from
the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with
the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

At December 31, 2006, the Bank extended two lines of credit to business entities affiliated with Director
Stephen Perrone, who also serves as a director for the Company, in the aggregate amount of $6.9 million. Accrued
interest on these loans amounted to $24,631 at December 31, 2006. The loans are secured by real estate and are
believed to be collectible. All loans to officers and directors are made in accordance with Regulation O, under the
same terms available to the general public without preferential treatment.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
Information required to be included in this Item 14 is incorporated by reference to certain information from

the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with
the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
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PART IV

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report:

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Southern Security Financial Corporation and Southern
Security Bank Corporation, dated October 31, 1997 (1)

Certificate of Merger of Southern Security Bank Corporation into Southern Security Financial Corporation,
under Florida law, dated November 10, 1997 (1)

Articles of Merger of Southern Security Bank Corporation into Southern Security Financial Corporation,
under Florida law, dated November 12, 1997 (1)

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current
Reports on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 8, 2007)

Amended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on August 2, 2005)

Stock Certificate for Common Stock (2)

Form of Class A Warrant Certificate to Purchase Shares of Common Stock (6)
Form of Class B Warrant Certificate to Purchase Shares of Common Stock (6)
Form of Class C Warrant Certificate to Purchase Shares of Common Stock (6)
Form of Class D Warrant Certificate to Purchase Shares of Common Stock (6)
Form of Class E Warrant Certificate to Purchase Shares of Common Stock (6)

Form of Series F Common Stock Purchase Warrant {(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 5, 2005,
November 11, 20035, and December 14, 2005).

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Placement Agents. (incorporated herein by reference
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 14, 2005).

Form of Series G Common Stock Purchase Warrant. (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 20, 2005).

Asset Purchase Agreement between PanAmerican Bank and Southern Security Bank Corp. and Southern
security Bank, dated May 15, 2001. (5)

Employment Agreement dated May 22, 2006 by and among Michael E. Golden, the Company, and the
Bank (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 26, 2006).* (4)

Employment Agreement dated as of June 5, 2006 by and among Hugo Castro, the Company, and the Bank
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on June 9, 2005). * (4)

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of September 20, 2006 by and among Hugo Castro, the
Company, and the Bank (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission en September 22, 2006). * (4)

Employment Agreement dated January 17, 2007 by and between Michael E. Golden, the Company, and the
Bank (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January 23, 2007).* (4)
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Asset Purchase Agreement between PanAmerican Bank and Gulf Bank dated October 9, 2003. (3)
Company Promissory Note for a $2,000,000 revolving line of credit dated February 25, 2005 (4)
Bank $5,000,000 unsecured credit facility dated May 16, 2005 (4)

Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s proxy
statement filed with the SEC on May 18, 2005)*

Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s proxy
statement filed with the SEC on May 18, 2005)*

Non-Qualified Stock Options granted to outside directors and incentive Stock Options granted to executive
officers on July 21, 2005 (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on September 23, 2005).*

Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Option and Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s report S-8 Securities to be offered in employee benefit plans filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 1, 2007)*

Loan agreement with Robert Nichols, dated as of October 3, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 6,
2006).*

Loan agreement with Michael E. Golden, dated as of November 15, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 6, 2006).*

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of December 14, 2005, by and among the Company and
the Investors (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 5, 2005, November 11, 2005, and December 14,
2005).

Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 14, 2005, by and among the Company and
the Investors (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 5, 2005, November 11, 2005, and December 14,
2005).

Board resofution adopting Warrant Plan. (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 20, 2005).*

Acceleration of the vesting of stock options (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 17, 2006).

Asset Acquisition and Assumption Agreement among the Company, the Bank and Beach Bank, dated as of
May 17, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 23, 2006).

Agreement and Plan of Merger among the Company, the Bank, and Independent Community Bank, dated
as of November 17, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 24, 2006).

First Amendment to Asset Acquisition and Assumption Agreement among the Company, the Bank and
Beach Bank dated as of November 17, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 29, 2006).

Escrow Agreement among the Company, the Bank, Beach Bank, Michael Kosnitzky, as shareholder
representative and the trustee of the Liquidating Trust, and Northern Trust, N.A., dated as of December 29,
2006. (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January 8, 2007),

Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share Eamnings (incorporated by reference to Note 17 to
consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K).
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14.1
21.0
231
23.2
233
311
312
32

(D
(2
()
@
(5)
(6)

Code of Ethics (4)

Subsidiaries

Consent of Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Consent of Morrison, Brown, Argiz & Farra, LLP
Consent of Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

Section 1350 Certification

Filed as an exhibit to Form 8-K of the registrant on November 25, 1997.
Filed as an exhibit to Form 10-KSB of the registrant on April 3, 2002.
Filed as an exhibit to Form 8-K of the registrant on October 28, 2003.
Filed as an exhibit to Form 10-QSB of the registrant on August 15, 2005.
Filed as an exhibit to Form 10-QSB of the registrant on August 14, 2001.
Filed as an exhibit to Form 10-KSB of the registrant on March 29, 2006.

Management compensation plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SUN AMERICAN BANCORP

By: s/ MICHAEL E. GOLDEN

Name: Michael E. Golden
Title: Chief Executive Officer

March 28, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

Principal Executive Officer:

/s/ MICHAEL E. GOLDEN Chief Executive Officer March 28, 2007
Michael E. Golden

Principal Accounting & Financial Officer:

/s/ ROBERT L. NICHOLS Chief Financial Officer March 28, 2007
Robert L. Nichols

Directors:

/s/ JAMES F. PARTRIDGE Chairman of the Board March 28, 2007

James F. Partridge

/s MICHAEL E. GOLDEN President, CEQ, Director March 28, 2007
Michael E. Golden

/s/ NELSON FAMADAS Director and Vice Chairman March 28, 2007
Nelson Famadas of the Board

/s/ LEONARD F. MARINELLO Director March 28, 2007

Leonard F. Marinello

/s/ STEPHEN L. PERRONE Director March 28, 2007
Stephen L. Perrone

/s/ ALBERTO VALLE Director March 28, 2007
Alberto Valle
/s/ MICHAEL F. ROSINUS Director March 28, 2007

Michael F. Rosinus
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

1, Michael E. Golden, certify that:

1

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sun American Bancorp;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,

(b) Intentionally omitted.

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

{d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materiaily affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrants® auditors and the audit commiitee of the registrant’s
board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2007

/s MicHAEL E. GOLDEN
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Robert Nichols, certify that:

1

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sun American Bancorp;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report,

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Intentionally cmitted.

(¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this annual report based on such ¢valuation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
interna! control over financial reporting, to the registrants’ auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2007

/s/ ROBERT NICHOLS
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code), cach of the undersigned officers of Sun American Bancorp (the “Company™) does hereby
certify with respect to the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2006
(the “Report™) that:

§)] The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

V3] The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 28, 2007 /s/ MICHAEL E GOLDEN
Michael E. Golden
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 28, 2007 /s/ ROBERT NICHOLS
Robert Nichols
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Report
or as a separate disclosure document.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue
Net incom

e (Loss)

Income (Loss)
Before Loan L.oss Provision

Net Income (Loss)
per Diluted Common Share

Total Assets

Loans Receivable
Depousit Liabilities
Shareholders' Equity

2006
$ 25,959,000
$ 3,179,000

$ 3,517,000
$ 0.14

$ 503,123,000
$ 350,743,000
$ 402,978,000
$ 84,680,000

Book Value per Common Share § 3.65

Total Assets

{In Mallions of Dollars)

2002 2003

2002

2004

2005

$ 17,118,000
$ 2,919,000

$  3.396,000

$

0.21

$277,151,000
$210,665,000
$193,465,000
$ 59,625,000

$

2005 2006

Shareholder's E

{In Millicns of Dollars;

322

3,500
3,000

2,500
2,000

1,500
1,000
500

-500

-1,000
-1,500

2004 2003
$ 9,817,000 § 5,586,000
$  (228,0000 % (443,000)
$ 1,169,000 $ 535,000
$ 0.05 § {0.08)
$191,467,000 $ 94,100,000
$153,730,000  $ 66,197,000
$156,158,000  § 80,133,000
$ 20,746,000 $ 9,847,000
$ 2.44 $ 1.73
Net Income

{in Thousands of Dollars)

2002

Total Loan Production
{1n Millions of Dollars)

2003

2004

2005 2006

2003

2004

2002 2003 2004 2005
quity
]
2005 2006
Book Value

2002 2003

2004 2005

2006

2005
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un American Bank (the "Bank"), which is the sole subsidiary of the Sun American
Bancoarp, is a state-chartered, Federal Reserve member bank engaged in general
commercial and consumer banking business. Its primary market area for loans and
deposits are Miami-Dade, Broward, Palm Beach and Martin counties in Southeast
Florida, where it operates thirteen branch offices. The Bank is engaged in general
commercial banking, providing a wide range of loan and deposit services. The Bank's
customers are predominantly small to medium-sized businesses, individual investors and
consumers. Commercial Real-estate lending is the predominate lending the bank
provides. The Bank also provides other services for additional fee income.

The bank was originally founded and incorporated in 1992 and was reorganized in 2000
and infused with new capital by the current group of investors. In early 2002 Michael
Golden joined the management team as the President and CEO of the holding company
and proceeded to turn the bank around financially by bringing in new management,
making certain cost cuts and raising capital among other things that have resulted in the
current financial picture of the bank.

At the end of 2000 Sun American Bancorp bought certain assets of the Pan American
Bank and assumed the name. In 2003 PanAmerican Bancorp acquired the assets and
assumed deposits and certain liabilities of Gulf Bank of Florida. On January 12, 2006,
the Company changed its name from PanAmerican Bancorp to Sun American Bancorp.
In December 2006 Sun American Bank acquired substantially all of the assets and
assumed substantially all of the liabilities of Beach Bank, which operated two, branches
in Miami-Dade County.

In October of 2006 a letter of intent was signed to merge Independent Community Bank
of Tequesta into Sun American Bancorp, this transaction is expected to be completed in
the first quarter of 2007,

The company trades on the American Stock Exchange but in the first quarter of 2007 will
move to the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol SAMB.
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Sun American Bank Locations
r
1 (':uml Way Ofﬁ(w 5. Coral Gables Ofiice
© 3400 Coral Way 221 Miracle Mile
Miami, FL 33145 Coral Gables, FL 33134
(305) 639-7140 (303) 639-7200
Fasz (303) H6-a818 Fax: (305) 448-9308
2/ 5‘\}'_27"' "‘\_"S“u" Ofiice 6.  Miami Beach Ofiice
17 ’(! S“. 2"!".‘“:"'"““ 535 Arthur Godirey Road
Miami, FL 33133 Miami Beach, FL 33140
(303) 6397210 (305) 639-7230
Fax: (305) 448-1275 Fax: (305) 695-7405
3 doral Office 7 Halivwood Office
72500 NW 97th Avenue 3475 Sheridan Street
Doral, FL 33172 Hollywood, FL 33021
(305) 639-7220 (953) 318-1607
Fax: (303) 477-3827 Fax: {954) 961-6883
4 Dadeland Office 8 Fu Lauderdale Office

~

80199 South Divie Hwy.
Miami, FL 33143
(305) 639-7240

Fax: (B05) 66 1-1019

350 SE 2nd Street
1. Lauderdale, FL 33301
(954} 518-1630
Fax: (954} 462-8779

@A SUN AMERICAN BANCORP
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© 1200,North Federal Hwy.
Baca Raton; FL"43432

(361) 544190
"\Fa\' (501) 447-7585

2160" West Atlantic Avenue
Delra B‘_eae'h FL 33345

Boynton Beach Oifice 13
“ 3501 W. Boynton Beach Blvd,
Boynton Beach, FL 33436

Fax: (361) 732-6592
<, Palm Beach Gardens 14
Cily Center - 2000 PGA Blvd,
Building E - Suite E5506
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

Fax: (561) 636-2454

New Branches
Opening Soon in:

15 West Boca Raton

16 Stuart

17 East Delray Beac
Boca Raton Ofiice

Sune111 B -

Delra) Beach Office

(561) 544 1940 -
Fax: (561) 272- 6207

END

Prosperity Oaks Ofiice
11381 Prosperity Farms Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 3341(

(561} 776-7907
Fax: (561) 776-7910

(3G1) 544-1930

Tequesta Office
250 Tequesta Drive - Suite101
Tequesta, FL 33469
(561} 746-1190

(561} 5344-1950 Fax; (561) 746-0845

»
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